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Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, [ am pleased to present the finaucial report and audited consofidated financial statemerts
of Bestway Group Limited (the “Company™) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 30 Junc 2019.

Business overview

The Group continues to boast a pertfolio consisting of the 2™ largest indopendent wholesaler and 3 largest retail pharmacy in
the UK, in addition to the largest cement manufacturer and 2™ largest private bank in Pakistan.

Group revenue for the year ended 30 Junc 2019 totalled £3 .4 billion compared to £3.2 billion in the previous year, an increase
of 7%. Profit before tax decreased by 20% to £227.7 million compared to £283.5 millien in the previous year.

The decline in profitability was due to a tough trading eavironment within the UK wholesale sector as well as the impact of
the acquisition, out of administration, of Bestway Retail which has required stabilising, Economic conditions in Pakistan have
also been challenging resulting in softer (rading results in our cement business as weil as the impact of the rupee devaluation
on conversion of our results into sterling.

Despite the challenges, it has been an exciting year for the Group and we have been able to capitalise on market opportunities.
Puring the year under review the various rotail and distribution busittesses we acquired over the last year were integrated into
our Wholesale business. We beliove that these investments will be value aceretive and enable us to broaden our customer
proposifior.

The business has continued ils investment in the technology assets across the Group, Well Pharmacy launched a beta version
of ifs app in July 2018, which offers repeat prescriptions and is designed to work with a cusiomer’'s GP to organise the
prescription delivery and refills. A full marketing campaign was launched in Januery 2019 and to date there have been more
than 62,500 sign-ups with almost 100,000 items dispensed.

in July 2018, UBL Digital was launched and it has grown to become the highest rated finance app in Pakistan with over 1
million downloads and mare than 700,000 active customers. During the year, a host of new capabilities were deployed on the
app including the ability to undertake contactless payments, the first of its kind in Pakistan.

Bestway Wholesale’s digital channels have also grown. The wholesale app now has over 81,000 registered users averaging
sales of £33 million per month and accounting for 31% of telal online transactions,

Social responsibility

Bestway Group is commitied to giving back to the communities it operates in through its charilable arm Bestway Foundation
as wol as through its various subsidiaries. ] am proud to report that both of our Pakistani subsidiaries, Bestway Cement Limited
and United Bank Limited, have been included in the Top 10 list of publicly listed companies in Pukistan with togaids to
charitable giving.

During the year under roview, Bestway Foundation provided in excess of £225,000 (2018: £200,000) in grants to students of
South Asian origin to attend a number of universities in the United Kingdom, In addition, Bestway Foundation donated over
£240,000 (2018: £185,000) to nine chadtes in the UK, including amengst others, The Duke of Edinburgh Avward,
Crimestoppers and Grocery Aid,

In June 2019 Bestway Wholesale helid its 26% annual charity race day at the Royal Ascot. This year's beneficiary charity was
Save The Children. During the year, Well Pliarmacy under its carrier bag levy, donated over £13,000 (o local charities such as
the Marine Conservation Society in England and the Scottish Wildlife Trust,

Additionally, in 2019, Bestway Cement and United Bank Limited have donated in cxcess of £2 million to a range of educational
and health charities including, amongst others, Nationa University of Science & Technology Islamabad, Shaukhat Khanum
Memorial Hospital and Abdul Sattar Edhi Foundation. They have also provided scholarships, both local and intemalional, to a
number of university students across Pakistan.

Bestway Cement wudertook a project of converting its Waste Heat Recovery Power Planis in Chakwal to Air Cooled Condenser
Systems. The purpose of the conversion was to reduce the reliance of the business on water which is fast becoming a scarce
resource in Pakistan, This formed part of Bestway Cement's comprehensive water conservation strategy at all of its sites in
order 1o ensure suslsinable water for ull of the communities it operates in.

Awards and recognition

On 10 September 2019 it was announced that our Group Chief Executive, Zameer Choudrey CBE SI Pk, would be appointed
to the Houge of Lords under the Queen’s intention of conferring Peerages of the United Kingdom. Lord Zameer Choudrey
CBE 8! Pk assunted his role in the House of Lords on § November 2019, The award was in recognition of his considerable
contributions 1o Britain's domestic and foreign trade and his philanthropic work.

United Bank Limited was recognised as the “Bank of the Year 2018” at The Banker Awards, The award was in recognition of
the role the bank has played in spearheading digital innovation in Pakistan as well as expanding the scope of financial services
in the region. :
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Chairman’s Statement (confinued)

Bestway Cement Limited was recognised by the National Forum for Environment and Health at their [6% Annuaf Environment
Excellence Awards for its vision and effective implementation of environmentally responsible policies at all of its plants.

Outlook

We anticipate more challenging operaling conditions in (he year ahead both in the UK and Pakistan. The uncortainty regarding
Brexit will likely result in further austerify and continue to dampen economic growth, In Pakistan, economic growth is likely
to slow down in the afiermath of the IMF bailout package and the focus of the government on addressing the balance of
payments issue.

However, we believe that our fundamental strengths and the benefits of our business modef make us resilient and able to
perform well in testing market conditions. Looking to the future, we aim to grow our businesses and reach more customers
through investinents in new technologies and processes. 1 am confident that the combination of our experienced Board, and
long-term growth objectives, puts Bestway on course for a successful future.

Sir MA Pervez OBE HPK
Chafrman

19 December 209
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Strategic veport: Group Chief Executive’s review

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present the Annual Report and audited financial statements for Bestway
Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2019

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group during the year were in the wholesale, pharmacy, cement and financial services scclors.
The principal activity of the Company was as a holding company.

Review of business

2019 has been a chalienging year for Bestway Group as there has been significant economic unecertainty withis the geographies
we oporate in. Howsver, despite these difficult business conditions in both the UK and Pakistan, all our businesses remain
profitable.

The UK economy has witnessed unprecedented uncertainty in the aftermath of the Brexit referendum and this has hed an
impact on business confidence which has beon compounded by the ongoing challenges of increased National Living Wage

The Wholesule business has been focused on integrating Conviviality Retail (now kitown as Bestway Retail) and landing the
associnted scale benefits. This is against the backdrop of a difficult wholesale environment that has seen a number of major
players withdraw from the markel. Trading conditions remain difficult due to the ongeing compelition from the grocers,
increased National Living Wage as well as the impact of Brexit on our supplier partuers.

Well Pharmacy has been focused on maintaining market share whilst generating efficiencies to counteract the flnt funding
imposed by the Department of Health. There has remained a focus on leveraging technology assets to help drive both market
share and efficiency gains via our Centraf Futfilment and Digital Projects. The Department of Health has also agreed a new 5-
year contract with the pharmacy business where funding will remain flat. Specific details of the mechanics of the funding are
yet fo be determined yet again there is an onus from the govemment on the sector to become more efficient.

Business conditions in Pakistan have been the most difficult in recent times. In the lead-np to the IMF deal being signed, there
was a significant increase in interest rales aad material currency dovaluation. With the signing of the IMF deal the now
government is focused on addressing the country’s balance of payments issue and as a result has undertaken austerity measures
which have slowed economic growth.

Bestway Cement Limited was able to maintain its market share despite these challenges, however, margins have compressed
due to the impact of currency devaluation on input costs. Moreover, competitors began introducing new capacity towards the
end of the year which resulted in additional pricing pressure which may continue.

United Bank Limited has been able to benefil From the higher interest rate environment as net interest margins have increased.
There has also been a focus on the business becoming more efficient and theso significant investments have been made in
digital technologies to help increase market share as well as bring operational efficiencios. Deteriorating credit quality in the
intemational book has remaincd an issuc bocause of provailing conditions in the Gulf region, particularly Qatar.

Group financial performance

During the year ended 30 June 2019 Group revenue was £3.4 bitlion compared to £3.2 billion in the previous year, an increase
of 7% driven predominantly by the full year impact of Bestway Retail revenue. The details of the restatement in relation 1o tho
acquisition of Bestway Retail Limited is given in itote 50 to the financial statements. Despite difficult trading conditions, all of
our businesses remained profitable, however, overall Group profit before tax decreased by 20 % to £227.7 million compared
to £283.5 million in the previous year (profit before tax in the prior year included two adjusting items totalling a net oxpense
of £49.3 million, see note 18).

The decline in profitability has been driven by underperformance in the Bestway Wholesale and Bestway Cement businesses
as well as Pakistani Rupee devaluation, of 29% in the year, on translation into our financial statenents. Bestway Wholesale
has been impacted by the time taken to tumaround Besiway Retail 4 proviously loss-making business that was bought out of
administration in the prior year. whilst Bestway Cement has been impacted by the impact of the economic slowdown and
austerily meagures in Pakistan.

The net book value of investment properties and property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2019 stood at £986.1 million,
compared to £1,133.4 million in the previous year.

The Trading Group had cash bafances of £154.2 million in 2019 compared to £170.1 million in the previous year.

During the year, the UK Group repaid extemal borrowings of £48 million as part of its ongoing de-feveraging strategy. The
Group retired its loan facility with Habib Bank Limited in October 2018,
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Strategic report: Group Chief Executive’s review (continued)

Bestway Wholesale — the UIKCs largest independent wholesaler

Market conditions in the wholesale sector retnain challenging. The pressure from the grocery multiples is continuing and whilst
this has traditionally been in the convenience retail space, this has now broadened and intensificd with Tesco, Marrisons and
Asda all entering the wholesale market, The sector has also had to absorb the continired impact of National Living Wage as
well as the additional costs and associated uncertainty surrounding Brexit.

Despite these challenges, Bestway Wholesale has ramained connmitted to its strategic plans of offering improved sorvice and
convenience lo customers. Management Lias been focused on integrating Bestway Retail into the business and delivering the
associated scale benefits. There has also been an increased emphasis and investment in the supply chain and the business has
moved o a strategy of designated delivery hubs to offer better serviee levels and to compiement its growing onfine and digiial
business. Bestway Wholesale has over 60 depots, alongside 600+ retail stores including 450+ franchises’s for Bestway Retail,

Revenue in the Wholesale business grew 13.0% to £2.3 bitlion in 2019 from £2.1 billion in 2018. The increase was driven by
the inclusion of the il yoar impact of Bestway Retail in 2019 compared ta 3 months in 2018. Revenue also improved duc to
the continited foous of Bestway Wholesale on growing volume through jts various customer channels. The Best-one and Xira
Local retail club membership continnes to grow as we ensure greater discipline and compliance amongst our affiliated stores.
During the year, we centinned the MyRewards scheme to kelp our customers inerease their margins and profitability. Our
catering sales grew 2.5% during the yoar to £162 million while our online business now has over 81,000 registered users
compared to 62,000 the previous year. Weekly sales grew by 12% vs the previous year with total web and app sales avernging
£33m per month. The retail mobile app accounted for 31% of all online transactions vs 25% the previous year and the new
foadsorvice app, launched at the end of the year, accounted for 3% of total online fransastions.

Bestway Wholesale profit before tax decreased to £6.5 million in 2019 from £27.6m in 2018, Bestway Wholesale's numbers
are & reflection of a much lougher trading environinent due 1o the ongoing challenges faced by the sector namely, increased
competition, wage inflation and Brexit impact on supplier partners. The decrease in profitability was also due to the inclusion
of the full year impact of Bestway Retail, which was loss-making, as the business is still going through the process of
stabilisation following the acquisition by the Group. Bestway Retail sumbers tiad stabilised towards the end of 2019 and we
are hopetul this will be a positive contributor to the Group in the futurs.

Total inventory balances as at 30 June 2019 amounted to £184.7 million, compared to £203.1 million in the previous year.
‘Welt Pharmacy — the UK’s 3 lavgest retail pharmacy

In previous ysars, the pharmacy sector received a fanding cut from the Department of Health and there was uncertainty around
whether a long-termn deal was imminent. Encouragingly, the Department of Health has announced a 5-year deal, however, the
amount of funding provided to the phammacy sector wili romain flat. Although, this provides some certainty over long-term
finding, trading conditions within tho sector remain challenging as the onus is on the sector to ebsorb inflationary pressures
within the sector, both wage and cost, against the backdrop of inc¢reasing pationt dsmand. There is still a lack of clarity around ~
the specific lending mechanism and the business is reviewing how this may impact its operations.

Despite this environment, Well Pharmacy has over 750 pharmacies and has been able to retain its market share of national
prescriptions and has retained its focus on leveraging technology 1o improve operational efficiency and grow market share as
well gs diversifying its product offering away from solely medication dispensing. The Central Fulfilment project has been
rolied out to the majority of the estate and the business has seen strong growth in its digital and wholesale offerings.

Revenue for the Pharmacy business for the year ended 30 June 2019 increased 0.9% to £790.2 million compared to £783.7
million in the ptior year. The growth was broadly in line with the market and Weli’s market share of prescriptions nationally
remainod broadly at 5.8%.

Profit bofore tax decreased from £8.6 million in 2018 1o £6.2 million in 2019. Underlying trading remains robust and the
decrease in profitability was driven predominantly by higher depreciation charges due to the increased capex the business has
incurred as a result of its Digital and Central Fulfilment projects.

Bestway Cement Limited ({BCL*) — Pakistan’s largest cement manufactuyer

Trading condifions in Pakistan have been challenging for the cement sector in 2019 and are likely to remain so for the
foreseeable future. Economic uncertainty has resulted in austerity ieasures, such as reduction in development budgets, which
has dampened econowmic prowth and as a result cement demand decreased for the first time in & decado, This has been further
exacerbated by increased finance costs and higher input costs due to the material inferest rate increases and currency
devaluation the economy has had to withstand, Moreover, competitors who had made decisions to expand their capacities
during a year of relative economic stability are now going live with their new plants. Consequently, thete is excess supply in
the market at a time of demand compression which is resulting in downward pricing pressure.

Despite these conditions, BCL maintained its position as Pakistan’s market [eader and fargest cement manufbcturer, with an
annual clinker capacity of 10.8 million tonnes (2018: 10.8 million tonnes).
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Strategic report: Group Chief Executive’s veview (continued)

BCL’s despatches decreased by 9.6% to 8.1 million tonnes in 2019 from 9.0 million tonnes in 2018, Domestic despatches
decreascd by 2.0% during the year 1o 7.4 million tonnes from 7.6 million tounes, Exports decreased by 32.3% to 0.7 million
tonnes due to the imposition on trade restrictions with India as well as increased competition in the Afghanistan market.

Revenue for tlic financial year 2019 decreased by 14.2% to £303.5 millian compared to £355.3 million in 2018. BCL's profit
before tax decrensed 27.0% to £66.8 miilion compared to £91.5 million in 2018. The decrease in profitability has been driven
by lower retention prices in the market as well as margin compression linked to higher input costs. It should also be noted that
a portion of the negative varisnce can be explained by the woakening of the rupee during the year (from PKRIG1/£1 to PKR
207/£1).

For the year ended 30 June 2019, BCL declared total dividends of 11 PKR per share (£0.06 per share) (2018: 12 PKR por share
(£0.08 per share)).

United Bank Limited { UBL*) (* Bank®) — Pakistan’s 2™ largest private bank

During the year, Pakistan reached an agreement with the IMF o & bailout package. As part of the IMF package, Pakistan had
to adjust its foreign exchange rates to be in line with the Real Effective Exchange Rato, which resulted in significant rupee
devaluation. The govemment consequently took austerity measures and Pakistan has been in n rapidly increasing interest rate
cycle where rates have risen 575bps over the financial year from 6.50% to 12.25%. Rates currently stand at 13.25% and there
isa view that these may peak at 14.25%. Althaugh this is positive from a UBL perspective with regards to increased not interest
margins, higher foreign exchange volatility and the ability to invest in higher rated risk-free government retums, thore is likely
fo be increased stress in the corporate lending book as businesses will need to adapt their operating mode! to withstand these
pressurcs. The business will beve to be scloctive in its lending and ensure jts customers are robust.

UBL’s net interest income decreased by 12.2% during the yoar from £392.7 million in 2018 to £344.3 million in 2019. UBL’s
profit before tax decreased by 2.4% from £181.7 million in 2018 to £177.4 million in 2019. The decrease in reported profit is
driven by the weakening of the mpce during the year, although when reported in PKR terms UBL's profit before tax increased
during the year.

On the domestic front, UBL enjoyed showed a strong performence buoyed by higher interest rates and higher foreign exchange
volatility. UBL has successfully continued its focus on expanding its low-cost deposit base snd improving its non-fund income
and it was able to grow in these areas ahead of the competition. Digital remains a key strafepic initiative of the bank and during
the year it has scen over I million downloads of the UBL Digital app with over 700,000 registered customers. UBL is
committed 1o investing technology to improve its customer proposition as well as bring efficiency fo its operations and several
strategic work streams are planned for 2020,

‘The Intemational business has not performed as well and there was significant provisioning during the year assuciatcd with the
Gulf economies. Management has rationalised the portfolio and has identified certain non-core territories and will look to exit
or de-risk the business model accordingly. In fine with this strategy, UBL closed down its New York branch and sold off its
Omani assets during the year.

The bank declared a total dividend of 10PKR (£0.06) per share during the year cnded 30 June 2019 (13PKR (£0,09) per share
during the year ended 30 June 2018).

UBL's total assets at 30 June 2019 were £9.% billion compared to £12.2 billion in the previous year, a decrease of 18.6%.
UBL’s deposit base decreased by 14.6% to £7.4 billion for the year to 30 June 2019 as UBL actively decided 1o shed expensive
deposits and improve its cost to income ratio.
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Strategic report: Group Chief Executive’s review (continued)
Principal risks & uncertainties

The Group faces a range of risks and uncertainiies as a result of changing extemal environments such as regulation, econoniic
conditions, competition and consumer trends. The Group has taken the nccessary measures to reduce the inpact of key risks
in the business with appropriate policies where possible, however, not all risks and uncertsinties can be controlled.

The impact of the UK s exit from the EU continues to be a risk for the Group's UK subsidiaries due to the prevailing uncertainty
and the structural changes it has on business” supply chain. The Group has undortaken a review of the impact of Broxit on its
businesses under varied scenarios and has locked to manage these risks where possible. Given the delaysin negotiating & Brexit
deal, this analysis and the associated mitigants are reviewed periodically for reasonableness.

Competifion is another key risk across all of the Group’s businesses due to the landscape in which we operate. Competitiveness
has increased due to an inerease in market entrants within the cement and banking businesses, whilst there are market cost and
pricing pressures within the UK businesses. The Group ensures thal it has robust strategic planning and budgetary monitoring
processes and that it leverages market intelligenco to ensure our subsidiaries remain relevant in the market.

Regulation is a key risk across all of the Group’s businesses given the sectors that we operate in. Regulation has increased
across all subsidiaries with a focus in the UK on data proteclion, on environmental standards in cemeont and in capital adequacy
in the banking sector. The Group ensures that it remains apprised on the changing regulatory landscape and its impact on the
business, The Group alse enstires it has robust project toatns that oversee operational compliatice.

IT & Cyber is an increasing risk across afl Group businesses given the increased focus on digital systems of record and
transacting. Tho Group cnsures that it undertakes period cyber assessmonts and systom penelration testing with subject matter
experls. The threals are then systematically managed, and its securily is enhanced via improvement programimes.

Capital risk manngement and applicable regulations in Pakistan for the Banking Group

Backgronnd

The objective of managing capital is to safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going concem. It is the policy of the
Bank to maintain a strong cepital base so as to maintain investor, dopositor and market confidence and to sustain future
dovelopment of the business. The Bank aims to maintain an optimum level of capital along with meximising shareholders’
relum as we consider a sound capital position s more appropriate as apposed to leverage supporting business growth.

Minimum paid up capital

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BSD Circular No. 7 dated 15 April 2009 has prescribed the minimum paid-up
capital (net of accumulated losses) for Banks to be raised to Rs.10.0 billion by the year ended 31 December 2015, The paid-up
capital of the Bank as at 30 June 2019 totalled Rs, 12.2 billion (2018: Rs.12.2 billion).

Busel IH capital instricctions

The SBP through its BPRD Circular No. 6 dated §5 August 2013 has issued Basel III Capital instructions for Banks/DFls. The
revision to the previously applicable Capital Adequacy regulations pertain to components of efigible capilal and related
deductions. The amendments have been iniroduced with an aim to further strengthen the existing capitaf related rules. Basel
111 instruclions became effective from 31 December 2013; however, there is a transitional phase during which the complete
requirements would becoms applicable with full implementation by 31 Decembor 2019,

The Bank's capital adequacy is reporied using the rulss and ratios provided by the State Bank of Pakistan. The capital adequacy
ratio is a measure of the amount of a Bank's capital expressed as a percentage of its risk weighted asscis (RWAs).

Banking operations are categorised as either Trading Book or Banking Book and RWAs are deteriined according to specific
troatments as per the requirements of SBP that measure the varying levels of risk attached to on balance sheet and olf-balance
sheet exposures.

Under the current capital adequacy regulations, credit risk and market risk exposures are measured using the Standardised
Approach and operational risk is measured using the Basic Indicator Approach. Credit risk mitigants are also applied against
the Bauk's exposures based an eligible collateral.
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Applicable capital ratios wider Basel 1T

Banks are also required to maintain a minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of 10.0%, capilal conservalion buffer of 1.90%
and High Loss Absorbency Requirement of }.5% of the risk weighted exposures of the Bank.

Further, under Basel TII instructions, as at 30 June 2019, the Banks is required to maintain a Common Equity Tier | (CET 1)
ratio of 6.0% and Tier | ratio of 7,.5%. The achial ratios for the Bank as at 30 June 2019, which are unaudited, for Common
Equity Tier § (CET 1) was 12.5% and 13.5% for Tier ! ratio.

Lower Buffer required in 2020

Az per SBP’s designation of D-SIBs for the year 2019, the HLA capital charge required to be maintained by UBL has been
reduced from 1.5% to 1.0%. The revised HLA capital charge will be applicable from 31 March 2020 and will remain effective
tifl next D-SIB designation is announced by the State Bank of Pakistan.

The financial risk management policies of the Group are detailed i note 44.
Key performance indicators

Among the finanoial performance indicators within the wholesale business, the key performance indicators are like for like
sales, sales per dopartment gross profit margin, sales por depot, sales per depertment, operaling expenses, wage cost por depot,
slock availability, stock levels and cash generation.

The financial performance indicators within the pharmacy business include, the key performance indicators are prescription
growth, over the counter sales growlh, profitability per branch, operating expensos, stock levels, cost per prescription and cash
geNeration.

Financial performance indicators in the cement business are net retention, gross mergin, operating expenses, daily desputches
and cost of produetion.

Among the financial performance indicators within the banking business, the key porformance indicators are deposit levels,
assets under management, retam on assets, return on equity, net interest margin, non-financial income, operating expenses,
¢ost to income ratio, cost of deposits and capital adequacy ratio.

General non-financial pesformance indicators are staff tumover, staff, supplier and customer satisfaction and health and satety
reports, amongst others,

The Board is of the belief that the monitoring of the indicators is an important aspect of the regular business perfonnance
reviews conducted by menagement.

The following financial KPI’s (fumover, PBT and cash) are referred to in the business review.
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Euture outlook

We sco challenges in both the UK and Pakistani economies. The UK is faced with unprecedented uncertainty as a result of the
decision to Jeave the EU, whilst Pakistan will have to bajance its need for economic growth with the austerity measures
emanating from the IMF bailout package. However, we believe the Group is in a strong position to withstand these pressures
and continue 1o gain share within its respoctive markets.

The wholesale business will eontinue to focus on growing share in a competitive market by leveraging the complementary
infrastructure of Bestway Retail as part of its service offoring. The business will also be focused on delivering operational
efficiencies via the integration of Bestway Retail as well as optimising its suppiy chain infrastructure.

Well Pharmacy will continiie to focus on outperforming the market in both prescription volumes and margin delivery by
investing in technology initiatives that will enable us to reduce cur cost to serve as well as grow our market share, The business
wil} look to respond to the new NHS funding contract to ensure it is delivering all of the scrvices required and achieve the
efficiency gains implicit in the new 3-year contract provided by the Department of Health.

Bestway Cement will remain focusod on reducing its operational and administrative cost base and retain its status as the lowsst
cost aperator in the seclor 1o better enable it 1o withstand sustained margin pressure.

United Bank Limited will rebalance its investment portfolio in tho increasing interest rate environment. It will also continue to
relgin its focus on mansging corporate accounts during these turbulent cconomic times whilst also leveraging digital
capabilities to enable if fo increase its market share of doposits and reduce its cost to income ratio. UBL will also remain
focused on rationalising and de-risking its intemationel portfolio and ensure adherence to internalional compliance standards
across the organisation,

It has been a challenging twelve months and it is likely that the headwinds our businesses have faced will semain for the near
future, Notwithstending those prossures, we have been able to show the resilience of our business model and all of our
businesses have been able to maintain market share and are well positioned fo grow going forward and create value for all
sizkeholders.

{ would like 1o thank all our suppliers and employees for their commitment to the Group, I would also like to thank my fetlow
Directors for their contribittion to our strategic aud operational priorities.

On behalf of the board,

%& e e
Lord Z M Choudrey CBE, SI Pk, BA (Hons), FCA
Group Chief Executive 19 December 2019
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their report and the audited fiuancial statements of Bestway Group Limited for the year ended 30 June
2019.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group during the year were in the wholesale, pharnacy, cement and financial services sectors.
The principal activity of the Company was as a holding company.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year, and up to the date of signing these financial statements, were as follows:

8ir MA Pervez OBE HPk (Group Chairmen)

Lord Z M Choudrey CBE, S1 Pk, BA (Hons), FCA (Group Chief Executive)
M Y Sheikh

R Pervez, ACA

D Pervez, BA (Hons), MA Oxon, Solicitor

H Z Cheoudrey, BA (Hons) Cantab, ACA

Indemnity provisions

The Group has made qualifying third-party indenmity provisions for its Dircstors in relation to certain losses and liabilities
thal may occur in the course of acting as Directors of the Compeny, its subsidiarics or associates which were in force during
the year and remain in force at the date of this report.

Employee involvement and equal apportunities

The Group systematically provides employees with information on matters of concen to them and consults with cmployees
on a regular basis to ensure that their views can be considered in making decisions which are likely to affect their interests.
The Group encourages the involvement of employees in the Group’s performance and ensures that it provides employecs with
the information required such that they can achieve a common awareness of the financial and economic factors affecting its
performance.

The Group is an equal opportunities employer and its policies for the recruitment, training, career development and prometion
of employees are based on the rolevant merits and abilities of the individuals concerned. It recognises its responsibilities
towards the disabled and gives full and fair consideration to applications for employment from them, having regard to their
aptitudes and abilities. So far oz particular disabilities pormit, the Group will give continned employment and arrange
appropriate training for any existing cmployee who becomes disabled. 1t is the policy of the Group that the training, carcer
development and promotion of disabled persons should as far as possible be identical fo that of other employces.

Financial risk management

A description of the Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies and its exposure to foreign currency, inlerest
rate, credit and liquidity risk is given in note 44 to the financial statements.

Dividends

On 26 June 2019, Bestway Group Limited declared and paid a final ordinary dividend of £4.00 per share for the ysar ended 30
June 2018. This is in addition to the £6.00 per sharc interim dividend declared and paid on 21 May 2018 for the year ended 30
e 20 18. Together, this dividend totalled £10 million,

No dividend has yet been declared for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Political donations

Political donations made in the year tofalled £132,106 to the Consorvative party (2618: £101,155).
Other information

An indication of likely future developments in the business and particulars of significant events which have occurred since the
end of the financial year have been included in the Strategic report on page 9.

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors” report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there
is no relovant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware, and each Dircctor has taken ail the sieps that they
ought to have taken as & Director to make themselves aware of any relevant andit information and to establish that the
Company’s auditor is aware of that information.



Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305

Annual report and finanecial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Directors’ report (continued)
Auditors

KPMG LLP resigned as auditors on 24 January 2019. PricewaterhouscCoopers LLP were subsequently appointed as auditors
m accordance with Section 485 of the Companies Aot 2006 on 6 March 2019. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated
their willingness fo conlinue jn office and a resolution concerning their re-appoiniment will be proposed at the Annual Geners)
Meeting.

Going Concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concemn basis. The Group made a profit before tax of £227.7 million
(2018: £283.5 million) and has net assets of £1.7 biflion (2018: £1.9 billion) and total assots of £11.9 billion (2018: £14.4
billion). Additionally, the Group generated cash of £474.5 million (2018: £45.7 million) in the financial year ended 30 June
2019.

The Directors have also reviewed the detailed budgets and cash flow forecasts for the businesses and also considered the
liquidity requirements of the basking operations and belisve that the group has access to sufficient financial resources to enable
it to continue its operations and meet its liabilities as they fall due for at feast 12 months from the date of approval of these
financiat statements,

The Company financial statements have also been prepared on 4 going concern basis. The Company nade a profit before tax
of £4.0 million and has net assets of £578.0 million. This relates predominately to an investment in Bestway (Holdings)
Limited. The Directors cousider that this will enable the Company to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future by meoting its liabilities as they fall due for payment.

Based on these indications the Directors bolieve that it remains appropriate lo prepare the consolidated and company financial
slatements on a going concemn basis.

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors ere responsible for preparing the Amiual Report and the financial statoments i accordance with applicable law
and regulation,

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have
prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFR Ss) as adopted by
the Europeas Union and company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounling Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law).
Under Company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give e true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company for that period.
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to:

*  select suitable accounting policies and then apply then consistently;
state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the group [inancial
statements and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101, have been followed for the Company
financial statcments, subject 1o any meterial departures disciosed and expiained in the financial statements;

*  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonsble and prudent; and

*  prepaie the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group and
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy al any time the financial position of the Groug and Company
and enable them 1o ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companics Act 2006.

The financial statements on pages 16 to 141 were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 December 2019 and signed on its
behalf by

Lord Z: M Chouirey CBL, SI Pk, BA (HHons), FCA
Group Chief Executive

19 December 2019
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Bestway Group Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion:

¢  Bestway Group Limited’s group financial statements and company financial staternents (the “financial
statements”) give a true and feir view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 3o June
2019 and of the group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended;

» the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the Furopean Union;

s the company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (nited Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

«  the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006,

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report and financial statements (the “Annual
Report™), which comprise: the consclidated and company statements of financial position as at 30 June 201g; the
consolidated income statement and statement of comprehensive Income, the consolidated cash flow statement, and
the consolidated and company statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notesto the financial
statemeats, which include a deseription of the significant aceounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in aceordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (*ISAs (UK)") and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in the UX, which includes the FRC's Etlilcal Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibitities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern
[SAs (UK) require us to report to you when:

o thedirectors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or

» the directors have not disclosed in the financial staternents any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the group’s and company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the
group’s and company’s ability to continue as a going concern, For example, the terims on which the United Kingdom
may withdraw from the European Union are not clear, and it is difficult to evaluate all of the potential implications
on the group’s trade, customers, suppliers and the wider economy.



Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Bestway Group Limited (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon, The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the
financial stateiments does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assvrance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibilily is to read the other information and, in
doing so consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or ctherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent
material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conciude whether there
is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities,

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by
the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK} require
us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic
Report: Group Chief Executive’s Review and Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 June 2019 is consistent with
the finaneial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategie Report: Group Chief Executive’s
Review and Directors' Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the andit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Sratement of Directors’ Responsibilities sel out on page 12, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they
deterinine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financisa} statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidato the group or the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. :

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staternents as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that ineludes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs {(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influance the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website
at: www.fre.org.uk/suditorsresponsibilities. This deseription forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s mernbers as a body in
aceordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do net, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Bestway Group Limited (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if; in our opinion:

*  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

*  adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

~8u & Woollson {Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Uxbridge
19 December 2019

15



Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Nofe

Revenve 5
Cost of sales

Interest income 6
Interest expense 7

Net intercst Income

Gross wrifte: premium &
Premiwn ceded to reinsurer 8

Net written premiwms

Gross benefits and claims paid
Claims ceded to reinsurer

oo

Movemenl in technical
provisions

Net benefits and clalias

Fee, commission and
brokerage mcomne

Fee, commission and
brokerage expense

Net fee and commission
income

10

1

Gross profit

Dividend income from

investmrents

Other operating income 12
Gains and losses on 13
investments

Other gaing and losses

Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Credit impairment losses

Share of profits of associates

net of tax

Other operating expenses

Total operating pratit i4

Finance income 16
Finance expense 17

Net finance expense

Underlying profit before
taxation before adjusting
items

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2059

Trading Total

Trading Banking Total Group Banking  Consolidated
Group Group  Consolidated (restated) Group (restated)
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
3,447,911 - 3,447,911 3,224,375 - 3,224 375
(2,948,412) - (2,948,412)  (2,717,961) - (2717961)
499,499 - 499,499 506,414 . 506,414
- 736,695 736,695 - 776,133 776,133

. (392,359) (392,359) - (383394) (383,394)

- 344,336 344,336 - 392,739 392,739

. 22,048 22,048 . 20,804 20,804

- (11,668) (11,668) - (1£,376) (11,376)

- 10,380 10,380 - 9,428 9,428

. (12,080) (12,050) - (11,619) (11,613)

- 7,748 7,748 - 8.367 8,367

- 282 282 - (718) (716)

- (4,020) (4,020} - {3.962) (3,962)

- 94,232 94,232 106,651 106,651

- (2,708) @,708) - 2,287 (2.287)

- 91,524 91,524 - 104,364 104,364
499,499 442,220 941,719 506,414 502,569 1,008,983
- 8,772 8,772 - 11,867 11,867

4,302 2,482 6,784 3,986 1,716 5,702

- 7,560 7,360 - 59,799 59,799

2,153 1,398 3,551 4,358 541 4,899
(18,898) - (18,898) (13,946) - (13,946)
(411,712)  (254,753) (666,465) (382,729)  (264,328) (647,057
- (33,205) (33,205) - (76,5608) (76,608)

- 2,899 2,899 - 2,600 2,600
G,716) . G710 (1,524} . (i,524)
71,634 177,373 249,007 116,559 238,156 354,715
69 - 69 34 - 34
21,391) ® (21,399) (21,948) - (21,948)
(21,322) 8) (21,330) (21,914) . (21,914)
50,312 177,368 221,677 94,645 238,156 332,801




Consolidated Income Statement (continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Note

Underlying profit before
taxation before adjusting
items

Adjusting itews:

Gain on acquisition 18
Intemational pension provision  /§

Profit before tax

Taxation 19

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Nou-controlling interests
Investors of UBL funds

Profit for the year

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Trading Banking Total

Trading  Banking Total Group Group  Consolidated
Group Group  Consolidated (restated) (restated) (vestated)
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
50,312 177,365 227,677 94,645 238,156 332,801
. . . 7,156 . 2,156

- - - - (56,470) (56,470)
50312 177,365 221,677 101,301 181,686 283 487
(27,811) (84,371) (112,182) (28,600) (53,685) (82,285)
22,501 92,994 115498 73,201 128,001 201,202
1,079 £3,888 54,967 38,552 72,468 11,020
21,422 38,211 60,333 34,649 55311 89,960

- 195 195 - 222 222

22,501 92,994 115,495 73,201 128,001 201,202

Details of the restatement are given in note 50.
The notes on pages 24 to 136 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Profit after taxation

[tems that will not be
reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:

Profit attributable to investors of
UBRBL funds

Gains on investments on equity
instrunments designated at FYOC]
- nst of tax

Remeasuremeat of net defined
benefit liability — niet of tax

Items that are or may be
reclassified subsequen@y to
profit or loss when specific
conditions have been mot:
Surplus / (loss) arisitg on
revaluation of fixed assets
Surplus / (loss) arising on
investments in sceurities es'at
FVOCI' - net of tax

Net loss on invesiments in debt
instruments classified as 'at
FVOCI' —net of tax

Exchange (loss) / gain on
translation of foreign operations

Other comprehensive (loss) for
the year

Total comprehensive (loss) /
income for the year

Tatal comprehensive (loss) /
income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Paront

Non-controlling intercsts

Total comprehensive (loss) /
income for the year

Nofte

40

47

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

"y , Trading Banking Total
TIGaflmg Bzg:fcmg c snli:(:'t“::: Group Group  Consolidated
roup reup on ate (restated) (restated) (restated)
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
22,501 92,994 115,495 73,201 128,001 201,202
- (195) (195) - (222) (222)

- 675 675 . - .

(582) 13,268 12,686 £,809 {1,533 276
(582) 13,748 13,166 1,809 {1,755 54

- (3,517) 3,517 - 44,177 44,177

o)) 8) (30) 551 (98,666) (98,115)

- (20,080) (20,080} - - -
(69,251)  (155,754) (224,965) (54,635) (145,203) (199,838)
(69,213)  (179,379) (248,592) (54,084)  (199,692) (253,716)
(69,79%5)  (165,629) (235424) (52,275) (201447 (253,722)
(47,294)  (72,635) (119,929) 20926  (73.446) {52,520)
(35,424) (45,990} (81,414) 12,149 (40,178) (28,029)
(11,870) (26,645) (38,515) 8,777 (33,268) (24 491>
(47,294) (72,635) (119,929) 20,926 (73,446} (52,520

Details of the restatement are given tn note 50.
The notes on pages 24 (o 136 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As ar 30 June 2019

Note
Nen-current assets
Gaodwill 21
Trading Group
Intangible assets 23
Property, pinnt and equipment 24
Investiment properly 25
Banking Group
Intangible asscts 23
Property, plant and equipment 24
Investment property 25
Reinsnrance assets
Investments in associates 27
Investments in financial assets 29
Lending to financial insfitutions and advances 31
Net deforred tax asset 39
Current nssets
Trading Group
Tax recoverable
Inventories 28
‘I'rade and other receivables 30
Cash and cash equivalents 32
Banking Group
Tax recoverable
Investments in financial assets 29
‘T'rade and other receivables 3
Lending to financial institutions and advances 31
Cash and cash equivalents 32
Assets classified as held for sale 20
TOTAL ASSETS
Current linbilities
Trading Group
Tax payable
Bank overdraft 32
Trade and cther payablos 33
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings 36
Provisions 18
Banking Group
Bank overdraft 32
Trade and other payables 33
Deposits and other accounts 35
Payabie to investors of UBL funds
Bills payable
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings 36
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 20
Provisions 38

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 1003303
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

At 30 June

At 30 June 2018
2019 (restated)
£000 £000
141,711 173,487
400,088 432,221
600,500 681,017
116,442 114,612
7,445 9,175
253,231 318,390
15,919 19,454
10,262 11,396
14,371 23,693
1,942,928 2,894,350
1,715,703 2,222.911
39,629 5,866
5,258,229 6,906,572
18,323 17,030
284,908 328,786
249,154 258,259
154,181 170,121
99,257 136,590
2,465,728 2,390,652
148,757 299,973
1,764,113 2,647,665
1,337,440 1,229,870
20,895 -
6,642,736 7,478,946
11,900,985 14,385,518
2,360 3,355
107,148 140,649
541,204 582,764
111,403 91,658
8,365 22,588
2,085 6,201
263,530 287,079
7,109,108 8,205,299
9,536 7,487
143,886 95,844
967,260 1,734,563
20,016 -
14,760 16,977
9,300,661 11,195,664




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
As at 30 June 2019

Nofe
Non-current liabilities
Trading Group
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings 36
Preference shares 36
Net deferred tax liabilities 39
Net employee benefits 40
Provisions 38
Banking Group
Other financial liabilities 34
Deposits and other accounts 35
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings 36
Subordinated lodns 37
Net employce benefits 40
TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL NET ASSETS
Equity
Share capital 46
Revaluation reserve
Merger difference reserve
Statutory reserve
Reserve pertaining to UBL funds
Translation reserves
Retained eamings
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Non-controfling Interests 47

TOTAL EQUITY

Details of the restatement are given in note 50.

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Anmuial report and financia) statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

At30 June

At 30 June 2018
2019 (xrestated)
£000 £000
176,786 275,141
58,178 58,178
122,810 125,044
7,475 9,611
3,419 -
21,154 26,201
299.693 535,828
174,333 165,605
49,202 -
2,112 62,043
915,162 1,261,651
10,215,823 12,457,315
1,685,162 1,528,203
10 10
239,276 265,196
3,165 3,165
226,635 217,273
6,884 4,973
41,626 134,002
638,469 661,567
1,156,056 1,286,186
529,106 642,017
1,685,162 1,928,203

The notes on pages 24 to 136 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statoments.

These financial statements were approved by the Bosrd of Directors on 19 December 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

‘9"‘;’-:‘—&—-5__« e e g
Lord Z M Choudrey CBE, SI Pk, BA (Hons), FCA
(Chref Executive)

M Y Sheikh
(Director}
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the pear ended 39 June 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adiustments for:

Share of profit of assaciates
Finance income

Finance costs

One off gain on acquisition
Other gains

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Aumortisation of intangiblc assels

Profit on disposal of property, piant and
equipment

Profit on disposal of investment property
(Decrease) / increase in provisions
{Decrease) / increase in retirement benefits
Impairment of goodwill

Impairment of intangible assets

Net cash inflow from operating activities
before movements in working capital

Decrease / {increase) in inventories
Decrease / (increase) in receivables )
Decrease / (inorease) in lending lo financial
institutions and advances

(Decrease) / increase in payables

Increase / {decrease) in bills payable
Inorease / (decrcase) in deposits and other
accounts

Decrease in investimeats

Tax paid

Net cash inllow from eperating activities

Cash flows from Investing activities
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant end
equiputent

Proceeds on disposa! of investment property
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investment property

Purchase of intangible assets

Acquisition of subsidiary net of cash
Repayment of borrowings from third parlies
Borrowings from related parties
Borrowings from subordinated foan
Dividends reccived from Banking Gronp

Net cash (outfiow) from investing activities

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 hine 2019

Trading  Banking Total

Trading Banking Total Group Group  cashflow
Group Group cashilow 2018 2018 2018

Notd 2019 2019 2019| (vestated) (restated) (restated)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

50,312 177,365 227,677 101,801 181,686 283,487

27 - 2,899 (2,899) - (2,600) (2,600)
Ig (69) - (3] 34 - (34)
17 21,391 - 21,391 21948 - 21,948
50 - - -l (7,156) - (7.156)
(2,153) (1,398} (3.551) (4,358) 541) (4,899)

24 45,686 14,653 60,339 42,182 17,117 39,299
23 38,671 3,509 42,180 39,040 3,805 42,845
{11 - 111y (1.224) - (1,224)

(58 - (58) (892) - (852)
(11,973) (39327) (50,400) 2,747y  (55,624) (58,371
(2,836) (53,215) (56,051) (213) 4,528 4,315

21 3,258 - 3,258 10,055 - 10,055
23 95 - 95 1,123 - 1,123
143,113 98,688 241,801] 199,525 148,371 347,896
30,236 - 30,236 (28,636) - (28,636)
1,896  (22,025) (20,129) (46998) (42,899) (89,897)

- 341,619 341619 - (OBT25) (923,725

(29,148) 58,880 29,732 61,745  (81,872) (20,127)

- 81,048 81,048 - (13,539)  (13,539)

- 755,326 755326 - 534,513 334,513

- (361,091) (361,091) - 1,344,701 1,344,701

146,007 952,444 1,098,541 185,636 965,550 1,151,186
27,213y (76,727} (103,940)| (45298) (102,767) (148,065)
118,884 875,717  994,601) 140,338 862,783 1,003,121
3,680 6,266 92,946 4,608 10,622 15,230

- 1,572 1,572 5412 2,182 7,594

(46,804)  (23,741) (70,545)| (125,097) (41,801) (166,898)

- “mmn “7n (38) (3,479 (3.517)

(7,082  (3,618) (10700)] {1,829)  (6,886)  (8,71%)

- “ -1 (6,653) - (6,653)

(52,306) (387,304) (439,610)] (72,188) (630,990) (703,178)

116 - 116 51 - 51

- 57,861 57,861 “ - -

43,131 - 43,131] 63361 - 63,361
(7,075)  (19,998) (27,073)| (66,236) (39,362) (99,598)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

For the period ended 30 June 2019

Bestway Group Linited
Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statoments
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Trading  Banking Total
Trading Banking Total]  Group Group  cashflow
Group Group cashflow, 2018 2018 2018
Notg 2019 2019 2019 (restated)  (restated) (restated)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £0600

Cash flows from financing activities
Divideads paid 1o Trading Group - {43,131)  (43,131) - (63,361)  (63,361)
Dividends paid to owners of the parent (4,000) - &,000) (6,000) - 6,000
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest (16,182) (29,664) (45,846) (20,956)  (43,578)  (64,534)
Interest received 69 - 69 34 - 34
Interest paid (21,391 - @139 (21,048 - (21,948
Proceeds ftom the issue of shares - 2,908 2,908 - 1,092 1,092
Net cash (outflow) from financing activitles (93,694) (399,330) (493,024} (121,007) (736,837) (B57,844)
Net increase / (decrense) in cash and cash 18,115 456,389  474,504| (40905) 86,584 45679

cquivalents

5:::‘ and cash equivalents at beginaing of 29472 1,213,669 1253,141| 70,653 1350390 1421043
Effect of foreign cxchange rate changes (554) (344,703) (345257)  (276) (213,305) (213,581
Chash and eash equivalents at end of year 47,033 1,335355 1,382,388 29472 1,223,609 1,253,141

Details of the restatement arc given in note 50.

The notes on pages 24 to 136 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes

1. General information

Bestway Group Limited (the “Company”) is a private Company limited by shares, incorporated on 9 October 2017, domiciled
and registered in England in the UK under the Companies Act 2006. The registored number is 11003305 and the registered
address is 2 Abbey Road, Park Royal, Londen NW10 7BW.

The Group financial statements gonsolidate those of the Company and its subsidiarics (logether referred to as the “Group™)
and equity account the Group’s interest in associates. The parent Company financial statements present information about the
Company as & separate entity and oot as a Group.

The Group Bnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the EU ("IFRSs™). The Directors have elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in accordance with FRS
101: Reduced Disclosnres Frauework, theso are presented on pages 137 to 141. These financial statements have also been
prepared in accordance with Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies using IFRS. These ffiancial statemenis have also
boen prepared in accordance with IFRS Interpretaiions Commiftee interpretations (IFRIC).

The accounting policies set oul below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consisteatly to all years presented in these
Group financisl statements.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the application of these accouuting policies that have
signiificont effect on the financial statemscnts that could be subject to material adjustment in the fitwre are discussed in note 51.

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, and rounded to the nearest £1,000, becauss that is the currency of
the primary econonic environment in which the Company operates.

2. Adoption of new and revised standards and other proncuncements
Interpretationr and amendments IFRSs gffective for the current pear

The following new standards, interpretations of existing stendards and other reporting pronouncements have been issued and
are mandatory for the Group for the first time for the year ended 30 Junc 2019. The application of the amendments has hadno
material impact, except for IFRS © which is detailed below, on the emounts recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements. However additional disclosures have been made where required.

1FRS 9 Financial instroments

IFRS 15 Revenue from coniracts wilth customers

Annual Improvements io IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle (Amendments to IFRS 1 and LAS 28)

IAS 40 (amendments): Transfers of Investment Property

IFRIC 22 Foreign Curmrency Transactions and Advance Consideration

IFRS 1 regarding short term exemptions covering transition provisions of IFRS7, IAS19 and IFR310

IAS 28 amendment, regarding measuring investment in joint ventires and associate through profit or loss (FVTPL)

IFRS 5 is a new acconnting slandard that is offective for the year ended 30 June 2015 and have not had a material impact on
the timing of revenue recognition, the results or financial position of the Company and hence no transition note has been
presented. There are no otlier amendinents to accounting standards, or TFRIC interprefations that are effective for the year
ended 30 Juno 2019 that have had a material impact on the Group.

The Trading Group has adopted IFRS 9 by updating the classification and measurement of its financial instruments, where
applicable, and this is reflected ia aote 4.
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Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statemenis
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes (confinued)

2. Adoption of new and revised sfandards and other pronouncements (continued)

Interpretations and amendinents IFRSs gffective for the current year — Banking Graup specific

IFRS 9: Financilal Instrumenis (effective date period beginning 1 January 2018): The Banking Group (*Bank") has adopted
IFRS 9 as issued by the LASB in July 2014 with a date of {ransition of 1 July 2018, As permitied by the transitional provisions
of IFR8 9, the Group has opted for modified retrospective approach and has not restated comparative figures. Any adjustments
fo the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities at the date of transiticn were recognised in the opening rotained
eamings and other reserves at the beginning of the current year without restating the comparative figures.

Consequently, for notes diselosures, the consequential amendmeonts to IFRS 7 disclosures as a result of adoption of IFRS 9
havo also only been applied to the current year. The comparalive year notes disclosures repeat those disclosures made in the
prior year.

The adoplion of IFRS 9 has resulted in changes in the accounting policies for recognition, classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilitics and impairment of financial assets. [FRS 9 also significantly amends other standards
dealing with financinl instroments such as IFRS 7 *Financial Instruments: Disclosures’.

The disclosures refating to impact as a result of adoption of IFRS 9 on the Banking Group aze sot out in note 3. Further details
of the specific IFRS 9 accounting policies applied in the current year (as well as the previous IAS 39 accounting policies
applied in the comparative year) are described in note 4,

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs and
IFRIC's that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 16: Leases (effective 1 January 2019)

Annuaf Improvements to iFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle (effective 1 January 2019)

IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over income tax treatments” (effective 1 January 2019)

IFRS 9 (amendment) Prepayment features with negative compensation (effective 1 Jannary 2019)
IAS 28 (amendment) Long term interests in associales, joint ventures (effective 1 January 2019)
IAS 19 (amendment) Plan amendments, settloments or curtailments (effective | January 2019)

. » & @0

Except for [FRS §6, the impact of the above has been assessed as insignificant by the Directors,

[FRS [6 ‘Leases’ ‘(effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16 roplaces existing leasing
guidance, includiag IAS 17 “Leases’, IFRIC 4 *Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC-15 ‘Operating
Leases- Incentives® and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease”.

IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees, A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset
repregenting its right to use the vnderlying asset and a lease liability represonting its obligation to make lease payments. There
are recognition exemptions for shori-term keases und leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the curreat
standard i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operaling leases.

The Group has performed an extensive review across all of its components which are expected to have a material IFRS {6
impact, The status on the impact assessment for cach component of the Group is provided below.

Component Approach to IFRS 16 | Expected adjustment to | Expected impact on assets and
opening retained linbiities
earnings

Reduction of c£1.0m Increase of c£6.6m in right-to-use

assots and increase of c£6.9m in lease

Bestway Wholesale Linited Using modified

retrospective approach by

Bestway Retail Limited

Well Pharmacy

United Bank Limited

adjusting the opening
reserves as at 1 July 2019
rather than full
retrospective application
would include prior year
comparatives to be
restated.

liability

Reduction of c£1.9m

Increase of c£74.0m in right-to-use
assets aid increase of ¢£74.0m in
lease liability

Reduction of ¢c£1.0m

Increase of c£85.0m in right-to-use
assets and increase of c£85.0m in
lcase liability

Reduction of e£2.6m

Increase of ¢£34.0m in right-to-use
assefs and increase of ¢£35.0m in
fease Hability

Total Group

Reduction of c£5.6m

Increase of c£199.6m in right-to-nse
assets and increase of c£200.9m in
lease liability
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Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes (continued)

2. Adoption of new and revised standards and other pronouncements (canfirued)
Interpretations and amendments IFRSy effective for the curvent year — Banking Gronp specific (continued)

The expected adjustment to retained camings canses no hindrance on the Group's ability to pay dividends to sharcholders.
The right-of-use asset is initially measurcd at cost (being the initial lease lizbility plus any associated direct costs) and
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any re-measurement of the
lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequentty, the iease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others.

As a resull, the profile of costs recognised in the consolidated income

statement will materially change in comparison to IAS 17 as follows:

-— Depreciation will increase due to the recognition of right-of-use assets

— Existing rental costs will reduce — the only rental costs that remain will relate to low value assets or short-term leases
— Finance costs will increase due to the unwinding of the discount on the discounted lease liability

Whilst the totaf cash outllow for leases will not change, the classification of cash flows will be affected as operating lease
payments under 1AS 17 are preseated as operating cash flows, whereas under the IFRS 16 model, the lease payments will be
split iuto a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash flows.

In preparing for the transition to IFRS 16, the Group has been developing new controls, policies and governance procedures in
several areas that contribute to the calculation of the overall lease liability and right-of-use asset. These include the
identification of any embedded leases, accounting [or lease modifications, as well as electing to not apply IFRS 16 to short
term leasos (less than a year) and low value assets in line with the practical expedients offered under IFRS 16.

Key judgements have also been addressed, including the assessment of how reasonably certain it is considered to be that a
lease option {cxtension, lermination or purchase) will be exercised, and the determination of an appropriate discount rate used
to present value the Jease Liability and to initially measure the right-of-use asset.

With regards to these, the Group has determined that the lease term will correspond to the duration of the contracts except in
cases where the Group is reasonably certain that it will exercise contraciual extonsion or break options. The historical discount

rates applied have beou based on the incremental borrowing rate where the implicit rate in the lease is not readily dsterminable,

Al relevant accouating policies will be updated (o reflect the changes under IFRS 16 in the consolidated [nancial statements
for the year ending 30 June 2020,

3. Significant accounting policies

Basis of acconnting

The financial statoments are prepared on the historical cost basis except the following assets and liabilities which use the
following measurement basis:

Item Measurement basis

Financial instraments Fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL) or as fair value through OCI (FVOCI)
Investment property Fair value

Disposal gronps Fair value less costs 1o sell

Net defined benefit liability Present value of the defined benefit obligation determined through actuarial valuation
Property {(Banking Group) Fair value

Going concern

The Group financiai statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The consalidated statement of financial position
hasnetassets of £1.7 billion (2018; £1.9 billion). The Group made a consolidated profit after tax of £115.5 million (2018: £201.2
miflion) in 2019, The Group has significant cash and bank bafances net of overdrafis, of £1 .4 biltion (2G18: £1.3 billion) of which
£1.3 billion (2018: £1.2 billion) relate to the Banking Group. The Directors have also reviewed the detailed budgets and cash
flow forscasts for the businesses and also considered the liquidity requiretionts of the banking operations and believe that the
group has access to sufficient financial resources fo enable it 1o continug its operations aud meet its liabilities as they fall due
for at least 12 months from the date of spproval of these financial statements.

26



Bestway Group Limiied

Registered number 11003365

Annual roport and financial statements
For the year cuded 30 June 2019

Notes (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Busis of consolidution
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Gronp controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
retums from its involvement with the entity and can affect those retums through its power over the entity. In assessing control,
the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights (hat are currently exercisable. The acquisition date is the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the convolidated financial
statements [rom the date that control commences unti! the date that control ceases, Losses applicable to any non-controlling
interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-conirolling interests even if doing so caises the non-controlling interests to
have a deficit balance,

Assoclafes

Agssociales arc those entilies over which the Group has significant influence over the financial and operating policies.
Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds between 20 and 50 per cent of the voting power of another
entity.

Assaciates are accounted for using the equity method (equity accounted investees) and are initially recognised at cost except
for in the individual finncial statemonts of the invastor, where this is held a1 cost less any impairmenl tosses. The Group's
investment includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of eny accumulated impairment fosses. Thoe consolidated financiat
statements include the Group's share of the tolal comiprehiensive income and equity movements of equity accounted investees,
from the date that sigaificant influence commences until the date that significant influcico ceases. When the Group's share of
losses exceeds its interest m an equity accounted investee, the Group’s carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of an investee.

Change in subsidiary ownership and loss of control
Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as cquity transactions.

Where the Group losos control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities are derecognised along with any related NCI and other
componeonts of equity, Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the incowme statement. Any interest rotained in the former
subsidiary is measured at fair value when coatrol is lost.

Business combinations with entities under common control

Business combinations arising from the eoquisition of entities that are under the control of the shareholders that controls the
Group are nccounted from the date of transfer. The asscts and liabilities acquired aro recognised at the carrying amounts
recognised in the acquriee’s financial statements. The Group elects to present the comparative figures from the previous
consolidate financial siatements to present the combining entities as if they have historically always been one consolidated
entity. The difference between the consideration paid and the book valuc of the assets and liabilities acquired is reflected as a
merger reserve in tho statement of chauges in equity.

Transactions eliminated on consoltdation

Intra-gronp balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are
climinated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are climinated in the same way as unrcalised gains, but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised in profit or loss is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained intorest
and (ii) the previous camrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), iess liabilities of the subsidiary. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or lisbilities of the subsidiary (i.c. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the [air value on initia] recognition of an investment in an associate or
a joint venture,

27



Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305
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Notes (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of conselidation (continued)

Business combinations

Business combinations (other than those with entities under common control) are accounted for by applying acquisition
acecounting principles from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.

The assets and liabilities and contingent liabilitics of a subsidiary are measured at fair value at the date of acquisition.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the scpurately ideatifiable net assets acquired is recognised as
gaodwill.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to align the accounting policies to those used
by the Group.

For acquisitions on or after 1 January 2010, the Group measurcs goodwill at the acquisiticn date as:

the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus

the recognised amouut of any non-controlling interests in the eequirce; plus
the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquirec; less

the net fair value of the identifiable asscts acquired and labilities acquired

Positive goodwill is recognised in the statement of financini position within intangible assets and is deemed to have an indefinite
life and hence not amortised but tested annuaily for impairment.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in the income statement. Costs related to the
acquisition, other than those asscciated with the issuc of debt or equity securities, aro expensed as ineurred, as required by
IFRS 3.

Any contingent consideralion payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date, If the contingent consideration is
classified as equity, it is not remeasured, and settiement is sccounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in the income statement,

On a Iransaction-by-transaction basis, the Group eleots to measure non-controlling interests, which have both present
ownership interests and are entitied to a proportionate share of net assets of the acquiree in the eveat of liquidation, either at
its fair value or at its propartionate interest in the recognised amount of the identifiable net assets of the acquirce at the
acquisition date. All other non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Fareign currency

The presentation and functional currency of Bestway Group Limiled (the Company) is pounds sterling. Whilst the
presentational cutrency of the Group is pounds sterling the functional currency of subsidiaries and associates wifl be dependent
on the primary economic environment in which they operate.

Transactions in foreign ourrencies are trunslated to the respeclive finctional currencies of Group entitics at the foreign exchange
rate rifing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet
datc are retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchatge rafe ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differcncos
arising on lranslation are recognised in the income statement. Nou-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreipn currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary asscts
snd liabililies denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are retranslated to the functional enmrency at foreign
cxchange rates ruling at the dates the fair valne was determined.

The assets and lisbilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation, are
translated to the Group’s presentationai curreney at foreign exchange rafes rufing at the balance sheat date. The revenues and
expensos of foreign operations are translated at an average rate for the year where this rate approximates to the foreign exchange
rates mling at the dates of the transactions. Exchange differences arising from this translation of foreign operations are reported
us &n item of other comprehensive income and seoumulated in the translation reserve or non-controlling interest.

The key foreign exchange cumency rate used by the Group to translate the foreign operations for the consolidated financial
statements process are presented below:

Functional currency for banking, insurance and cement Prescntation Financial Average | Year end
business currency | year ended rate used | rate used
Pakistani rupee Pounds sterling |30 Junc 2019 176.59 207.67
Paldistani nipee Pounds sterling 130 June 2018 148.83 160.76
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Notes (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill is stated at cost less auy accumulated impairment losses and is deemed to have an indefinite life. Goodwilt is allocated
to cash-gencrating units and is not amortised bul is tosted annually for impairment. In respect of equity accounted investees,
the carrying amount of goadwitl is trcluded iu the carrying amouut of the investment in the investee.

Intangible assets

intangible assets scquired on fhe acquisition date are sfated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment loss. Expenditure an intemally generated goodwill and brands is recognised in the income statement as an expense
as incurred.

Ameortisation of intangtble assets

Amertisation is charged to administrative expenses in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and goodwill are
systematically tested for impuirment at each balance sheel date. Gther intangible assets are amortised from the date they are
available for use. The estimated uscful lives are as follows:

Pharmacy licenses 20 yours
Software 3 - 10 years
Other intangible assels 4 - 10 years

Intangible assets - Interrally developed intangibles

Expenditure on the research phase of projects to develop new intangible assels is recognised as an expense as incurred. Cosis
that arc directly sttribntable to a project’s development phase are recognised as intangible assets, provided they meet the
following criteria:

the development can be measured reliably;

the project is technically feasibie and viable;

the Group intends to, and has sufficient resonrces to complete the project;
the Group can use or sell the intangible; and

the intangible will genemto probable future economic benofits.

Revenue recognition

IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 "Revenuc" and IAS 11 "Construction Coniracts” and related interpretations. IFRS 15 addresses
revenue recognition for contracts with customers as well as treatment of incremental costs incurred in acquiring a contract with
a oustomer.,

TFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for entitics to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Specifically, the siandard introduccs a 5-step approach to vevenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the coutract.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

Step 4: Allocate the Uransaction price to the performance obligations in the conlract.
Step 5: Recognise revenue wihen (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation,

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when {or as) a performancoe obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the performance obligation is transferred to the castomer.

IFRS 15 permits either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach for adoption. The Group and Company have
adopted the standard using the modified retrospective approach, which means that the cunulative impact of the adoption, if
any, is recognised in unappropriated profitin the period of initial application and comparatives are not restated.

The application of IFRS 15 did not have any material impact on revenue recoguition policy of the Group and Company and

therefore, the cumulative impact of the adopiion on roteined eamings is rot matorial and accordingly the opening reserves as
at 1 July 2018 is not adjusted. Comparative figures are presented nnder IAS 18 which are substantially the same as the abave.
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3. Significant accounting policies {continued)

Revenue recoguition (continsed)
Hholesale reverive

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the invoiced amounts
receivable for goods provided 1o customers in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related
taxes. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar afllowances. Revenue is recognised whea
the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the customer, which is at the point of sale (or an despetch for delivered
ifems which is generally the same day as delivery).

Pharmacy revenue

Revenue includes cash sales and goods sold on credit, exclusive of VAT and any discounts and rebates. NHS sales, included
in Group revenue are estimated for May to June by reference to the number of items dispensed, the expected cost of dmgs,
together with the remuneration element published by the National Health Service. Revenue is recognised at the time services
are provided by the pharmacy and medicines are dispensed.

Ceumentt revenie

Revenne is recognised when or as perforimance obligations are satisfied by transferting control of 4 promised goods or service
to & customer. Revenue is measured at fair value of the cansideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates and
govornmenl fevies.

Interest income

Mark-up, retur and interest on performing advances and investments is recognised based on the offoctive yield of the asset
over the tenn of the advances and interest caming investments. Where debt securities are purehased at a premium or discount,
such premimn / discount is amortised through the income statement over the remeining period of maturity of the debt securities.

In case of Murabaha financing, mark-up is the agreed profit on cost plus basis for deferred sale of goods under which one party
purchases goods from a supplier and sells the goods 1o another party at cost price plus an agreed mark-up. Mark-up income is
recogniscd on # straight-line basis over the period of the instalments.

Gains and losses on tnvestenis

Translation gains and losses are recognised in the income statement, except those arising on translation of foreign currency
seoutities classified as FVOCI and on iranslation of the net investment in foreign branches and snbsidiaries which are taken to
reserves until the disposal of the net investment, at which time these are recognised in the income statement,

Rebate income on home vemitiances

Rebate income on home remittances relate to income from services provided by the Banking Group during the year and
recognised on an accrual basis when the services are rendered, and no significant uncerlaintios remain regarding the recovery
of consideration due,

Insurence revenue

Premiun received under a policy is recognised as written from the date of attachment of the policy to which it relates. Premium
income under a policy is recognised over the year of insurance from inceplion to expiry ag follows;

(a) For direet business, evenly over the year of the policy;

(b) For proportional reinsurance business, evenly over the year of underlying insurance policies; and

(c) Tor non-proportional reinsurance business, in accordance with the pattem of the reinsurance service.

Where the patiern of incidence of risk varies over the year of the policy, premium is recognised as revenue in accordance with
the pattern of the incidenco of risk.

Administrative surcharge is recognised as premium at the time the policies are written.

Commission income from re insurers is recognised at the time of issuance of the underlying insuwrance policy by the Banking
Group. This income is defined and accounted for as revenue in accordance with the pattem of recognition of the reinsurance
preminm {o which it relates. Profit commission, if any, which the Banking Group may be entitled to under the terms of
reinsurance is recognised on an accrual basis.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continiied)

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established. Gain / loss on sale / redemption of
investments is 1aken to income statement in the year of sale / redemption.

Profit on financial assets held at amortised cost is recognised on & time proportion basis taking into account the effective yield
on the invesiment.

Interest income on bank deposit accounts is accounted for on an accrual basis,
Investment property

Revenue from investment properly represents the gross value of rents receivable. Rental income from opemting leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the refovant lease. Initial direct costs incuirred in negotiating and arranging
operaling leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Refrospective rebales and discorns

The Group’s subsidiaries negotiate rebates and discounts directly with suppliers. These rebates and discounts are accounted
for once the Directors are confident that the group is cutitied to the discount. Supplier aliowances and oredits are recorded as
a reduction to cost of sales as they are eamned according to the underlying agreement. Allowances consist primarily of
promotional allowances, quantity discounts and payments under merchandising agreements, Amounts received under
promotional or other merchandising allowance agreements that require specific performance obligations to be met are
recognised when the perforinsnce is satisfied, the amount is fixed and determinable and the collection is reasonably assured.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to recoive the dividend is established.
Finance income and expense

Finance income and expense arc recognised in the income statement using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest
rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts the estimates future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial
assel or financial lability (or, where appropriate, a shorter year) to the carrying amount of the financial assel or finzncial
lability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms
of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses.

The calculation of the effective intcrest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points paid or received that ure an integral
part of the effective interest rate. Transaction cosis include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of a financial asset or financial lisbifity.

N

Finance income and expense presented in the consolidated sta t of comp: ive income include:
- Interest on financial assets aad financial liabilities meassred at amortised cost caleulated on an effective interest
basis; and
- Interest on securitics classified as FVOC] calculated on an eflective interest basis

Fair value changes on other derivatives held for risk management purposes, and other financial assets and financial linbilities
carried al FYTPL are presented in net income from other financtal instruments at FYTPL in the income statoment and OCI.

Fees, commission and brokerage income

Fees, commission and brokerage income are recognised when the service has been rendered, excopt when thoss fees are an
adjusiment to the yield on the refated asset, in which case they are amorlised over the expected maturity of the asset using the
effective interest rate method.

Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating

loasss, Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the incomoe statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease, Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the iotal lease expense.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leasex (continned)

Leases in which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased usset are classified as
finance leases, Where land and buildings are held under leases the accouniing trcatment of the iand is considercd separately
from that of the buildings. Peased assets acquired by way of {inauce leass are stated at an amonnt equal to the lower of their
fair value and the present value of the minimun lease payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and
less accumulated impairment losses.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis aver the term of the relevant fease. Initiaf direct
ocosts inourred in negotiating and arranging an operating leasc are added to the carrying amount of the lcased assct and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Taxation

Tax on the Group’s income for the year comprises cutrent and deferrod tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expecied tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheot date, and any adjustment to tax payablie in reapect of previoes years.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differencos between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes snd the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: the initial
recognition of goodwill; (he initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable income other
than in a business combination, and differences relating 1o investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probabiy not
reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively ensacted at the balance sheet
date.

Within the Trading Group there are averseas undistributed earings of £206.3 million (2018: £24 5.1 million) which, if remitted
to the UK as dividends, would be subject to withholding tax in Pakistan. An assessable temporary difference oxists but, as the
parent entity is able to control the timing of distributions, no deferred tax liability has been recognised to the oxteat that these
profits are not expected to be distributed in the foresecable fulure.

Within the Banking Group there are ovetrseas undisttibuted earnings of £347.9 million (2018: £473.9 milkion) which, if remitted
to the UK as dividends, would be subject to withholding tax in Pakistan. An assessable temporary difference exists but, as the
parent entity is able to control the timing of distribufions, no deferred tax liability has been recognised to the extent that these
profits are not expected 1o be distributed in the foreseeable future.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised. For investment property that is measured at fair value deferred tax is provided at the
rate applicable to the sale of the property except for that part of the property that is depreciable and the Group’s business modet
is to consume substantially all of the value through use. In the latter case the tax rate applicable to income is used.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or eonstuctive obligation
as a result of a past event, that can be reliably measured, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to sefile the obligation, Provisions are detennined by discounting the expected future cash out flows at a pre-tax rale that
reflects risks specific to the liability if the impact of discounting is material,

Share capital

Crdinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly altributable to the issue of new ordinary shares are shown
it equity as & deduction form the proceeds.

Share premium

The amount receivable above the nominal value of ordinary sharos is recognised as share premium and classified as equity.
Reserves categorisaiion

Transiation reserve

The teanslation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the wranslation of the financial statements of
foreign operatious, as well as the effective portion of any foreign currency differences arising from hedges of a net investment
in foreign operations.
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3. Significant accounting pelicles {continued)
Reserves categorisation (continwed)
UBL Funds reserve

The resorve pertaining to UBL funds relates to the consolidated general reserve position on the mutual fiinds under management
of UBL Fund Managers Limited. This also includes UBL's own share pooling,

Statutory reserve

The statmtory reservo is in relation to the roguisition of State of Bank of Pakistan's Baunking Companies Ordinance, which
requires the transfer of certain percentage of profits to a statutory capital reserve to meet capital adequacy requirements.

Revaluation reserves

The revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation of property, plant and equipment immediately bofore its reclassification as
investment property and the revaluation of investment securities FVOCI.

Merger difference reserves

On 21 March 2018, the Company became the new holding company for the Group. This was affected through a share exchange,
with 993 ordinary share of £0.01 in Bestway Group Limited oxchanged for 71,070 ordinery shares plus 47,949 nil paid shares
in Bestway (Holdings) Limited, the previous holding company of the Group.

The accounting treatment for the group reorganisation is scoped out of IFRS 3, The introduction of the new holding company
was acoounied for ns a capital reorganisalion using the merger acconating principles prescribed. The use of merger accounting
principles has resulted in a merger difference reserve being the movement in equity reserves, excluding retained earmings, at
the time of change.in the ullimate parent company and resnlting nequisition of entities that are under the control of the
shareholders that controls the Group.

Inventaries

Inventories ave stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comnprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct
labour costs and those overheeds that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method across alt Group companies except for Bestway Retail Limited which
uses the First-In-First-Out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value represeats the estimated selling price less all estimated costs
of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution. Provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving
items,

Property, plant and eqieipment

Property, plant and equipment within the Trading Group is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful! lives, they are
accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.

Properties within the Banking Group are revalued by professionally qualified valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that
their net carrying value does not differ materially from their fair value, A surpius arising on revaluation is credited to the
surplus on revaluation of fixed assets account. Any deficit arising on subsequent revaluation of fixed assets is adjusted against
the batance in the above-mentioned surplus account. The surplus an revaluation of fixed assefs, fo the extent of incremental
depreciation, is transferred to unappropriated profit.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Depreciation is charged fo the
income stateinent for all property, plant aud equipment other than freehold and long leaschold land at rates caleulated to write
each asset down to its estimated residual value over ifs expected useful life as follows:

Freehold and long leasehold properties 2% straight lina

Short leaschold properties Over the term of the lease

Leasehold improvements Over the term of the lease

Plant and machinery 5 - 25% straight line or reducing balance dependent on the naturc of the asset.
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 10 - 25% reducing balance

Motor vehicles 20 - 25% reducing bafance

Assets in the course of construction represent the assets under development but not yet complete at the halance sheet date. All
such assets are held at cost and transferred to the relevant assel class on completion,

Assets in the course of constructions are not depreciated until they are completed and brought in 1o use. Borrowing costs are
capitalised with property, plant and equipment where refovant.

Depreciation miethods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually.
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3. Significant accounting paolicies (continued)
Investiment property

Investment property, which is property held fo earn rentais and/or for capital appreciation {inchiding property under
construction for such purposes), is stated at its fair value at the balance sheet date. Gains or |osses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment property ate included in the income statement in the year in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdeawn from use
and no future cconomic benefits are expected from Lhe disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecoguition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income
statement in the year in which the property is derecognised.

Rental income from investment property is accounted for as described in the revenve recognition accounting policy.

Financial instruments

IFRS 9 permits either & full retrospective or & modified retrospective approach for adoption. The Group has adopted the
standard using the modified retrospective approach for classification, measuromenl and impairmenl. This means that the
cutnulative impact, if any, of the adoption is recognised in unappropriated profit as of | July 2018,

The new standard requires the Group to assess the classification of financial assets on its statement of financial position in
accordance with the cash flow characteristics of the finencial assets and the relevant business madel that the Company has for
a specific class of financial assets,

Debt Instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer's perspestive, such as
loans, govemment and corporate bonds and trade receivables purchased from clients in factoring areangements without
recourse.

Classification and subsequent measuremont of debt instruments depend on:

i. the Group's business model for managing the asset; aud
ii. the cash flow characteristics of the asset,

Based on these factors, the Bank classifies ity debt instaments into one of the following three measurement catogories:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of prinoipal and interost (‘SPPY’), and that arc nof designated at FVPL, are mensured at amortised cost. The carrying amount
of these agsets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance recognised and measured as described in note 29, Interest
income from these financial assets is included in ‘Intorest income’ using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVQCT): Financial assets that are held for collestion of contractual cash
flows and for selling the assets, where the assets’ cash flows reproseat solely payments of principal and interest, and that are
not designated at FVPL, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gnins and Josses on the instrument’s amortised cost which are recognised in the income statement. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified [rom equity to income statement and
recognised in ‘Gain or Loss realised on safe of debt securities classified as FVOCD'. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in “Tntoreat income’ using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do ot meet the criteria for amartised cost or FVOC! are measurcd at fair valie
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and
isnot part of a hedging relationship is recognised in income statement and presented in the income statement within “Unrealised
(loss) / gain on revaluation of investments classified as FVPL’ in the period in which it arises, Interost income from these
financial assets is included in ‘Inferest income’ using the cfective intercst rate method.
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3. Significant accounting policies {continued)

Financial insfricments (continued)

Business model: The business model reflects how the Group manages. the essets in order to geuerate cash flows, That is,
whether the Group's objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for
trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of *other’ business medel and measured at FVPL. Factors
considered by the Grotip in determining the business model for a group of asscts include past experience on how the cash flows
for these assets were collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to key management personnel, how risks
are assessed and managed and how managers are compensated.

SPPI: Where thie business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractial cash flows and sell,
the Group assesses whether the financial instruments' cash flows represeat solely payments of principal and interest {the * SPPI
test’). In making this assessment, the Bank considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic fending
arrangement i.c. interest includes only consideration for the time valus of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a
profit margin that is consistent with a basic Iending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or
volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the relaled financia! asset is classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies debt investnents when anrd only when its business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting peried following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none occurred during the period.

Eguity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer’s porspective; that is, instraments that do
not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer’s net assets. Examples of equity
instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Bank subsequently mecasures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, except where the Bank's
managemont has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an cquity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Group’s policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCE when those investments are held for
purposes other than 1o generate investinent roturms, When this clection is wsed, fair value gains and losses are recognised in
OCI and are not subseguently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal, Empairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) are not reported scparately from other changes in fair valuo. Dividends, when represeuting a refurn on such investments,
continue to be recognised in income statenient as 'Dividend income on investments' when the Group’s right fo receive payments
is established,

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in the ‘Gains and losses on investments’ line in the income
statement.

Financial assels and financiel Labilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial {iabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financia!l assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Bank
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

At initial recognition, the Bank measures a firancial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a
financial asset or financial Hability not at fair value through profif or loss, transaction costs that are incremental and directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial assct or financial liability, such as lees and commissions. Transaction
costs of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the income statement,
Imarediately after initial recognition, an expected credit loss allowance (ECL} is recognised for financial asscts nieasured at
amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCE which results in an accounting loss being recognised
in the income statement when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of fnancial assels and liabilitics differs from the transaction price on initial recognition, the entity
recognises the difference as follows:

a) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. & Level 1
input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the difference is recognised as a
gain or foss,

1) In all other cases, the difference is deferred, and the timing of recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is delermined
individually, It is either amortised over the life of the instument and remaining amount, deferred unti! the instrument’s
fair valoe can be deiermined using market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.
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3. Significant accounting policies feontinued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities {continned)
Measurement methods

Amortised cost and effective intevest rate

The amortised cost is the amount al which the financial assct or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between
that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life
of the finauncial asset or financial Hability to the gross carrying amount of a financial assel (i.e. its amortised cost before any
impairment altowance) or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. The cefculation does not consider expected credit losses
and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are integral to the cffective
interest rate, such ns origination fees. For purchased or originated credir-impaired (‘POCI’) financial assets - assets that are
credit-impaired at initial recognition - the Bank calculates the credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calenlated based
on the amortised cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying amount and incosporates the impact of expeoted credit
fosses in estimated future cash flows.

When the Bank revises the estimates of {uture cash flows, the carrying amount of the respective financial assets or financial
liability is adjusted to reflect the new ostimate discounted using the original effective intercst rate. Any changes are rocognised
in the income statement,

Interest income on financial assels
Interest income is calcufated by applying the effective interest rale fo the gross carrying amount of financial assets, except for:

8} Purchased or ariginated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, for which the original credit-adjusted effective interest
rate is applied to the antortised cost of the financial asset.

b) Financia! assets that are not “POCI’ but have subsequently become credit-impaired (or *stage 3'), for which interest
revenue is calcuiated by applying the effective interest rate to their amortised cost (i.c. net of the expected credit loss
provision),

Impairment

The Group assesses ou a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss ("ECL’) associated with its debt instrument assets
carried al amortised cost and FVOCT and with the exposure arising from loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.
The Bank recognises a loss allowance for such losses at sach reporting date. The measuroment of ECL reflects:

- An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a ratige of possible outcomes;

- The time value of money; and

- Reasonable and supporiable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

MNote 44 pravides maro detail of how the expected credit loss allowance is measured.
Impairment of financial insiruments carried at amortised cost

The Group considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and securities held at amortised cost at both a specific
asset and a collective level. Afl individuslly significant loans and advances and investment securities held at amortised cost
are assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any
impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Loans and advances and debt securities held at amortised cost that are
not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and debt
securitios held at amortised cost with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses statistical modelling of historical trends of the probability of defaull, the
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incuryed and makes an adjustment if current cconomic and credit conditions are
such that the actual losses are likely 1o be greater or lesser than is suggested by historicat trends. Default rates, loss rates and
the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain
appropriate.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment (continned)

[mpairment losses on loans and receivables and debt sccurities classified at smartised cost are caleulated as the difference
between the carrying amount and tho present valve of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate,

Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement and reffected it an allowance account against [oans and receivables
or investment securities held at amortised cost. If an event ocourring after the impairment was recognised causes the amount
of impairment loss to decrease, then the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

Tmipatrment debi secrifries classified as FYOCT

The Group considers all available evidence of impairment, including observable market data or information ebout events
specifically relating to the securities which may result in a shortfall in recovery of future cash flows. These events may include
asignificant financial difficulty ofthe issuer, a breach of contract such as a default, bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
or the disappearance of an active market for the debt security becavse of financial difficultics relating to the issuer, information
about the issuer's liquidity, business and financial tisk exposures, level of and trends in default for similar financial assets,
nationsl and local economic conditions. While assessing for objective evidencoe of impairment, the Group considers the
performance of the underlying coltateral, changes in ¢redit rating, credit enhancements, default eveuts ete.

Impairment losses arc recognised in the income statement. §f an event occumring after the impairment was recognised causes
the amount of impairment loss to decrease, then the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through the income statenont.

Impairment of equily investments FVOCT

Equity investments FVOCI are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decling in their fair vate below their
cost. The determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates,
amaong other factors, the normal volatility in share price.

Tmpairment of invesiments in assoclales

The Group considers that a decline in the recoverable value of the investment in an essociale below its cost may be evidence
of impairment. Recoverable value is caloulated as the higher of [air value less costs to sell and valie in use. A impairment
lass is recognised when the recoverable vaiue falls below the carrying value and is charged to the income statement. A
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss, up to the cost of the investment in the associate, is credited to the income statement.

Tmpairment of non-financial assels

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets are reviewed at cach roporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. I€any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill, and
intangible assels that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for nse, the recoverable amount is estimated each
year at the same time.

Tmipairment of goodwill and otler intangible assets

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in wso and its fair value less costs to sell.
In assessing value in 1se, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment
testing, assels that cannot be tested Individuaily are grouped together iuto the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows fram continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of ofher assets or groups of assets (the “cash-
generating unit™). The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment tosting, is allocated to cash-
generating units, or (“CGU™). Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for the purposes of goodwill impairment testing,
CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are aggrepated so that the level at which impairment is tested reflects the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporling purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to groups of CGUs that are expected lo benefit from the synergies of the combination.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
[mpairment losses are recognised in the income statement with administrative expenses. Impairient losses recognised in
respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the
carying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro raila basis,

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is nat reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior
years are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if thero has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, An impairment loss is reversed
onfy to the extent that the assef’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that wonld have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities
Classification and subseguent measnurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for:

- Financial Yiabilities at fair value through profit or loss is applied 1o derivative financial instruments. Gains or losses on
these financial liabilitics are presented in the income statement.

- Financial guarantes contracts and loan commitinents,

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished (i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires).

Borrowings and deposits

Borrowings and deposits from banks and deposits fram customers are recorded at fair value which is the amount of proceeds
received,

Borrowings from finencial institutions also include securities sofd under repurchase agreemonts. Securities sold subject to a
repurchase agreement are continued to be recorded as investments since the risks and rewards associated with the security are
nat transferred while the amount of cash advanced is reported as borrowings from financial instiutions, The differential
between the sale price and the repurchase price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as an expense,

Deposits include remunerative and non-remuncrative deposits. Non-remunerative deposits are non-interest bearing whereas
the remuncrative deposits are of saving or term nature with interest component.

Madification and forbearance of loans

The Bank sometimes renegotiales or otherwise modifios the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this happens,
the Bank assesses whathor the new terms arc substantially different to the origittel terms. The Bank does this by considering,
antong others, indicators of financial difficulties including defaults on covenants, or significant concems raised by the Credit
Risk Department.

'If the terms are substantially different, the Bank derecognises the original financial asset and recognises a ‘new’ asset at fair
value and recaleulates a new offective interest rate for the assct. The date of renegotiation is consequentty considered to be the
date of initial recognition for impairment calculation pusposes, including for determining whether a significant increass in
credit risk has occurred. Howaover, the Bank also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is deemed to be credit-
impaired af initial recognition, especinlly in circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to
make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are also recognised in the income statemen! ss a gain
or loss on derecognition.

If the terms are not substanliaily different, the renegotiation or medification does not resuld in derecognition, and the Group
recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset and recogniscs a modilication gain
or loss in the income slateinent. The new gross carrying amount is recaleulated by discounting the modified cash flows at the
ariginal effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets).

It is the Bank’s policy to monitor madified and forborne loans ta help cusure that futtre payments continne te be likely to
occur. Derecognition decisions and classification between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are determined on a cass-by-case basis. 1{ these
provedures identify a loss in relation to a loan, it is disclosed and managed gs an impaired Stage 3 modified and forborne asset
uptil it is collected or written off,

From | July 2018, when the loan has been rencgotiated or modified but not derecognised, the Bank also reassesses whether
there has beer a significant increase in credit risk as per Bank's poliey. The Bank also considers whether the assets should be
classificd as Stage 2 or Stage 3. Once an assed has been classified as forbome and modified, it will remain forbome and modified
until all of the relevant criteria for reclassification has been met.

The impact of modifications of financial assets on the expected credit loss calculation is discussed in note 44,
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Derecognition ather than on « modification

Financial assets, or & portion thereof, are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets
have expired, or when they have been transferred and cither (i) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, or {ii} the Bauk neither transfess nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Group has
nat retained control.

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Bank under standard repurchase agreemonts and securitics lending and
barrowing tratsactions are not derecognised because the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the basis af the
predetermined repurchase price, and the criterin for derccognition are therefore not met. This also applies to certain
secutitisation transactions in which the Bank retains a subordinated residual interest.

Financial gearantee contracts arnd loan commeitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it inours because a specificd debtor fails 1o make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such
financial guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and others on behalf of cuslomers to secure loans, overdrafts and
other banking facilities. Financial gnarantce contracts are initially measured af fair valuo and subsequently messured ot the
higher of:

- The amount of the loss allowance (caloulated as described in note 44; and

- The premium received on initial recognition less income recognised in accordence with the principles

Loan commitments praovided by the Bank are measured as the amount of the loss allowance (caiculated as deseribed in note
44). The Bank has not provided any commiiment to provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be scttled net in
cash or by delivering or issuing another financinl instrument. For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision, However, for contracts thal inciude both a loan and an vadrawn commitment and the
Bank cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment component from those on the loan
companent, the expecled credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised together with the loss aliowance for the
loan. Contingent liabilitics pertaining to off balance sheet obligations such as letter of credits, guarantees and acceptances.

Repurchase agreement lending

In this case, the amount advanced (being the purchase price} is classified as loans and advances while the differential between
the purchase price and tho resale price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as income. Securities held
as collateral are not recognised in the books, unless thess are sold to third parties, in which case the obligation to return them
is recorded at fair value as a trading liability under borrowings from financial institetions,

Write-aff

Advances are written ofl wien there is no realistic prospeet of recovery. The amount so written off iz a book entry and does
not necessarily prejudice to the Bank’s right of recovery againsl the customer.

Derivative financial instrunents

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is entered
and are subsequently re-measured at fair value using appropriate valuation techniques, All derivative finaneial instruments are
carried o5 assets when their fair value is positive and liabilitics when their fair value is negative. Any change in the fair value
of derivative financisl instruments during the period is taken to the income statement.

The Group makes use of derivative instruments to manage exposures to interest rate, foreign currency and credit risks.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivatenis, loans and
boreowings, and trade and other ereditors.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other reccivables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at
amortised costusing the cffective interest method, less any impairment losses. A provision for impairment is established when
the carrying value of the receivable is unlikely to be recoverable. The carrying value of the receivable is reduced and any
impairment loss is recognised i the income statement. The Group caleulated the expected credii Josses using the IFRS 9
simplified approach model and coneluded that this did not create a material difference to the current method of impairment
loss. To measure the expected credit losses, Lrade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due.

Trade and other payables

Trede and other payables are recognised initialty at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition tirey are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafis that are repayabie on demand asl form
an integral part of the Group's cash msanagement are included as a component of eash and cash equivalents for the purpose
only of the cash flow statement.

Fair vulue ineasnrement

Fair vaiue is the price that would be received to sell an assct or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the
Group has access to at that date,

When availabie, the Group measures the fair valus of an instrument using the guoted price in an active market for that
instriment. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is ne quoted price in an active markot, valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimise the use of unobservable inputs are used.

The best evidence of the fair vaiue of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normatly the transaction price - i.¢. the fair
value of the consideration given or received.

The Group recognises transfers (if any) between {evels of the fair value hicrarchy as of the end of the reporting year.
Intra-group financial instruments

‘Where the Group enters into financial guarantee contracts ta guarantes the indebfedness of other companies within its Group.
In this respect, the Group treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable thal the
Group will be required to moke a payment under the guarantee.
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3. Signifieant accounting policies (continucd)
Restrnetured loans

A resimctured loan is one where the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's difficalty, graats to the
borrower concessions (hat would not be considered in normal circumstances. Restructuring would nonnally involve
modification of the terms of advances / securities which could include alteration of repayment period / repayable amount / the
amonnt of instalments / rate of interest (due to reasons other than competition). The restructuring of an asset is only granted in
sitnations where the customer has showed a willingness to repay the borrowing and is expected to be able to meet the revised
terms of the restructuring. The restructured troubled loan is measured by reducing its recorded value fo -its  net  realisable
value, taking into account the cost of all concessions at the date of the restructuring. The reduction in the carrying value is
recorded as a charge to the income statemont in the period in which the loan is restructured.

In relation o loans and advances, the modifications of terms and conditions refated to security and collateral arrangements or
the waiver of cerlzin covenants which do not affect payment arrangements, are not regarded as sufficient indicators of
impairment or restructuring, as such changes do not necessarily indicate credit issues affecting the borrewer's payment ability.

The Group derecognises a Joan when there are substantial modifications to the terms of the loan on restructuring.
Bills payable

Bills payable, measured at amortised cost, represent payables against the banker’s cheques which are secured cheques by the
Group in favour of payee after collection of funds from the remitter.

Insurance contracts

[nsurance conlirscts are those contracts under which the Group as insurer has accepted significant insurance risk from the
insurance contract holder (insured) by agrecing to compensate the insured if a specified uncertain future event (the insured
cvent) adversoly affects the insured. Once a contract has beea classified ss an insurance contract it remains an insurance
contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights
and obligations arc extinguished or expire,

The takaful contracts are based on the principlos of Wakala. The takaful contracts which are agreed, usvally adopt the concept
of tabarm (to donate for benefit of othors) and mutual sharing of losses with the overall objective of eliminating the element
of uncertainty.

Insurance contracts / takaful are classified info following main categories, depending on the duration of risk and whether the
terms and conditions are fixed.

- Fire and property damage

- Marine, aviation and transport

- Motor

- Miscellaneous

These contracts are normally one-year insurance contracts except marine and some contracts of fire and property and
miscellaneans class. Normally ali marine insurance contracts and some fire and property contracts have three months period.
In miscellaneous class, some engincering insurance contracts have more than one-year peried whereas normally trovel
insurance contracts expired within one-month time.

Fire and property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Group’s customers for damage suffered to their properties or for
the vaiue of properly lost. Customers who undertake commorcial activitics on their premises could also receive compensation
for the loss of earniugs caused by the inability to use the insured properties in their business activities.

Marine, aviation and transport insurance vover the loss or damage of ships, cargo, terminals, and any transport or properly by
which cargo is transferred, acquired, or held between the peints of origin and final destination,

Motor insurance is to provide protection against losses incwrred because of traffic accidents and against liability that could be
incurred in an accident.

Miscellaneous insurance includes various types of coverage mainly burglary, loss of cash it safe and cash in transit, engineering
losses, accident and health, money and other coverage. : .

Backess blanket insurance covers losses because of dishonest or fraudnient acts by officers and employees of the bank,
inchuding on premises coverage of cash, coverage of cash during transit and coverage of forged cheques.

The Group also accepts insurance risk periaining to insurance coniracts of other insurer as reinsurance imward. The insurance
risk involved in these contracts is like the contracts undertaken by the Group as insurer. All reinsurance inward contracts are
facultative (specific risk) acceptance contracts.
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Reinsurance coutracts

These are contracts entored into by the Group with reinsurers for compensation of losses suffered on insurance contracts issued.
These reinsurance contracts include both facultative and treaty arrangements contracts and are classified in same categories of
insurance contracts in these financial statements.

Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companios and reinsirance recoveries against outstanding claims.
Due from teinsurance companies are carried at cost less any provision for impairment. Cost represents the fair valve of the
consideration to be received. Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims are measured at the amount expected to be
received. Reinsurance assets are not offset against refated insurance liabilities. Income or expenses from reinsurance contract
arc not offsel against expenses or income from related insurance assets.

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Due to reinsuranse companies are carried at cost
which is the fair valve of the consideration to be paid.

Reinsurance assets or Habilitics are derecognised when the contractual rights are extingnished or expired.
Insurance contract liabilities

The Group recogniscs finbility in respect of all claims incuered up to the balance sheot date which is measured at the
undiscounted valuo of expected future payments. These liabilities are known as provision for outstanding claims. The claims
are considered at time of the incident giving rise to tho claim except as otherwise expressly indicated in the insurance contract.
The liability for elaims includes amount in relation to unpaid reported claim, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and
expected claims settlement cost,

Provision for liabilily in respect of unpaid reported claims is made on the basis of individual case estimates.
Employee benefits — UK Truding Group
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment beacfit plan under which the Company pays fixed cootributions into a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay ferther amouuts. Qbligatians for contribitions to defined
contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement in the years during which services are rendered
by employees.

Defined benefit plans

A defined bonefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution pfan. The Group's net obligation in
respect of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment benefita is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have eamted in retum for their service in the current and prior years; that benefit is disconnted to
deterntine it present value, and the fair valuc of any plan assets (at bid prico) are deducted. The Group determines the net
interest on the net defined benefit {iability/asset for the year by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual year to the net defined benefit liability/(asset).

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on bonds that have a credit rating of at least AA that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group's obligations and that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits are expected
1o be paid.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans comprise actuanal gains and fosses, the veturn on plan assets (excluding
initerest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding intcrest). The Group recognises them immediately in ather
comprehensive income and all other expenses related to defined benefit plans in employee benefit oxpenses in the income
statement,

Defined benefit plans

When the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past service
by emplayees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised immediately in the incone statement when the plan amendment
or curtailment ccours,

The calculation of the defined benefit obligalians is performed by a qualified actiary using the projected unit credit method.
When fhie calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of benefits available
in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions and takes into account the adverse effect
of any mininum funding requircments.

The Group recognises gains and Josses on the seltlement of a defined benefit plan when the seftlement oceurs. The gain or loss
on & settiement is the difference between the present vafue of the defined benefit obligation being settled as determined on the
date of settlement and the seitiement price, including any plan assets transferred and any payments made directly by the Group
in conpection with the settlement.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits - Banking Group
UBL Pakistan Head Office operates the following staff retirement schemes for its employees

a) For new employees and for thase who opted for the below menfioned conversion option introduced in 2001, the Bank
operates

- an approved contributory provident fund (defined contribution schome); and
- an approved gratuity scheme (defined benefit scheme).

b) For employees who have not opted for the conversion option introduced in 2001, the Bank aperates

- an approved non-confributory provident fund in licu of the contributory provident fund; and
- an approved funded pension scheme, introduced in 1975 (defined benefit scheme).

In 2001, the Bank modifted the pension scheme and introduced a conversion option for emplayees covered under option (b)
above to move io option (a). This conversion option ceased on 31 Deccmber 2003,

The Bank also operates a contributory benevolent find for 21! its eligible empioyees (defined benefit scheme).

Annual contributions towards defined bonefit schemes are made based on actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

For the defined contribution scheme, the Bank pays contributions to the fund on a periodic basis. The Bank has no further
payment obligalion once the contributions have been paid. The contributions ere recognised as an expense when the obligation
to make payments to the fund has been established. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extont that a cash
refund or a reduction in future payments is available,

Other benefits
Employees’ compensated absences

The Bank makes provisions for compensated vested and non-vested absences rccumulated by iis eligible employees based on
actuarial advice under the Projected Unit Uredit Method.

Post-retirement medical benefils (defined benefit scheme)

The Bank provides post-retirement medical benefits to eligible retired employees. Provision is made on the basis of actuarial
advice under the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Enmployee motivation and retention scheme

The Bank has a long-term motivation and retention schems tor its employees. The liability of the Bank in respect of the scheme
for each ycar, if any, is fixed, and is accounted for in the year to which the scheme relates.

Remneasurement of defined benefit obligations

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustinents and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
statemeni of comprehensive income when they ocour with no subsequent recycling through the income statement.

Actvarial gains and losses periaining to long lerm compensated absences are recognised in the income statement immedtately,
Hgliday provisions

The Group acerues holiday provisions for its employees for the unutilised portion of the annusl leave at the ond of each
reporting date.

Isiamic financings and related assets

{jarah financing represents arangenents whereby the Bank (being the owner of assets) transfers its usufruct to its customers
for an agreed period at an agreed consideration. Assets leased out under jarah arc stated at cost less aconmulated depreciation
and acoumulated impairment losses, if any. These are depreciated over the term of the lease. [jarah income is recognised on an
accrusal basis.

Diminishing Musharaka is partership agreement between the Bonk and its customer for financing vehicle or plant and
machinery. The receivable is recorded to the extent of Bank's share in the purchase of asset. Income is recognised on acersal
basis.
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4, Adoption of IFRS 9

The adoption of IFRS 9 has resulted in changes in the accounting policies for recognition, classification and measurement of
financial ussets and financial liabilities and impairment of financial assets.

IFRS 9 permits either a [ull retrospective or a modificd retrospective approach for adoption. The Group has adopted the
standard using the modified retrospective approach for classification, measurement and impairment. This means that the
cutulative impact, if any, of the adaption is recognised in unappropriated profit as of I July 2018 and comparatives are not
restated.

Consequently, for notes disclosures, the consequential amendments to IFRS 7 disclosures as & resuli of adoption of IFRS 9
have also only been applied to the current periad. The comparative period notes disclosures repeat those disclosures made in
the prior year. IFRS 9 also significantly amends other standards deating with financial instruments such as [FRS 7 *Financial
[nstmments: Pisclosures’.

Details of these new requirements as well as their impact on the Group’s financial statements are described belaw.

Trading Group
Clussification and measnrement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The new standard requires the Trading Group to assess the classification of financial assets on its statement of financial position
in accordance with the cash low characteristics of the financial assets and the relevant business model that the Group has for
a specifie class of financial assots.
- IFRS 9 no longer has an "Available-for-sale" (AFS) classification for financiaf assets. The new slandard has different
requirements for debt or equity financial nssets,
- Amortised cost, where the cffective interest rate method will apply,
- Fair value through other comprehensive income, with subsequent recycling to the profit or loss upon disposal of the
financial asset (FVOCI); or
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
- Investinents in equity instruments, other than those to which consolidation or equity accounting apply, should bo
classificd and measured either at:
- Fair value through other comprehicasive income, with no subsequont recycling to the profit or loss upon disposal of
the financial assot; or
- Fair vatue through profit or loss.

Previously, availablo-for-sate investments stated at fair value, with any resubtant pain or loss being recognised directly in equily
(in the revaluation reserve), excopt for impairment fosses. When thoso investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss. Previously, held to maturity investiments were
measured gt amorfised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment [oss recognised to refleet irrecoverable
amounts.

Ciassification Oviginal IFRS 9 New

As at 1.July 2018 under IFRS 9 (1AS39)|  impact| (IFRS 9)
£000 £600 £000

Current financial assets
Trade receivables Amortised cost 159,725 - 159,725
Other reccivables Amortised cost 54,548 - 54,548
Cash and bank balances Amortised cost 169,884 - 169,884
Tatal financial assets 384,157 - 384,157
Non-current financial liabilities
Other inferest-bearing loans and borrowings Amortised cosl 275,141 - 275,141
Current financial liabilities
Qverdralt Amortised cost 140,649 - 140,649
Trade payables Amortised cost 484,327 - 484,327
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings Amortised cost 91,658 - 91,658
Total financial liabilities 991,775 - 991,775

This change in accounting policy has had no impact on the classification of financial essets and financial liabilities in the
statement of financial position.
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4. Adoption of IFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 introduces the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) modei, which replages the incurred loss model of {AS 3¢ wiereby na
allowance for doubtful debt was required only in circumstances where a loss event has occurred. By contrast, the ECL model
requires the Company to recognise an allowance for doubtful debt on all financial assets carried at amortised cost (including,
for exsmple, trade debis and other receivables), as well as debt instruments classified as financial assels carried at fair value
through other comprehensive income, since initial recognition, irrespective whether a loss event has oceurred.

Banking Group
Classification and measurentent of financial instruments

The measurement calegory and the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities in accordance with TAS 3% and IFRS S at
1 July 2018 are compared as follows:

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Lending to financial institutions and
advances

[nvestments in financial assets

Trade and other receivables*

Other financial Habilities**

IAS 39
Messurement Carrying
Category Amount
£000 £000

IFRS 9
Measurement Carrying
Category  Amount
£0060 £000

Amortised cost 1,228,015
(Loans and receivables)

Amortised cost 4,870,575

{L.oans and receivables)

Amortised cost 2,124,563
(held to maturity)

Held for trading 221,366

Available for sale 2,933,722

Amortised cost 289,756
(Loans and receivables)

Amortised cost 238,940

* This includes non-financial assots amounting to £55.7 mitlion.
** This inchudes non-financial lisbilities amounting to £15.4 mitlion.

Retaincd earnings
Balance as at 30 June 2018

Recognition of [IFRS 9 ECLs

Deferred tax in relation to IFRS 9 ECLs
Unrealised gain on revaluation of gqvailable for sale

The impact of transition to IFRS 9 on retained eamings as at 1 July 2018 is as follows:

equity securities reclassificd as FVPL under IFRS 9
Deferred tax in relation to unrenlised gain on revalnation of available
for sale equity securities reclassified as FVPL under [FRS 9

Less: share of non-conlrolling interest

Amortised cost 1,227,674

Amortised cost 4,766,376

Amortised cost 2,111,294

FVPL (Mandatory) 12,038
FYPL 221,366
{Designated)

FVPL 115,785
{Designated)
FVPL (Mandatory) 3,472
FVOCI - Equity 4,685
FVOC! - Debt 2,807,055

Amortised cost 288,311

(Loans and receivables)

Amortised cost 236,694

2018
£000

661,567

(112,186)
43,753

18,024
(6,045)
(56,454)
25,492

630,605
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Revaluation Reserve
Balance as at 30 June 2018

Unrealised gain on revaluation of Available for sale

equity securities reclassified as FVYPL under IFRS 9

Deferred tax in relation to unrealised gain on revaluation of available
for sale equity securities reclassified as FVPL under IFRS 9
Revaluation of unquoted equity investinent sceurities classified as
FVOCI '

Deferred tax on revaluation of unquoted equity investment securities
classified as FYOCI '

Less: share of non—controfling interest

Bestway Group Limited
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2018
£000

265,196

(18,024)
6,045
2,999

(1,169)
(10,149)
3,869

258,916

‘The foliowing table reconciles the prior period's closing impairment allowance measured in accordance with IAS 39 incurred
loss model to the new impairment allowance measured in accordance with the IFRS 9 expested loss model at | July 2018:

Impairment
provision under ECLs under
EIAS 39 as at 1 Remeasurement IFRS 9 at L
July 2018 (ECL) Reclassification July 2618
£000 £000 £000 £000
Impairment allowance for:
Lending to financia! institutions and advances 338,463 104,199 - 442,661
Cash and cash equivalents 446 340 - 87
Investment in financial assets
- Held for inaturity investment now ¢lassified at
amortised cost under IFRS 9 13,085 1,230 ) 14315
- Available-for-sale investments (debt instruments) }
now classified at FYOCI under IFRS 9 4,436 2,726 7,162
- Availablo-for-sale investments (equity 123 } } 3.232
instruments) now classified at FVOCI under IFRS 9 232 ¥
- Available-for-sale investments now classified at
- i) -
FVPL under IFRS 9 18,024 (18.024)
Trade and other receivables 7,296 1,445 - 8,141
Contingent kability in respect of Runancial 4461 2,246 ) 6,707
guarantees
389,443 112,186 (18,024) 483,605
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4. Adeption of IFRS 9 (continued)
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Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

The foliowing table provides summary of financial instruments of the Bank by class of those instrmuents and their cost as at

30 June 2018;

Classification under IFRS ¢

At Amortised At Fair Value At Fair Value At Fair
mo Cost through OCI through OC1 Value Total
(without recycling) (with recycling) through P&L
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Category
Cash and balances with treasury
banks 1,022,150 - - - 1,022,150
Balance with other banks 297,555 297,555
Lending to financial institutions 279,442 - - - 279,442
Investments - - - -
Held-for-trading - - - 221,366 221,366
Available-for-sale . 2,582,960 196,110 113,845 2,892,915
Held-to-mafurity 2,071,998 - - 12,038 2,084,036
Loans ond advances 4,432,682 - - -~ 4,432,682
Other financial assets 3,633 - - 136 3.769
Total 8,107,460 2,582,960 196,110 347,385 11,233,915

Reconciliation of stafement of financial position balances from IAS 39 to IFRS 9

The Bank performed a detailed analysis of its business models for managing financial assots and analysis of their cashflow
characteristics in order to identify appropriate classification. Delailed information rogarding the new classification

requireinents of IFRS 9 have been explained below.

The following table reconciles the camying amounts of financial assets, from their previous messurement category in
accordance with IAS 39 to their new measurement categories upon transition to IFRS 9 on 1 July 2018,

Amortised Cost

IFRS 9
[AS 39 carrying | carrying
Reference| amount as at June Reclassifications Rcme?::l:lcte; amount as
30,2018 at 1 Juty
2018
£000 £000 £000 £000)
Cash and cash equivalents
Opening balance as per [AS 39 1,228,015 - - -
Remecasurement ECL. allowance - - (341) -
osing balance as per IFRS 9 - - - 1,227,674
ending to financial institutions and
dvances
pening balancs as per JAS 39 4,870,575 - - -
emcasurement ECL alloywance - - (104,199} -
osing balance as per IFRS 9 - - - 4,766,376
[nvestment in financial assets -
amortised cost
Opening balance as per [AS 39 - - - -
Addition: From financial assels held to _ - -
maturity (IAS 39) ) 2.112,525
Remeasurement ECL allowance - - (1,231) -
Closing balance as perr IFRS 9 - - - 2,111,294
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Reference

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11603305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

[AS 39 carrying
armount as at 30
June 2018

£000

Reclassifications

IFRS 9
carrying
amount as at
1 July 2018
£600 £000); £000

Remeasure-
ments

investment in financial assets - Held
or maturtty
Opening balance as per IAS 39
ss: To amortised cost (IFRS 9)
ess: To FVPL (IFRS 9)
Closing bslance as per IFRS 9

&)

2,124,563

(2,112,525) - -
(12,038) . .

[Trade and other receivables
[Opening balance as per IAS 39
Remeasuromont ECL alfowance
Closing balance as per IFRS 9

289,756

{1,445)

288,311

Total financial assets at amortised cost

Fair value through proflt or loss

8,512,909

(12,038)  (107,216) 8,393,655

Investment securities - Held for
krading )

Opetring balanco as per IAS 39 and
tlosing balance as per IFRS 9

(B)

221,366

221,366

Investment securities - FVPL
Ymandatory)

Opening balance as per IAS 39

lAdd: From available for sale (IAS 39} -
Hebt instruments

Add: From availabie for sale (LAS 39) -
Equity instroments

A dd: From held to maturity (IAS 39) -
Hebt instruments

(Closing balance as per IFRS 9

o
)
(A

3,244 - .
228 . -

12,038 - -

Investment securities - FYPL
(dosigniated)

Opening balance as per IAS 39
IAddition: Front available for sale (IAS
39} - equity instruments

Closing halance as per IFRS 9

115,785 - -
115,785

Total financial assets at FVPL

221,366

131,295 - 352,661
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Notes (continued)
4. Adeption of IFRS 9 (continucd)

IFRS 9
1AS 39 carcying Remeasupe-  CO1YIE
amoult as at 30 Reclassificati € amount as

Tune 2018 assi ans ments "y uly
2018
£000 £600 £000 £000
Fair value through other
comprchensive income
Investment securities - FVOCI {debt
nsttuments)
iOpening balance as per 1AS 39 - - - -
Add: From available for sale (IAS 3%) D) - 2,809,781 - -
Remeasurement ECL allowance - - (2,726} .
Closing balance as per IFRS ¢ - - - 2,807,055
Investment securities - FVOCI (equity
nstroments)
(Opening balance as per IAS 39 - - - -
iAdd: From availabte for sale (IAS 39) -
Designated © - 3,889 - ;
Closing balance as per IFRS 9 - - 2,999 6,888
Investinent securities - Available for
sale
Opening balance as per IAS 39 2,933,722 - - -
E.ess: To mandatory FVPL (IFRS 9) - N
Hebt instruments ) ) (.244) )
chs: To FVPL (IFRS 9) - equity . (115.785) B _
nstniments
Lesy; To mandatory FVPL (IFRS 9) - - (228) - .
Equity instruments
Less: To FYQCI - equity instruments (C) - (3,889) - -
L ess: To FYOCI - debt instruments o - {2,809,781) - -
[Closing balance as per JFRS 9 - - - 795
Total financial assets at FVYQOCY 2,933,722 (119,257 273 2,814,738
Total 11,667,997 - (106,943) 11,561,054

The total remeasurement loss of £1 §2.2 miltion (£68.4 million nes of tax) was recognised in opening reserves at 1 July 20138
out of which £109.9 million was on account of financial assets and £2.2 million on financial guarantees and other obligations.
In addition, an amount of £12.0 willion was reclassified from revaluation reserve to retained oamings at 1 July 2018 on account
of surplus on revaluation of equity instruments mandatorily classificd as FVPL under [FRS 9.

The following explains bow applying the new classification requiremnents of IFRS 2 led to changes in classification of certain
financial assets held by the Group as shown in the table above:

(A) Debt instruments previously classified as held fo maturity (HTM) und available for sale (AFS), but which fail the SPPI
fest

The Group holds & portfolio of debt instruments that failed to meet the “solely payments of principal and interest” (SPPI)
requirement for amortised cost classification under IFRS 9, These instruments contain provisions that, in certain circumstances,
can aliow the issuer to defer interest payments, but which do not accrue additional interest, This clause breaches the crilerion
that interesi payments should only be consideration for credit risk and the time value of money on the principal. As a result,
held to maturity and available for sale instruments, which amounted to £12.0 million and £3.2 million respectively, werc
classified as FVPL from the date of initial application.

(B) Investment in debt securities previously designated af fair value through profif or loss

The Group holds investment of £221.4 million in a portfolio of debt securities which had previously been dosignated at fair
value through profit or foss as the debt securitics were managed on a fair value basis. As part of the transition to [FRS 9, these
securities are part of an ‘other” business model and so required to be classified as FVPL category under IFRS 9, instesd of
designated FVPL category under TAS 39,
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4, Adoption of IFRS 9 (continued)
(C) Designation of equity instrivments at FVYOCI

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

The Group has elected to irrevocably designate strategic investments of £4.7 million in unquoted securities as pernitted under
IFRS 9. These securitics were previously classified as available for sale. The changes in fair value of such securitiss will no

longer be reclassified to profit or loss when they are disposed of.

(D) Reclassification from retired categories with na change in measnrement

In addition to the above, the following debt instruments have been reclassified to new categories under [FRS 9, as their previous

categories under IAS 39 were ‘refired’. with no changes fo their measurement basis:

(i) Thoso previously classified as available for sale and now classified as measnred at FYOCT; and

(ii) Those previously classified as held to maturity and now classified as measured at amortised cost.

5. Revenue

Trading Group

Wholesale (including Bestway Retail): sale of goods
Pharmacy: sale of goeds

Cement: sale of goods

Investment property: rental income

Rental income is split behween the various cash generating units.

6. Interest income

Banking Group

Operating inleres! incone on:

Finaucial assets classified as FVOCI

Trading securities classified as FYPL

Debt securities measured at amortised cost

Loans and advances fo financtal institutions measured at
amortised cosl

Loans and advances to customers measured at amortised cost
Placement with banks at amortised cost

Available for sale investments

Held for trading securities

Held to maturity seourities

Interest income on individually impaired loans is £44.6 million (2018: £33.9 million)

2019 2018
£000 £000
2,347,529 2,077,923
790,259 783,735
303,523 355,325
6,600 7,392
3,447,911 3,224,375
2019 201%
£080 £000
6,371 -
1298 -
357,672 -
30,105 15,068
334,268 264,799
7,981 6,036

- 5518

- 173

. 484,539

736,695 776,133
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7. Interest expense

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305
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Banking Grouwp 2019 2018
£000 £000
On deposits 286,776 229945
On securities sold under repnrchase agrecments 54,233 131,396
On shost term borrowings 29,789 18,866
On long term barrowings 3,525 3,187
On subordinated debt 4,852 -
Cost of foreign currency swaps against foreign currency 13,184 -
depositsborrowings
392,359 383,394
8. Net writen premiums
Banking Group 2019 2018
£000 £000
Gross wrilten premitm
Gross preminms written 24,152 22,175
Change it provision fer uneamed premitims €2,10d3 (4,371}
22,048 20,804
Premium ceded fo reinsurer
Re-insurance ceded {13,122) (11,421
Change in prepaid reinsurance premium ceded 1,454 45
{11,668) (11,376)
Net wrilten premiums 10,389 9,428
9. Net bencfits and claims
Banking Group
Gross benefits Change in contract
and claims Claiins ceded Gross changein labilities ceded to  Net benefits
paid to reinsurers contract liabilities reinsurers and clabms
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
£600 £000 £000 £000 £600
Five (3,228) 2,787 825 (566) (182)
Marine (872) 686 (275) 273 (188)
Motor (3,601) 1,192 (129) 308 (2,230)
Miscell aneous (4,349) 3,083 219 65 (1,420)
Total (12,050) 7,748 202 80 (4,020)
Charnge in conteact
Gross benefits Claims ceded  Grosschangein  liabilitics ceded o Net benefits
and claims paid (o reinsurers coirtract liabilities reinsurers  and claims
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fire (2,605) 2411 (1,931 1,587 (538)
Marine (1,455) 1,273 (483) 512 (153)
Mator (3311) 1,083 (791) 371 (2.648)
Miscellaneous (4,242) 3,600 1,868 (1,849 (623)
Total (11,613) 8,367 (1,337 621 (3,962)
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10. Fee, contmission and brokerage income

Banking Group

Commission on remittances

Net rebate income on home remittances*
Couunission on ATM / debit cards

Carpasate service charges / finance / facility fee
Commission on intercity cheque / cash deposit and withdrawals
Commission on cash management

Trade incomo

Bank assurance commission

Coimnission on consumer loans

Minimwmu balance charges

Commission on inward / outward cheque clearance
Commission on utility bills

Reinsurance commission income

Comumisston on cheque book issnance
Commission from tinancial institutions

Fee for management of funds

Others

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
£000 £000
8,948 8,393
8,409 7,595
9,477 9,891
6,862 11464
3,966 1,795
4,294 4,603
10,250 12,320
9411 8,813
5568 5,183
1,626 1,640
631 881
2,186 2,567
2,205 2.127
2,440 2,812
6,188 6.299
5,395 7.733
6,376 10,535
94,232 106,65

*This includes pay out to correspondents for home remittances amounting to £26.5 million (2018: £24.2 million},

11. Fee, commission and brokerage expense

Banking Group

Commission expense

12. Other operating income

Trading Group

Net gain on disposal of investinent property
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Other income

Banking Group

Renta! income
Other income

2019 2018
£000 £000
2,708 2287
2,708 2,287
2019 2018
£000 £000
- 892

105 1,325
4,197 1,769
4,302 3,986
2019 2018
£000 £000
2,256 1,648
226 68
2,482 17716
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13. Gains and losses on investments

Banking Group

Gain on translation of financial assets
Gain on sale of securities - realised
Loss o equity securities classified as FVPL

Loss realised on sake of debt securities classified as FVOCI
Loss on revaluation of held for trading investmoents classified as FVPL

Gain on revaluation of investments classified as held for trading

Other incone

Bestway Group Limited

Registered nuwmber 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
£000 £000
25,645 19,048
- 37,390
(27,925) .
607) -
(731) -
7,546 -
3,632 3,361
7,560 59,799

Gains and losses on investments relales to imvestment income, gains and losses relating to banking operations other than et

interest income. Othor investment income is shown in note 12, which relates to non-operating investment revenues.

14. Operating profit and auditors’ remuneration

Included in operaling profit are the following:

Losses on revaluation of investments elassified
as held for trading

Depreciation of property, plant and squipment
Amortisation of intangible asscis

Impairment of goodwill

Operating lease charges

Operaling expenses of investment property
Details of the restatement are given in note 50.

Audliors” renumeration:

Audit of these financial statements

Amounis receivable by the Group's anditors’ and its associates in respect of:

Trading
Group
2019

£000

45,686
38,671
3,258
22,322
629

Banking
Group
2019
£000
731
14,653
3,509

18,808

Total
2019
£000

T3l
60,339
42,180

¥
41,130
629

Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries of the Group

Andit related assuranca services
Taxation compliance services
Al other services

Trading  Banking

Group Group Total
2018 2018 2018
(restated)  (rostated)  (restated)
£000 £000 £000
- 9 9
42,498 17,117 59,615
39,040 3,808 42 845
10,055 . 10,055
16,640 18,544 35,184
2,560 - 2,500
2019 2018
£000 £000
25 15
977 619

183
1i8 158
290 450
1,593 1,282

PwC LLP were appointed as auditors on 6 March 2019, The prior year auditor’s remuncration relates to KPMG LLP. Amounts
paid to the Group’s auditor and its associntes in respeot of services to the Group, other than the audit of the Company’s financial

sintements, have not been disclosed as the information is required instead to be disclosed on a consolidated basis.

During the period 30 June 2018 PwC LLY was the auditor of the Bestway Retail Limited with audit fee of £160,000 and non-

audit services for the Group of £20,600.
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15. Staff numbers and costs

Bestway Gronp Limited

Regtstered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2019

The average monthly number of persons omiployed by the Group (including Directors) during the year, analysed by category,

was as follows:

Head office and management
Wholesale and retaifing
Manufactoring

Distribution

Banking

Staff costs for the above:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

16, Finance income

Trading Group

Bank deposits
Interest from related partios
Other infterest

1. Finance expense

Trading Group

Listerest on back loans and overdrafis

Accrued preforence dividends
Refinancing costs

Net interest expense on defined benefit obligation

Banking Group
Finance costs

Trading Banking Trading  Banking

Group Group Total Group Group Tolal
201% 2019 2012 2018 2018 2018
Number Number Number Number  Number Number
1,978 - 1,978 1,433 - 1,433
10,709 - 10,709 11,580 - 11,580
1,698 - 1,698 1,820 - 1,820
978 - 978 1,019 - 1,019

- 13,534 13,809 - 15,482 15,489

15,363 13,534 29,172 15,852 15,489 31,341

Trading Banking Trading  Banking

Group Group Total Group Group Total
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
300,734 102,422 403,176 264,567 177,461 442,028
23,122 796 23,918 20,045 1,065 21,110
7,937 5,539 13,476 6,510 61,409 67,919
331,813 148,757 440,570 291,122 239,935 531,057
2019 2018

£000 £000

30 4

- 27

39 3

69 34

2019 2018

£000 £000

17,677 15,454

3,460 3,460

88 2,801

166 233

21,391 21,948

8 -

8 -
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Notes (continued)
18. Adjusting itcms

Adjusting items represent certain ilems of income and oxpense which the Group considers distinetive based on their size, nature
or incidence. These include significant items in revenue, income from operations, net finance costs, taxation and the Group’s
share of the post-tax resttlts of assaciates and joinl ventures which individually or, if of a similar type, in aggregate, are relevant
to an understanding of the Group’s underlying financial performance. Although the Group doss not believe that these measures
are a substite for IFRS measures, the Group daes believe such results excluding the impact of adjusting items provide
additional useful information to investors regarding the underlying performance of the business on a comparable basis.

Trading Group
There were no adjusting itemns identified for the year ended 30 June 2019. Adjusting items relating to the prior year are detailed
below;

Iucluded in profit / (loss) are the following adjusting items: 2019 2018
£000 £000
Gain on acquisition (restated) - 7,156

The gain on acquisition relates to the restated negative goodwill recognised on the acquisition of the tradiag assets of Bargain
Booze Limited, Conviviality Retail Logistics Limited and Wine Rack Limited. On 7 April 2018 Bestway Retail Limited
purchased the asscts and liabilities from Bargain Booze Limited, Conviviglity Retail Logistics Limited and Wine Rack Limited
for a purchase price of £7.5 million, thus gencrating a ncgative goodwill balznce of £7.2 million. Ses note 22 for more
information on this acquisition and note 50 for more information relating to {he restatement.

Banking Group

Included in profit / (loss) are the following adjusting items: ) 2019 2018
£000 £000

UBL pension provision - (56,470)

The adjusting itein of UBL pension provision of £56.5th represents the estimated amount of the cost of peasion payable as per
Pakistan’s Supreme Court’s Order increasing the minimum pension to Rs. 8,000 per month (c.£54) for UBL retired employees
subject to 5% annual increase from | January 2019. This cstimale is based on on-going life verification of both pensioners and
retrenched employees. The estimate is also based on the payment of pension without taking effect of commutation. The Bank
has sought clarification from the Supreme Cours on the effect of commutation in caloulation of minimum pension and he
treatment to ex-emiployees who were separated under the Goldon Handshake Schemeo described as Retrenchment Scheme of
1997.The emount may be adjusted in the fulure years based on the guidance received from the Supreme Court,
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19. Taxation

i) Analysis of charge in the year;

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and fizaneial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Recognised in the inconte statement 2019 2018
£000 £000

Crrrent tax
UK corparation tax on profits for the year 7,689 13,905
Adjustments in respect of previous years 2,989 (4,787
Foreipn tax: Current tax on income in the year 94,168 92411
Current {ax cxpense 104,846 101,529

Deferred tax
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences 934 (9,128)
Changes in tax rate 6,597 (10,798)
Adjustiments in respect of previous years (195} 682
Deferred tax oredit {see note 3%) 7,336 (19,244)
Total tax expense 112,182 82,285
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 2019 2018
£000 £000
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability ' 7,603 (459)
Movements in fair value of investments (10,024)  (49,995)
Other movemeiits (1,151) (2,784)
(,572) (53.238)

iiy Factoys affecting the tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year differs from the standard rate of tax in the UK of 19% (2018: 199%). The differences are explained

below:

2018
2019  (restated)
£000 £000
Profit for the year 227,677 285,900
Tax using the UK corporation tux rate of [9.00 % (2018 19.00%) 43,258 54,321

Effects oft
Expenses that are not deductible in detenmining taxable profit 7,282 5,204
Income not taxable for tax purposes (1,003) (6,902)
Rate chango impact 6,597 (10,798}
Higher rate of tax on overseas camings 52,088 43,927
Other differences 1,167 (4,012)
Adjustment in respect of previous years 2,793 545
Total tax expense {including tax equity accounted invesices) 112,182 82,285

ii{) Factors that may affect fature tax charges

Reductions in the UK corporation tax from 19% 1o 17% (effective 1 April 2020) were substantively enacted on G September

2016, This will reduce the Group's futire current tax charge.

There are no material unrecognised deferred tax batances (2018: £nil) as at June 2019,
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20. Assets classified as held for sale

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003303
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

UBL Bapk (Tanzania) Limited (UBTL) is u wholly owned subsidiary of United Bank Limited (UBL). UBL and UBTL have
entered into an "Assets and Liabilitics Purchase Agreement” with EXIM Bank Tanzania Limited subject to all applicable
corporate compliances and the regulatory approvals at both places, i.e. Pakistan and Tanzania. The entity of UBTL end its
banking license wifl remain intact for the time being. Accordingly, the investment in UBTL is classified as "held for sale' at

lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost of disposal, in the 2019 financial statements.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

Assets

Non-cuyrent assets

Investments in financial assets

Lending to financial institutions and advances

Current assets
Lending to finanoial institutions and advances
Cash and cash equivalents

Total agsets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Deposits and other accounts

Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Total Habilities

As at 30
June 2019
£000

5,720
6,105
11,825
5,188
3,382

9,070

20,895

e

659
8,619
10,718

20,016

57



Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305
Anmnsl report and financial statements
For the year endod 30 June 2019
Notes {continued)

21. Goodwill

Total
£0060
Cost
At 1 July 2017 232,336
Exchange differences (23,524)
At 30 June 2018 208,812
Exchange differences : (28.627)
At 30 June 2019 180,185
Aceumaulated Impairment charge
At i July 2017 26,042
Iutpairment for the year 10,055
Exchange differences 772)
At 30 June 2018 35,325
Impairment for the year 3,258
Exchenge differences (109)
At 30 June 2019 38,474
Net book value
At 30 June 2019 141,711
At 30 Junc 2018 173,487

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is ailocated, at acquisition, to the cash generaling units (CGUs), or group
of units that are expected 10 benefit from that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated
as folfows:

Goadyill by cash generating units 2019 2018
£0060 £000

Pharmacy 37,757 40,397
Wholesale 12,055 12,055
Cement 61,499 81,763
Banking 30,400 39272
141,711 173,487

The Group tests goadwill aunuelly for impairment, or more frequently if there are indicators that goodwill might be impaired.
The need to recognise any impainuent charges is assessed by comparing the carrying value to the recoverable amount. The
recoverable amounl is the higher of the value in use or the fair value less cost to sell of each cash generating unit with any
impairmeni charge recognised in the administraiive expenses in the income statement.

As part of the annual impairment exercise, the Dircctors have also condueted 2 sensitivity analysis taking into
consideration the impact of reasonably possible changes in key assumptions in the value in use or fair value less cost to
soll calculations.

FPhaymacy Goodwil]

The recoverable amount of the pharmacy cash generating units have been assessed with reference to their value in use
cafculations using a discounted cash flow model.
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Notes (continued)
21. Goodwill (coutinued)

In addition to the budgeted EBITDA figures key assumptions nsed in these calcufations are shown below:

2019 2018
Period on which management approved forecasts are based 5 years 5 years
Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period 2% 2%
Discount rate 9.3% &8.1%

The growih rates nsed in value in use calculation reflect the average industry growth expected, The discount rates used have
declined year on year due to current market conditions. In calculating this value, management have used budgeted EBITDA.
Budgeted EBITDA was based on expeciations of future outcomes considering past experience, adjusted for anticipated revenue
growth,

In calculating any impairment provision, the Group makes an estimate of the expected retum for each cash generating unit in
comparison to the goodwill and intangibfes of that cash generating unit. Any impairment is first applied to goodwill and then
the related ficenses. A goodwili impairment charge of £2.6m (2018: £0.4in) was recognised within administrative expenses.

A reasonably possible change in assumptions for goadwill in the pharmacy business would lead to a further impairment.

Wholesale Gaodwill

The total goodwill attributable to the wholesale business as at June 2019 is £12.1m. Of the total goodwill value £5.1m relates
to acquisition of five depots located in Scotland, with the balance of E7m relating to Batley’s Limited.

Goodwill relaiing fo depols:
The Directors have caleunlated the recoverable amount of these cash generating units with reference to their value in use,

The key assumptions other than the forecast EBITDA used in the vatue in use caleulations are;

2019 2018
Period on which manegement approved [orecasts are based 5 years 5 years
Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period nil nil
Discount rate 6.0% 6.0%

Goodwill relating to Batley’s Limited

The Directors have calculated the recoverable amount of Batley's Limited with reference to a fair value less cost to sell
approach based on its net assets, Using this approach, the recoverable amount was in excess of the carrying value of this cash
generating unit.

A reasonably possible ehange in assumptions for goodwill in the Whalesale business would not lead lo an impairment.
Centent Goodwill

The goodwill attributable to the cemen! business as at 30 June 2019 is £5]1.5 million (2018 £81.8 million.) and relates to the
acquisition of Pakeem Limited and Mustehkam Cement Limited.

Ths recoverable antount of this goodwill is assessed For impairment annually using a fair value less cost to scll approach, The
calculation methodology takes account of ar: Enterprise Value to EBITDA multiple derived from the financial information of
similar sized cement businesses and an estimate of cost 1o sell of 3% of the Enterprise Value to cover professional, legal costs
and taxes,

The recoverable amount for the Cement business using this methad is in excess of the carrying value of the CGU and any
reasonably possible change in assumptions for group goodwill in the cement business would not lead to an impairment.

Banking Goodwitl
The goodwill amount of £30.4 million (2018: £39.3 milfion) refates 1o the Group’s controfling stake in United Bank Limited.

For the bauking business, the recoverable amount has been derived using a fair value less cost to sell methodology based on
its listed share price adjusted for a contro! premiuin and an estimate of the cost to sell of 5% to cover professional, legal costs
and taxes. These assumptions are based on previous comparable transactions.

A reasonably possible change in assumptions for goodwill in the banking business would not lead to an impairment.
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Aeguisitions in the prior period
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Annual report and financial stateiients
For the year ended 30 June 2019

In tho prior year, on 7 April 2018, Bestway Retail Limited, a wholly owaed (indirect) subsidiary of Bestway Group Limited,
acquired the assets and liabilities from Bargain Booze Limited, Conviviality Retsil Logistios Limited and Wine Rack Limited
(see the prior year's financial statements for further details) resulting in a one-off gain on acquisition recognised in lncome
Statement. At the date of acquisition, the net assets acquired were estimated 1o have a provisional fair value of £27.5 million
and the Disectors had one year to finaliso their assessment. A detailed exercise 1o reassess the fair values was performed during
the year which resulted in a number of revisions to the provisional figures with the Dircctors concluding that the final fair
values of the net assets acquired was £14.7 million. Detaiis of the adjustments made to finalise the fair value exercise for this

acquisition are given below;

Provisional Fair value Final fair
fair values Adjustment values
£000 £000 £000
Intangible assets i 10,848 (4,755) 6.093
Property, plant and equipment i 13618 (8,862) 4,756
Inventorics i 15,765 (1,544 14,221
Cash and cash equivalents v 619 234 853
Trade and other payables v 547H {182) (5,655)
Provisions (more than one year) v (3.870) (17D 4,041)
Deferred Tax wif (3,642) 2,076 (1,566)
Total falr values of identifiable assets 27865 (13204} 14,661
Cash consideration 7,505 - 7.505
Gain on aqusiton 20,360 {13,204) 7.156

In accordance with IFRS 3 the Directors have restated the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018, See note 50

for fisrther details.

13, Other intangible asscts

Other
intangible

Trading Group Licences Software assets Total

£000 £000 £000 £009
Cost
At 1 July 2017 563,271 537 - 563,808
Acquisitions through business combinations (restated) - - 6,093 6,093
Additions developed interally - - 367 367
Additions purchased externally 1,500 2 - 1,502
Exchange difference (82) - _{382)
At 36 June 2018 (restated) 564,771 457 6,460 571,688
Additions developed internally 559 4,755 5,314
Additions purchased externally 1,045 4 719 1,768
Disposals (1,407 - - (LD
Exchange difference - (191 - (191)
At 30 June 2019 564,409 829 11,934 577,172
Amortisation and bupairmear
At 1 Juby 2017 . 99,014 351 - 99,365
Impairment 1,123 - - 1,123
Charge for the year 38,774 94 172 39,040
Exchange differences - (61) - (61)
At30 June 2018 138,911 384 172 139,467
Impairment 95 - - 95
Charge for the year 37,781 69 82¢ 33,671
Disposals (1,050 - - (1,051
Exchange differences - {98) - (98)
At 30 June 2019 175,736 355 993 177,084
Net book valie
A€ 30 June 2019 388,673 474 10,941 400,088
At30 June 2018 (restated) 425,860 73 6,288 4327221

See note 50 for information regarding assets acquired through business combinations and details of the restatement.
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23. Other intangible assets (continued)

As per note 50 the numbers above have been restated for the Bestway Retail Limited acquisition. The key change is on the
*gain on acquisition’ which was reported in the 30 June 2018 financial statements as £10.8 million and has now been restated
ta £6.1 million, which is a change of £4.8 million in the fair valuc of intangiblc assets acquired,

Licences

The pharmacy business requires Hcenses from relevant authorities in order to operate.

An impairmont loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of licences oxceeds their recoverable amount. The carrying
amount of licences is reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of itmpairment. 1f any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated, Any impairment Josses are recagnised in the income statement
within administrative cxpenses, :

Other nlangible gssels

Other intangibles comprise of acquired brands (which are amortised over the usefill economic life belweon 5 and 10 years) and
software costs and capitalised project costs (both of which are amortised over 4 yoars),

Banking Group Software
£000
Cost
At 1 July 2017 17,944
Additions 6,886
Disposals 3.721)
Exchange difference (4,960)
At 30 June 2018 16,149
Additions 3,614
Exchange dilference (5,990)
At 30 Junc 2018 13,773
Amortisation and impairatent
At | July 2017 10,450
Charge for the yoar 3,805
Disposals (3,633)
Exchange differences (3,648)
At 30 June 2018 6,974
Charge for the year 3,509
Exchange differences {4,155)
At 30 June 2019 6,328
Net book value
At 30 June 2019 7,445
At 30 hime 2018 9,175
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Netes (continued)

24, Property, plant and equipment

Trading Graup Fixtures, Assets In

Land and Plant and fittings and Motor  course of

buildings machinery equipmentvehicles construction Total

£000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation
At 1 July 2017 376,496 380,973 115,293 3,707 17,140 903,609
Additions 9,949 £8,530 17317 7446 71,857 125,099
Acquired in business combination (restated) 2,046 408 2,123 55 - 4,632
Disposals “) (3.811) {203) (2,112) - (6,130
Exchange difference (15872) (51,533} (392} (672) (2,195) (76,664)
Transfers 21,989 49616 21 183 (77,809) -
At 30 June 2018 400,604 394,183 134,159 18,607 8,993 956,546
Additions 2,540 7.015 18,971 1,002 17,236 46,764
Disposals 675) (1,642) (1,433) (1,959) - (3,709
Exchange difference {23,819) (76,685) 646) (983) (1,113) (103,246)
Transfers 7,193 16,154 Il - (23,458) -
At 30 June 2019 385843 339,025 151,162 16,667 1,658 894,355
Depreciation
At 1 July 2017 66,768 119,524 55885 8,314 - 250491
Charged in year (restated) 8,205 13,623 16933 3,737 - 42,498
Disposals - (1,516} 62) (1,269) - (2,847
Exchange difference (3,0i8) (1L,I358) (195) (242) - (14,613)
At 30 June 2013 . 71,955 120,473 72,561 10,540 - 275,829
Charged in year 8,797 15,049 18,883 2,957 - 45,686
Disposals 64) (151} (836) (1,384} - (2495
Exchange difference (4,722) (19443) (280) (420) - {24,865)
At 30 June 2019 75966 115,928 90,268 11,693 - 293,855
Net book vaine
At 30 June 2019 309,877 223,097 60,894 4,974 1,658 600,500
At 30 Juno 2018 (restated) 328,645 273,710 61,598 8,067 8993 681,017

See note 50 for information regarding assets acquired (hrough business combinations and details of the restatement.
Property, plant and equipment under construction

The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the period was £292,000 (20 18: £279,000) with a capitalisation rate o[ 7.03%
(2018: 6.35%).

Asscts pledged as security

Frechold land and buildings with a carrying amount of £259.5 million (2018 restated: £264.0 million) have been pledged o
secure borrowings of the Group. The Group is prohibited from pledging these assets as security for other botrowings and is
restricted with respect to disposing of them.
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24. Property, plant and cquipment {continued)

Banking Group
Fixtures,
fittings Assets in
Land and Plant and and  Moter  course of
buitdings machinery equipment vehicles construction Taotal
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Caost or valuation
At L July 2017 244,425 6,005 73,699 3,602 24,643 3527374
Additions 23,031 145 18,129 495 - 41800
Disposals (55)  (1,260) (10,748)  (938) (9,055) (22,056)
Revaluations 37,263 - - - - 37,263
Exchange difference 40,652)  (1,012) (14,599}  (653) (2,951) (59.867)
At 30 June 2018 264,012 3,878 66,481 2,506 12,637 349,514
Additions 9,419 2,627 8,522 445 2,728 23,741
Disposals (334)  (2046) 1911 (719 (5,233} (10,239
Revaluations 230) (230)
Exchange difference (59,368)  (1,251) (20,132 (768) (1,866) (83,385)
At 30 June 2019 213,499 3,208 52,960 1,468 8,266 279,401
Depreciation
At 1 Juty 2057 7,222 1,524 30,936 932 - 40,614
Charged in year 4301 1,322 10,888 606 - {7,117
Disposals 20) (B824)  (9,%49)  (641) - (11430
Exchange difference (5,621) 472) (8,807) (273) - (15,173)
At 30 June 2018 5,882 1,550 23,068 624 - 35124
Charged in year 4,507 1,107 8,632 407 - 14,653
Disposals (228)  (1,722)  (1,563) (462) - (3,975
Exchange difference (3,587 (555) (11,014) (476) - (15,632)
At 30 June 2019 6,574 380 19,123 93 - 26,E70
Net book value
At 30 June 2019 206,925 2,828 33,837 1,378 8,266 253,231
At 30 June 2018 258,130 2,328 43,413 1.382 12,637 318,390

The majority of proporties of the Banking Group kave boen revalued by independent professionnl valuers as at 31 December
2018. The revaluation was carried out on the basis of professional assessment of present markel values. The accumulated
surplus arising aguinst the revaluation of fixed assets as at 30 June 2019 amounts to £126.3 miltion (2018: £169.9 million).
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Had there been no revaluation, the carrying amount of revalued assets would have been as follows:

Banking Group

Freehold tand

Leasehold Jand

Buildings on frechold land
Buildings o leasehold land

Buildings en leasehold land

Frechold land

Leasehold land

Buildings on frechold land
Buildings on leasehold land

Buildings on leasehold land

25, Investment property

Trading Group

Cost or valuation
At 1 Juty 2017
Additions

Disposals
Exchange difference
Revaluation

At 30 Juno 2013
Additions

Exchange differcace
Revaluation

At 30 June 2019

Net book valie

At 30 June 2019

At 30 June 2018

The investment property in Pakistan is held by the cement business.

Accumulatod Net book
Cost  depreciation value
2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000
3,768 - 3,768
17,070 553 16,517
17,799 987 16,812
23,434 1,541 21,893
62,071 3,081 58,990
Accumulated Net book
Cost  depreciation value
2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000
4,638 - 4,638
19,216 8 19,208
8,971 799 8,172
27,182 789 26,393
60,007 1,596 58411
United

Kingdom Pakistan Total
£000 £000 £000
113,149 1,838 114,987

38 - 38

(4,520) - (4,520)

- Esh (28D

4,342 46 4,388
113,009 1,603 114,612

40 - 40

- @363 (363)

2,130 23 2,153
115178 1,263 116,442
115,179 1,263 116,442
113,009 1,603 114,612

Any gain or loss arising from & change in fair value (s recognised as other gains and losses in the consolidated income statement.
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25. Investment property (continued)
Investment properties located in the United Kingdom

For the investment properties located in the United Kingdom. the last fu!l, formal extemal valuation was performed during the
year ended 30 June 2015, An invostment property fair value exercise was undertaken in the years to 30 June 2018 and 2019,
based on desktop valuations performed by Jonos Lang LaSalle, an external, independent valver, having an appropriate
recognised professionat quslifications and recent experience in the location and class of property being valued.

The desktop valuations, which are supported by market evidence, are prepared by consideting the aggregate of the net annual
rents receivable from the properties and where relevant, associated costs, A yield which reflects the specific risks inherent in
the net cash flows is then applied to the net annual rentals to amrive at the property valuation.

The UK Trading Group has pledged £115.2 milkion {2018: £113.¢ million) of its investment property o secure domestic
banking facilitics granted to the Trading Group {sce notc 36).

Investment praperties located in Pakistan

The investinent properly is a portion of the cement business's iead office building in Islamabad held for letting. An independent
exercisc was carried out to delermine the fair value of investment property. To assess the Jand and building prices, n markes
survey was carried ocutin the vicinity of the investment property. Fair value of the investment property is based on independent
valuer's judgment about average prices prevalent on the aforementioned dule and has been prepared on openly
available/provided information after making relevant inquiries from the market, Valuation was carried out by an independent
valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and category
of the investment property being valued.

Any pain or loss arising from a chauge in fair value is recognised as other gains and losses in the consolidated in come statenient.

Disclosures for the Trading group’s invesiment properties are given below:

Fair value as at 30 June 2019 Bevell JevelZ TLevel3
£000 £000 £000

Commercial property units:

Located in the United Kingdot - - 115,179
Located in Pakistan - - 1,263

- - 116,442
Fair value as at 30 June 2018 level | Level2 level3

£000 £000 E000
Comemercial property units:

Located in the United Kingdom - - 113,009
Located in Pakistan - - 1,603
- - 114,612

The Group measures fair vafues using the following fair valuc hicrarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements: Level | — Feir value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities; Level 2 — Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 thal are
observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices), Level 3 — Fair value
measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on obseivable market data (i.c. unobservable inputs). The
significant nnobservable inputs used by the UK Trading Group is market rate per mouth £4-£55 per square foot (lettable).

Property valuations are inherently subjective as they are made based on assumptions made by the valuer. For these reasons we
have classified the valuations of investment property portfolio as level 3 as defined by [FRS 13 and note they could be subject
to material change.

There were no transfers between Levels | and 2 during the year.
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25. Investment property (continued)

Banking Group Total
£000
Cost or valuation
At 30 June 2017 19,634
Additions 3,479
Disposals (2,183)
Revaluation 541
Exchange differences (2,017}
At 30 June 2018 19,454
Additions 477
Disposals (1,572
Revaluation ‘ 1,398
Exchange difforences (3,838)
At 30 June 2019 15,919
Net book valiee
At 30 June 2019 15'9 19
A130 Junc 2018 19,454

The latest external valuations of investment properties of the Banking Group were performed by varions indepondent
professional valuers during year, having appropriate recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the
location and category of the properties being valued.

The fair value of the investment property of UBL UK was based on a market-based desktop valuation conducted in December
2018, The desktop valuation was based on an analysis of rental yields and sales values of similar properties and locations, It
was concluded that there have nat been significant property market value movements since lasl valuations.

The Bank values its investiment proporty at fair value as per the requirements of IFRS 13 - "Fair Value Measurement”.

Far the fair value measurement of investment properties, unobservable inputs are used by the valuers engaged by the Group.
Unobservable inputs are used fo measure fair vafue fo the exient that refevant observable inputs are not available, thereby
allowing for situations in which there is litle, if any, market activity for the assci at the measurement date. Therefore, the
investment properlies are classified under level 3 hierarchy of fair valne nieasurement under IFRS 13 and note they could be
subject to material change.

Land, buildings and non-banking assots acquired in satisfaclion of claims are revalued on a periodic basis using professional
valuers. The valuation is based on their assessment of the market value of the assets. The effoct of changes in the unobservable
inputs used in the valuations cannot be determined with certainty, Accordingly, a qualitative disclosure of sensitivity has not
been presented in these consolidated financial slatements,

Any gain or toss arising from a change in fair value is recogiised as other gains and losses in thie income statement.
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26. Related undertakings

The Group consists of a parent Company, Bestway Group Limited, incorporated in the UK, and several subsidiaries held

directly and indirectly by Bestway Group Limited. Details of the interests in subsidiaries arc set out below:

VI Company Registered Class of shares
number office held
Directly held subsidiaries
Bestway (Holdings) Limited (direct) 01392861 B Ovdinary
Tndirectly held subsidiaries
Trading Group

Bestway Seccurities Limited 09106250 R Ordinary
Bestway Northem Holdings Limited NA T Ordinary
Bestway Cement Limited NA N Ordinary
Bestway Power Limited NA N Ordinary
Bestway Spinning Limited NA N Ordinary
Bestway UK HoldCo Limited 09106288 B Ovdinary
Oskleaf Limited? NA T Ordinary
Bestway Northemn Limited 02675585 B Ordinary
Bestway Limited! 02596168 B Ordinary
Bestway Panacea Holdings Linited 09225479 A Ordinary
Bestway Wholesale Limited 01207120 B Ordinary
Palmbest Limited 02548785 B Ordinary
Batloys Properties Limited 0170410 B Ovrdimary
MAP Trading Limited 01826942 B Oxrdinary
Euroimpex (U.K.) Limited! 01584125 B Ordinary
Batieys Limited! 0675326 B Ordinary
Beslway Retail Limited 04103203 B Ordinary
Ardiles Bideo Limited! 10449694 U Ordinary
KMD Enterprises Limited! 04314857 u Ordinary
Xcel Retail Limited! 09121924 U Ordinary
Bestway Fharmacy NDC Limited? 01050265 A Ondinary
Donald Wardle and Son?? 02914910 A Ordinary
Opus Phanmacenticais Limited®” 05888155 A Ordinary
Bostway Panacea Healtheare Limited? 09225514 A Ordinary
Bestway National Chemists Limited” 09225457 A Ovdinary
Portslade Medical Supplies Limited*? 01663067 A Ordinary
FA Parkinson {Chanists) Limited?? ) SC035900 I Ordinary
Parkinson (Paisley) Limited*? SC204178 L Ordinary
Bestway Belfast Chemists Limited4? NI626625 J Ordinary
Ebbw Vale Consortium Litited!47 01338409 A Ordinary
Care4U Pharmacy Limited*? 03983332 A Ordinary
Baillieston Health Centre Pharmacy Limitod* SC080281 Y Ordinary
Ideal Healthcare Limited* 03443725 A Ordinary
Pills Limited! SC271830 i Ovdinary
RLJ Consultancy Limited! 03283312 A Ovdinary
CCS (West Street) Limited!s 06149560 A Ordinary
G Lightfool & Son Limited? 0626296 A Ovdinary
Crown Imperial Associates Limited! 03262921 A Ovdinary
Crewe Complete Solution Limited 'S 05765407 1 Ordinary
Keighley Health Centre Limited® 01263903 G Ordinary
Thoinag Hetlierington Limited!? §C095304 I Ovdinaiy
P.H.C Pharmacy Limited® SC115847 D Ordinary
Cannon 8t (HCC) Limited's 01659041 C Ordinary
P Williams Chemists (Chester) Limited!? 03210568 A Ordinary
Thres Swans Pharmacy Limited? 06975508 A Ordinary
Victoria Pharmacy Limited 01933847 F Ordinary
Victoria Pharmacy Limited 01933847 F A
Pearith Health Centre (PD) Consortinm Limited® 01775075 B Ordinary
Penrith Health Centre (PD) Consortivm Limited? 01775075 E A
Batleys Glasgow Limited! 5C125810 B Ordinary
Benson (Grocers) Limited! SC256747 B Ordinary
Bellevue Cash and Carry Limited* SC046528 B Orginary

Chwnership %

2019

100

160
108
54.5

100
i06

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
106
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
180
100
100
100
100

100
100
100

100

100
67
100
25
100
100

100
100

2018

100

100
100
54.5
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100
100
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26, Related undertakings (continued)
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UK Company Registered Class of shares

number office
Indirectly held subsidiaries
Banking Group
United Bank Limited® NA L
UBL Insurers Limited NA o
United Bank AG Zurich? NA R
United National Bank Limiled® 4146820 M
UBL Bank (Tanzania) Limited?® NA Q
United Executives & Trustess Company Limited? NA P
UBL Fund Managers Limited® NA s
Al Ameen Financin] Services (Pvi.) Limited® NA s
' These entities are dormant.

*Aclive; non-trading

*Dissolved in the year

held

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ouvdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Grdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

For the year ended 30 Junc 2019

Ownership %

2019

55.8

79
55.8
30.7
55.8
55.8
55.1
55.1

2018

558

7%
558
307
558
55.8
55.1
55.1

*Thesc subsidiary undertakings arc cxempt from the Companics Aol 2006 requiremonts reinting to the audit of their individual accounts by virtue
of Seotion 479A of the Act ng this Company has g teed the subsidiary company under Scotion 479C of the Act.

¥ Disposed of during the year
¢ Acquired 100% of the sharcholding sfler the year end.

"These enlities require financinl suppodt from Bestway Group Limited.

*These entities have 31 December year ends, in line with indusiry standacds,

*This entity hae effective ownership of 30.67% but is still considered a subsidiary. The immediate parent company, United Bank Limited, has a
55% holding in this entity, and United Bank Limited is a direot subsidiary of Bestway Holdings Limiled as noled above. As a result, the Group oan
exermisc significant controd over this catity and is thereforc considered a subsidiary. All other entitics are considered subsidiarics due to effective
ownership of the ardinary shares by this Company being greater than 50%,

The total lisbilities of subsidiary undertakings exempt from the Companics Act 2006 andit requirements under Section 479C of
the Act, totals £60.2 million (2018: £70.3 miltion).

A-
B-
C-
n-
E-
F-
G-
H-
I-
I-
K-
L-
M-
N-
0-
P-
Q,
R-
s
T-
U-
V-

Merchanis Warchouse, Castle Street, Manchoster, UK, M3 412

2 Abbey Road, Park Royal, London, UK, NWI10 TBW

64 Bumedgo Lane, Grassoroft, Oldham, OL4 4EB

Cilypoint 2 23 Tyndrum Street, Glasgow, G4 DJY

4 Mnson Courd Giltan Way, Penrith 40 Business Park, Penrith, Cumbria, CAL1 3GR
The Health Centre, Violoria Road, Hartlepool, TS26 8DB

29 Dovonshire Street, Keighloy, West Yorkshire, BD21 2BH

Unil 6, Ashbrook Offtos Park, Longstone Road, Heald Green, Manchester, M22 51L.B
18-20 Main Stroct, Beith, Aymshire, Scotland, KA15 2AD

70 Ballygomariin Road, Belfast, BT13 3NE

20 Muirside Road, Raillicston, Glasgow, G69 TAD

13th Floor, UBL Building, Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, Islamabad, Pakistan

2 Brook St, London W1S 1BQ

Bestway Building, 19-A, College Raad, F-7 Markaz, Islamabad, Pakistan

126-C, Jami Comnmesoial, Strect No, 14, Phase VI, DHA, Karachi, Pakistan

Slate Life BUILDING No. 1, LL Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pekistan

26 MKWEPU / Knlula Street, P.O, BOX 5887, Dares Salnam, Tanzani, Tanzanin,
Uniled Bank AG (Zurich), Feldeggstrasse 55, P.O Box. No. 1176, 8034, Zurioh, Switzerland
4th Floor, STSM Building, Beaumont Road, Civii Lines, Karechi, Pakistan
Newport House, 15 The Grange, 51 Peters Port, GY1 2QL, Guernsey

Weston Road, Crewe, Cheshire, England, CWi 6BP

204 Polmadie Road, Hampden Pack Industriaf Estate, Glasgow, G42 OPH
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27. Investments in associates and equity accounted investees

The nature of the activities of the Group's associstes is in banking, energy and pharmacy services, These are seen as
complementing the Group’s aperations and contributing to achieving the Group's overall strategy. The Group has the following
indirect investment in associates;

Registered Class of Effective
office  shares Ownership % Measurement Method  Carrying amount

held 2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000

Banling Group
Khushhali Bank Limited'? W Ocdinary 29.7 297 Equity method 13,529 13,889
UBL Funds* X Units NA NA Equity method 842 9,385

i Ci .

ET:g?cgmed Exchange Company Y Ordinary - 250 Equity method - 419
DHA Cogen Limired® Z Ordinery 2L0 210 Equity method - -

14,371 23,693

'K hushhali Bank Limited is a micsofinance bank which is based in Islamabad, Pakistan.
?This entity has a 3| Decoember year end, in line with industry standards.

*This entity has been written down in previous finaucial years, thercfore has a carrying value of nil as at 33 June 2019 {2018:
nil).

4 The investment in UBL Funds is across various funds originating from the Banking Group none of which the Group has
control over.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial staiements as set ovt in
the Group's accounting policies in note 3.

W - 55-C, 5th Floor, U-Fone Tower, Jinnah Avenue, Blue Arca, Islemabad

X - dth Floor, STSM Building, Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi, Pakistan

Y - Said Rajab Building 39, 3727, Ruwi High Streel, Mezzanine Floor, Ruwi Aren, 889, Musoat, Oman
Z - D35, Block-5 Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Sunnnarised financial information for associates

The Banking Qroup’s investmont in associates as at 30 June 2019 is analysed, in aggregate, in the bejow table;

2019 2018

£000 £000

Carrying amount of interests in associates 14,371 23,693
Share of:

Profit from continning operations 2,899 2,600

Total comprehensive icomo 2,899 2,600

Below is the analysis of financial performance and financial position of Group's material associate, Khushhali Bank Limited;

Khushhali Bank

Limited

2019 2018

£000 £000
Revenuo 59,399 79,946
Profit before tax 25,106 18,074
Other comprehensive income 737 (165)
Current assets 308,899 342,110
Net assets 43,133 43,944
Carrying amount of iltterests in associates 13,529 13,889
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Notes (continued)

28. Inventories

Trading Group 2018
2019 (restated)
£000 £000

Consumables 26,539 47,530

Raw materials 2,428 3,929

Work-in-progress 7,890 19,222

Finished goods — cement 2,632 3,958

Finished goads — UK trading 245,419 254,147

284,908 328,786

Details of the restatement are given in note 50.

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year in respect of continuing operations was £2,855.2 million
(2018: £2,942.9 million) before considerntion of supplier rebates.

The cost of inventories recognised as an oxpense includes £1.3 million (2018: £2.7 million) in respect of write-downs of
inventory to net realisable valus.

Inventories with a carrying amount of £245.4 million (2018: £226.0 million) have been pledged as security for certain of the
Trading Group's borrowings.
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29, Investments in financial assets

Banking Group

Financial invesiments at fair value through OCI

Debt instruments

Market Treasury Bills

Pakistan Investment Bonds
Govenunent of Pakistan Sukuk
Government of Pakistan Eurobonds
Term Finance Cerlificates

Foreign bonds

Equity instruments

Ordinary shares of vnlisted companies
Investment in REIT

Muitual Fund

Financial investments at fair value through Profit
and Loss

Debt instruments

Market Treasury Bills

Pakistan Investment Bonds

Sukuks

Preference sharcs

Term Finance Certificates

Equity instruments

Ordinary shares of listed companies- Initially
Designated at Fair value through profit and loss
Investment in REIT

Mutual Fuads

Financinl investments at amorfised cost
Debt instruments

Market Treasury Bills

Pakistan Investment Boads
Govemment of Pakistan Eurcbonds
Goveminent of Pakistan Sukuk
Other Federal Govemment Securilies
Term Finance Certificates

Snkuk Bonrds

Participation Term Certificates
Debentures

Foreign Bonds

Recovery Note

Deposit receipts

Letter of placement

Bai Muajjal

Less: impairment on investments at amortised cost

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Anaual report and financial statements
Far the year ended 3G Juue 2019

Non- Non-

Cuarrent current Total Current  current Tota}
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £060

829,735 - 829,735 - - -

197,041 525,798 722,839 - - -
2,480 45,308 47,788 - - .
1,444 103,138 164,582 - - -
3,229 - 3,229 - - -

89,405 339,356 428,761 - - -
6,305 176 6,481 - - -

- 33 33 - N -
1,129,639 1,013,809 2,143,448 - - -
645,621 - 645,621 - - -
715 - 718 - - -

- 4,158 4,158 - - -

177 - 177 - - -
1,709 10,836 12,545 - - -
69,085 - 69,085 - - .
2,042 - 2,042 - - -
1,088 -~ 1,088 - - .
726,437 14,994 735431 - - -
15,534 . 15,534 - - .
464,782 689,243 1,154,025 - - -
817 50,635 51,452 - - -

- 3,989 3,989 - - -

3,796 15,119 18,915 - - -
10,786 68,867 79,653 - - -
2 - 2 - - -

11 - 11 - - -
8,961 86,272 95,233 B - -
2,375 - 2,375 - - -
1,204 - 1,204 - - -
530 v 530 B - .

119,764 « 119,764 - - .

628,562 914,125 1,542,687 - - -

(12,910) - (12910 - . .

615,652 914,125 1,529,777 - - -

2,465,728 1,942,928 4,408,656 - - -
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29. Investments in financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale investments cnitied at fair value
Market Treasury Bills

Pakistan Invesiment Bonds
Govemmnient of Pakistan Sukuk
CGovomment of Pakistan Eurobonds
Ordinary shares of listed companies
Preference shares

Ordinary shares of unlisted companies
Term Finange Certificates

Uniis of mutnal funds:

Investment in REIT

Foreign bords

Other bonds

Trading Investmenis carrvied at falr value
Market Treasury Bills

Pakistan Investment Bonds

Ordinary shares of listed companies

Term Finance Corlificates

Held-to-maturity investments cavried at amortised
cost

Market Troasury Bills

Pakistan Investment Bonds
Govemment of Pakistan Eurobonds
Term Finance Certificates
Sukuk Bonds

Participation Term Cerlificates
Debentures

Foreign Bonds

Recovery Note

CDC SAARC Fund
Commercial paper

Impairment provision on invesiments

Debt instruments measured at fair value through OCI

Bestway Group Limited

Registored number | 1003305

Annual report and financial statemenis
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Non- Non-

Current corrent Total Current  current Tolal
2019 20619 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

- - - 1,094,726 - 1,094,726
- - « 298,206 791,914 1,090,120
- - - 063,380 53,304 116,684
- - - 25,132 87,618 112,750
- - -~ 130,782 227 131,009
. - - 2,65 - 265
- - - 4,685 - 4,685
- - - 2,207 3,244 5,45
. - - 3,345 - 3,345
- - ~ 92,209 311,039 403,338
- - - 1,717,418 1,247,346 2,964,764
- - - 221351 - 221,351
- - - 15 - 15
- - - 221366 - 221366
. - - 35629 - 35629
- , - 436,128 1,347,634 1,783,762
- - - 777 40,924 41,701
- - - 1,051 38477 39,528
- - - 6,175 77,190 83,365
- - - 3 - 3
- - - 14 - 14
- - - 9,150 140,752 149002
- - - 303 2,027 2330
- - - I - 1
_ ) - 14n - 1413
- - - 4%0,6dd 1,647,004 2,137,648
- - - (38,776 - (38,776)
2,465,728 1,942,928 4,408,656 2,390,652 2,894,350 5,285,002

The table below shows the fair value of the Bank’s debt instruments measured at FVOCI by credit risk, based on the Banking
Group's intemal credit rating system and year-end stage classification.

Internal rating grade

Performing
Investiwent grade
Non-investment grade
Non-performing
Substandard

Doubtful

Loss

Total

Stage 1 Stage2  Stage3 “Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
1,978,245 86,570 - 2,064,815
- 61,000 - 61,000

. . 5,040 5,940
1,978,245 147,570 5940 2,131,755

The table below shows the analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount in relation to debt instruments classified as fair

value through OCL
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29, Investments in financial assets (continued)

An analysis of the corresponding ECLs is, as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
ECL as at 1 July 2018 (see note 44) 2,175 4,382 605 7,162
New assets originated or purchased 83 470 1,757 2,310
Assets derecognised or matured (oxcluding write-offs) (302) (1,491) - (1,793)
Transfer to Stage 2 (200) 200 - -
Transfer o Stage 3 - (252) 252 -
ngae: on year end ECL of exposures (ransferred between stages (200) 52) 252 )
uring the year
Changes o contractual cashflows due to partial repayments and
changes to estimates and assemptions wsed to caloulate ECL ) 3,673 1,513 7.188
Foreign exchange adjustments 219 (44) 418) @43)
As nt 30 June 2019 C1,975 4,940 3,709 14,624

The movements of ECL were primarily driven by new purchases and sales.

Gains / losses recognised in the income statement an sale of debt instrument classified under fair value through OCI are
disclosed inn note 13. ’

Ggins / iosses on remessurement of debt insirument classified under fair value through OCI are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Investments given as collateral by the Banking Group

As at 30 June 2019 Tatal
£000

Market Treasury Bills 301,348
Pakistan Investment Bonds 14,089
Govemment of Pakistan Eurobonds 9,995
Government of Pakistan Sukkuk 5874
331,306

Information sbout the methods and assumptions used in determining fair value is provided in note 44, and information about
the loss allowatice recognised on debt investmenlts at FVOCI is provided above.

Equity instruments measured at falr value through OCI

Equity securities which are not held for trading, and which the group has irrcvocably elected at initial recognition lo recognise
in this category. These are strategic investments and ihe Group considers this classification 10 be more relevant.

Equity invesiments at FVOCI comprise the following:

Ordinary shares of untlsted companies Ju?li ;tg:;g

£000
First Women Bank 102
N.LE.T 7
Passco 26
Swift (Belgium) 14
‘Fechlogix Intemational Limited 180
Cinepax Limited 289
Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Co Limited 2,408
The Benefit Company B.8S.C 16

3,042
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29. Investments in financial assets {continued)

Debt instruments measured at Faix value through profit and less (FVPL)

Debt investments recognise in this category are those that do not qualify for measurement at cither amorlised cost or FVOCL

Gains / losses recognised in income sfatement on debt instruments classified under fair value through profit and loss are
disclosed in nofe 13.

Information about the methads and assamptions used in deternining fair valne of debt instruments at fair value through profit
and loss is provided in note 44.

Investments given as collateral by the Bank

As at 30 June 2019 Total
£000
Market freasury bills 234,424

Equity instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVI’L)
The group classifies the following financial assets at [air value through profit or loss;

- equity investments that are held for trading and
- oquity investments for which the entity has not elected to recognise fair value gains and losses through OCI.

Gains / losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments cfassified under fair value threugh profit and loss are
disclosed in note 13.

Information about the methods and assumptions used in determining fair value of equity instruments at fair value through prolit
and loss is provided in note 44,

Debt instruments measwured at amortised cost
The table below shows the fair value of United Bank Limited’s (which forms the significant portion of the Banking Group)

debt instruments measured at amortised cost by credit risk, based on UBL’s intornal credit rating system and year-end stage
classification,

Internal rating grade Stagel Stage2 Staged Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Performing

Invostmoent grade 1,475,255 41,108 - 1,516,363

Non-investment grade - 21,422 - 21422

Past due but not impaired - - - -

Non-performing -

Substandard - - - -
Doubtful - - - -
Loss ) - - 4,902 4,902
Total 1,475,255 62,530 4,902 1,542,687

The table below shows the analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount in relation to debt instruments classified as fair
value throagh OCI.
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29, Investments in financial assets (continued)

An analysis of the corresponding ECLs is, as follows:

Stage I Stage2 Stage3 Total
£000 £060 £000 £000
ECT. as at 1 July 2018 1,026 2022 11,268 14,316
New assets originated or purchased 114 2,066 - 2,180
Assets derecognised or matured (excluding write-offy) 210y (1,209) (2,898 4,317
Transfer to Stage 1 94 (943 - -
Impact on year end ECL of exposures transferred betvoen stages 94 (94) - -
during the year
Changes 1o contractual cash flows due to partial repayments and
changes to estimates and sssumptions used to caleulatc ECL. 4 1,802 “42) 1764
Foreign exchange adjustiments ¥ 89 (1,140 (1,034)
As at 30 June 2019 ' 1,045 4,676 7,188 12,909

‘The group classifies its financial assets as at amortised cost only if both of the lollowing criteria ase met:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contraclual cash flows, and
- the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that aro solely payments of principal and inferest.

FFair value of debt instruments classified at amortised cost is disclosed in note 13.

Information about the methods and assumptions used in detormining fair value is provided in note 44 and information about
the loss allowance recognised on debt investiments al amortised cost is provided sbave.

30. Trade and other receivables

2019 2018

Trading Group £000 £000
Trade reccivables 168,627 163,216
Expected credit losses (5,634) (3,491
162,993 159,725

Amounts due from related parties 42 1,584
Prepayments and acciued income 48,981 42,402
Other reccivables 36,438 54,548
249,154 258,259

Trade receivables
Wholesale and pharinacy businesses
Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as loans and receivables and are therefore measured at amortised cost.

The average credit period taken on sales of goods for our wholesale business is 30 days and 63 days for the OPD (Out Patients
Department) of our Pharmacy business. No interest is charged on the receivables balance, except for pharmacy’s OPD
customers for late payment. OPD customers are customers served in Well Pharmacy branches held within hospitals. The
wholesalo and phanmacy businesses will assess debt using the simplified expected credit loss methodology in respect of trade
and other receivables will be recorded and is assessed subsequently at each reporting period end and if there is a material
change in the credit risk lifetime ECL’s will be recorded, there was no material change in the credit risk of trade and other
receivables of the group at 30 June 2019. The debt ageing 90 days, or mote are assessed by the wholesale and pharmacy
businesses and a provision is provided against the debt which is ualikely to be recovered in the next [2 months. To measure
the expected credit losses trade receivables are grouped based on shared credit risk characlesistics and days past due.
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30. Trade and other receivables (continued)
Cement business

Trade receivables disclosed abave are classified as loans and receivables and are thercfore meastired at amortised cost. All
balances are classified as current.

The average credit period taken on sefes of goods for our cement business is 10 days. The business' exposure fo credit risk is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the eredit risk of
its customer base. The business has established a credit policy under which sach new customer is assessed individually for
aredilworthiness before the business's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Sales Iimits are
established for cach customer and are reviewed on monthly basis. The business mainlains provision for doubtful debts that
represents its cstimaie of probable losses i respect of trade debts.

Trading Group
Bofore setting up & new customer account on credit, the Trading Gronp assesses the potentinl customer's credit quality.

The aging of trade receivables at the balance sheet date was:

Gross bhmpairment Gross Impairment

2019 2019 2018 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000

Mot past due 152,557 - 151,569 -
0-30 days past due 1,807 167 1,907 -
31-60 days past due 3,761 60 4,139 235
More than 61 days past due 10,502 5,407 5,601 3,256
168,627 5,634 163,216 3,491

Movement in expected credit lasses:

2019 2018

£000 £000
Balance at the beginning of the period 3,491 2,590
Impairment losses recognised 1,572 710
Provigion for uncollectable debts 749 -
Impairment losses reversed {178) (209
Balance at the end of the year §,634 3491

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit guality of the trede
receivable from the date credit was initially pranted up to the reporling date. The concontration of credit risk is limited duc to
the eustomer base being large and unrelated.

The Directors consider that the carrying amoint of trade and other receivables is approximately equal to their fair value.

All trade and other receivables for the Trading Group are current and expected to be recovered within 12 months. Qther
receivables are held ot amortised cost as the objective is to collect the contracmal eash flow which are solely the principal
balance and related interest.

2019 2018

Banking Group £000 £000
Other receivables recognised as financial assets 202,816 241,373
Other reccivables 22,787 34,831
Employes benefits - 865
Insurance receivable 6,637 7.842
Prepayments and accrued income 24,357 22359
Other assets - net of provisions ’ 256,597 307,270
Provision heid against other assets (7,840) (7,297)
248,757 299,973

Provision held against other assets incliude £0.4 million becanse of ECL allowance on acoeptances as 5t 30 June 2019,
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31. Lending te financial institutions and advances

Banking Group

Lending to financial institutions
Call money lending

Repurchase agreemont lending

Bai Muajjal receivable from financial
institutéons

Other lending to financial institutions
Provision against lending to financial
institations

Advances

Loans, cash credits, ninning finances, stc.
Bills discounted and purchased

Provisiot against advances

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number § 1003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Current Non-curreat Total Current  Non-cetrrent Total
2019 2019 2019 23018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

17,382 - 17,382 110,406 - 110,406
61,626 - 61,626 33,319 - 33,319
19,390 - 19,390 - . B}

- 10,534 10,534 76,123 58,379 134,502

25) - z5) (5,682) - (5,682)
98,373 10,534 108,907 214,166 58,379 272,545
1,843,805 1,621,594 3,465,399 2,336,910 2,055,633 4,392,543
230,870 83,575 314,445 429,370 108,899 538,269
(408,935) -~ (408,935) (332,781) - (332,781
1,665,740 1,705,162 3,370,909 2,433,499 2,164,532 4,598,031
1,764,113 1,715,703 3 479816 2,647,665 2222911 4,870,576

Details of impairment losses on lending to financial instifufions and advances subject to impairment assessment

Outstanding exposure as at 30 June 2019

The table below shows the carrying value of the Bank’s lendiag to financial institutions and advances measured at amortised
cost by eredit risk, based on the Bank’s intemal credit rating system and yeur-end stage classificafion,

Internal rating grade (Corporate)

Performing

Corvporate

High grade

Medium grade

Low grade

Past due but not impaired

Retail
Not yet due
Past due but not impaired

Overseas Branches

Nan-performing (Corporate and Retail)

0AEM
Substandard
Doubtful
Loss

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
885,396 52,723 - 938,119
962,965 242,630 - 1,205,595
182,423 301,317 - 483,740
512,823 114,896 - 627,719
185,121 9,147 - 194,268
19,204 21,029 . 40,233
- - 35,830 35,850

. - 23,614 23,614

- - 339,639 339,639
2,747,932 741,742 399,103 3,888,777
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31. Lending te financial institutions and advances (continued)

An analysis of changes in the gross carnying amouns and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to consumer lending
are, as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Gross earrying amount as at 1 July 2018 3,970,802 843,261 394,976 §,209,039
Now assets purchased or originated 1,300,644 - - 1,300,644
Payments and assets derecognised (excluding write-offs) (1,270,767 (307,268) (43,345) (1,621,380)
Transfers to Stage | 71,615 (71,209) (406) -
Trausfers to Stage 2 (462,383) 462,429 “6) -
Transfers to Siage 3 (37,378) (340,370) 377,748 -
Changes to contractual cashflows due to partial repayment (428,146) 50,850 377,296 -
Changes to estimates and assuinptions used to caleufate ECL. (154,113) 233,955  (280,606) (200,764)
Accrued Interest - - 2,235 2,235
Amount wrilten off (7,282) - (14,298) (22,120)
Foreign exchange adjustnents (663,206) (79,056 {36,555) (778,817)
As 30 June 2019 2,747,932 741,742 399,103 3,888,177
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
ECL sallowance as at 1 July 2018 under IFRS 9 31,636 70,285 340,741 442,662
New assets purchased or otiginaled 58,657 - - 59,657
Payments and assels derccognised (excluding write-offs) (10,772) (14,9523 (34,065) (59,789)
Transfers to Stage 1 2,103 (1,778) (325) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (17,482) 17,528 46) -
Traasfors to Stage 3 (38,734) (3.501) 42,235 .
Impact on ycar end ECL of exposures transferred between (54,113) 12,249 41,864 )
stages during tho year
Unwind of discount as a reduction of inferest income - - 2,234 2,234
Chnnges to eontraclufil’ cashflows due to modifications not (.674) (6,553) 10224 (4,003)
resuiting in derecognition
Changes to estimates and assumptions vsed for ECL . _ '
calculations note 44 (Fmancial instrunients) 19,409 19.409
Amounts written off - - (14,906) (14,906}
Forcign exchange adjustment (4,097 (8,865) (23,342) (36,304)
As 30 June 2019 14,637 52,164 342,159 408,960
32, Cash and cash equivalents
Trading
Trading Banking Group Banking Total
Group Group Total  (restated) Group  (restated)
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 154,181 1,337,440 1,491,621 170,121 1,229.870 1,399,991
Bank overdrafts (107,148) (2,085) (109,233)  (140,649) (6,201) (146,850}

47,033 1,335,355 1,382,388 29472 1,223,669 1,253,141

Details of the restatement are given in note 50.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, net
of outstending bank overdrafts. The carrying amount of these assets are equal to their fair value.
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33, Trade and other payables

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 209

Banking
Trading Banking Trading Group Total
Group Group Total Group {restated) (restated)
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Trade payables 416,297 15,456 431,753 484,327 - 484,327
Workers welfare fund payable - 16,946 16,946 - 8,168 18,168
Other banking growp payables - 99,001 99,001 - 15,258 15,258
Accoptances - 128,864 128,864 - 212,738 212,738
Insurance payables - 2,234 2,234 - 2,671 2,671
Other taxation and social securily costs 7841 - 7,841 3,896 - 3,896
Amounts dite to related parties 167 - 167 51 - 51
Other payables and accruals 116,899 1,029 117,928 94,490 38,244 132,734
541,204 263,530 804,734 582,764 287,079 869,843

Details of the restatement are given in note 50.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short-term
nature. Trade payables and sccruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and on-going costs, The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms.
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates their fair value. Trade and other payables in
both current and prier year are current and expected to be paid within 12 months.

34. Other financial Habilities
Banking Group

Provision sgainst off balance sheet oblipations
Deferred income
Deferred Liabilities

Off balance sheet obligations
Qutstanding exposure as at 30 June 2019

Direct credit substitutes
High grade

Medium grade

Low grade

Transaction-related contingent liabilities
High grade

Medium grade

Low grade

Trade-related confingent liabilitics
Eligh grade

Medium grade

Low prade

Total as at 30 June 2019

2019 2018

£000 £000

2,576 4461

10,037 10,910

8,541 10,830

21,154 26,201

Stagel Stage2 Stage 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
73,910 87 - 73,997
228,531 79.936 3,345 311812
548 4,927 - 5475
312,789 13,602 - 326,391
75,845 1,078 - 76923
86,479 34930 - 121,409
753,350 2,240 - 755,590
112,273 2,562 - 114,835
355 4,044 - 4,399
1,644,080 143,406 3,345 1,790,831
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34. Other financial Habilities (continued)

An unalysis of chuges in the corresponding ECL allowances is as follows:

Stuge 1 Stage2 Stage3 T'otal
£000 £000 £000 £000
Gross carrying amount as at | July 2018 1,907 4,566 234 6,707
New assets purchased or originated 423 376 - 799
Payments and assets derecopnised (excluding write-aflk) @a90) (3415) - (3,905)
Transfers to Stage 1 3 (32) - (29)
Transfers to Stage 2 (24) 7 - an
Transfers to Stage 3 - (2) 2 -
21 a7 2 6
Changes to contractual cashflows due to partial repayment and 438 93) - (G331
changes to estimates and assumptions used to caloulate ECL
Foreign exchange adjustments 231) (222) 5 (448)
As 30 Jane 2019 1,150 1,185 241 2,576
35, Deposits and other accounts
Banking Group Curvent Non-current Total Current  Non-current Total
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 E£000 £000 £000
Customers
Fixed deposits - remunerative 1,408,361 299,528 1,707,889 1,506,171 535,504 2,041,675
Savings deposits - remunerative 2,239,586 - 2,239586 2,563,291 - 2,563,291
Sundry deposits - remunerative 91,400 20 91,420 245,651 181 245,832
Margin deposits - remunerative 33,091 145 33,236 54,493 143 54,636
Current accounts - remunerative 50,258 - 50,258 43 429 - 43,429
Current accounts - non-remunerative 2,956,513 - 2,956,513 3,379,841 - 3379841
Financial Institutions
Remunerative deposits 201,808 - 201,808 218,259 - 218,259
MNon-remunerative deposits 101,542 - 101,542 136,899 - 136,899
Interest payable 26,549 - 26,549 57,265 - 57,265
7,139,108 299,693 7,408,801 8205299 535,828 8,741,127

Deposits inciude remunerative and non-remusnerative deposits. Non-remunerative deposits are non-interest bearing whereas
the remunerative deposits are of saving or term nature with interest component.
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36. Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Trading Group 2019 2018
£000 £00D
Current liabilities
Secured bank loans 111,403 91,658
111,403 91,658
Non-cuvrent liabilities
Preference shares classified as debt 48,178 58,178
Sectired bank loans 176,786 275,141
234,964 333,319
‘Total loans and borrowings 346,367 424 977

Preference shares classified as debt
The cumulative preference shares have been classified as non-current liabilitics as they are redeemable in greater than a year,

516,000 of cumniative preference shares with a par value of £1 each, are redeemable 10 years from the initial date of issue and
accrue dividends at 8% and 10%. In both the current and prior year, the dividend has been waived, consequently no charge
has been recognised in the income statemont. Holders of cumulative preference shares are entitled to priority over other
shareholders in receipt of their 836 and 10% preference dividends or on share redemption on distribution of assets in a winding
up. Holders are not entitfed to attend or vote at general meetings of the issuing company except where there is default in
respect of, or proposed resolutions to modify, their rights. Preference shareholder consent is required for the issue of new or
additional preference shares and modilications 1o the Directors' borrowing powers under the Articles of Association.

57,662,428 cumulative preference shares with a par value of £1 each and a conpon rate of 6%, with interest being paid quarterly,
are redeomable 10 years from the initial date of issue being 4 April 2017, Holders of cumulative preference shares are entitled
to priority over other shareholders in receipt of their preference dividends or on share redemption on distribution of assets in a
winding up, Holders are not entitled to aitend or vote at general meetings of the issuing company excopl whue lheis is default
in respect of, or propased resolutions to modify, their rights. Preference shareholder consent is required for the issue of new
or additlionat preference shares and modifications to the Directors' borrowing powers under the Articles of Association.

Secured domestic bank toan

During the 2015 period the Group attained bank Lnance in order to complets its acquisition of Panacea Holdings Limited. On
19 September 2017, companies in the Bestway Securities Limited Group, refinanced the loans and became party to a Semior
Facilities Agreement. whereby the liabilities of cach of the subsidiarics are cross guaraniced by cach of the companies. The
loans under the Senior Facilities Agreement amount ta £225million of term foan (Term Loan A'). “Term Loan A' is repayable
biannually until 26 September 2022, with the first payment, of £16.1 million, made on 25 March 2019. ‘The loans currently
attract interest of LIBOR +2.35%,

During the 2047 period the Gronp altained baak finance, comprising a £60.0 million foan maturing in 2020 and bearing an

intorest rate of LIBOR + 3.85% (*Term loan B*). At the beginning of the year, £32 million remained outstanding, and this was
fully repaid during the year.
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36. Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

Secured overseas bank loan

Bestway Group Limited
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Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

During the 2015 period the Group also acquired a torm finance facility of 25 billion Pakistani Rupees from a syndicate of banks
with Aflicd Bank Limited as the lead bank. This facility is repayable in {0 stepped up biannual instalments starting from
October 20135, Interest is payable on biannual basis at the rate of 6 months’ KIBOR (Karachi Inter-Banking Offering Rate) plus
0.20% per annum, The facility is secured against the present and future asscts excluding land and buildings of the Cement

group.

Anatysis of borrowings by currency:

Currency
Preference shares ciassified as debl GBP
Preference shares classified as debt GBP
Preference shares classificd as debt GBP
Secured Tenn Loan A GBP
Secured Tenn Loan B GBP
Secured Syndicate Loan PKR

All interest-bearing loans and borrowings are at amortised cost, All carrying amounts are equal to the fair value,

Banking Group

Unsecured bovrewing at amortised cost
Call borrowings
Other borrowings

Secured borrowing at amovtised cost
Export refinanco scheme

Refinance facility for modemisation of SME
Long term financing facility

Repurchase agreement borrowings

Basi Muajjal

Interest payable

Amount due for settfement within 12 months
Amount due for settlement after 12 months

Nominal interest rate

8%
10%
6%

LIBOR + 2.1%
LIBOR + 3.85%

KIBOR + 0.2%

note

[~

09 = 6 O

Year of
maturity / Carrying Carrying
redemption  amount amount
2019 2018
£000 £000
2 2
514 514
2027 57,662 57,662
Ts8,178 58,178
2022 208928 225,000
2020 - 32,000
208,928 257,000
2020 79,261 109,799
346,367 4249717
Carrying Carrying
amount amount
2019 2018
£600 £000
33,800 69,648
113,177 213,324
147,037 282972
140,196 108,836
41 35
113,150 131,924
601,900 1,118,471
105,383 217,320
960,670 1,576,586
33,880 40,610
1,141,593 1,900,168
967,260 1,734,563
174,333 165,605
1,141,593 1,900,168
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36. Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

(a) These are unsecured borrowings carrying mark-up at rates ranging from 2.00% to 10.60% per annum and were repaid after
the year end.

(b) These borrowings carry mark-up at rates ranging from 2.70% to 4.75% per asmum aitd were repaid after the year end.

(c) The Bank has entered into ngreements with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) for extending export finance to customers, As
per the terms of the agreement, the Bank has granted the SBP the right to recover the outstanding amounts from the Bank m
the date of matarity of the finances by direclly debiting the Bank's current account maintained with the SBP. These borrowings
are repayable by July 2019. These carry mark-up at rates ranging from 3.47% to 12.35% per anmum.

(d) These borrowings have been obtained from the SBP to finance modemisation of Stuall and Mediue Enterprises (SME) by
providing financing facilities for purchase of new plant and machinery for Balancing, Modemisation and Replacement (BMR)
of existing units and setting up of new units. In addition, finencing for import / local purchase of new generators up o a
maximum capacity of 500 KVA is also eligible under this Scheme. These borrowings were repaid after the year ond. These
carry mari-up at & rate of 6.2% per annum.

(e) These borrowings have been obtained from the SBP for providing linancing facilities to cxporiers for adoption of new
technologies and modemising their plant and machinery. These borrowings are repaynble by June 2028. These carry mark-up
at rates ranging from 2.00% to 9.70% per annmn,

¢f) These repurchase agreement borrowings are secured against Markot Treasury Bills and Pakistan Investment Bonds end
carry mark-up al rates ranging from 12.08% to 12.18% per annum. These borrawings and were repaid after the year end.

(&) These represent Bai Muajjal borrowings whereby the Bank bought sukuks sold by other financial institutions on deferred
payment basis. These carry mark-up at rates ranging from 12.22% to 12.30% per annum and were repaid after the year end.

All inferest-bearing toans and borrowings are at amortised cost. All carrying amounts are equal to face value. All carrying
amounts are in Pakistani rupees translated to sterling at the closing rate on 30 June 2019,

37. Subordinated loans

The Bank has issued fully paid up, rated, listed, pespetual, unsecured, subordinated, non-cumulative and contingent convertible
debt instruments in the nature of Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) which qualify as Additional Tier I Capital as outlined by

local regulatory requirements, This totals £49.2 million in the year (2018: Nil).
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Nates (centinued)

38. Provisions

Trading Group Reductionin  Dilapidation
pharmacy funding provision Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
As at 30 June 2017 19,750 B 944 20,094
Additional provision in the year (restated) 2,419 5,115 2,730 10,264
Utilisation of provision (38,3700 - - (8,370)
As at 30 June 2018 (restated) 13,799 5,115 3,674 22,588
Additional provisicn in the year . 900 596 1,496
Utilisation of provision (11,880) (420) - (12,300)
As at 30 June 2019 1,919 5,595 4,270 11,784

Details of the restatement are given in note 50,

£3.4 million of pmvis-.iohs at the year end were clagsified as non-current (2018: Nil).

The reduction in govemment funding relates to a provision made for Category M adjustments relating to the NHS year ended
March 2019. The unutilised provision in respect to NHS funding cuts at year end 30 June 2019 was £1.9 million (2018: £13.8

million).

Dilapidations provisions comprise store dilapidation costs on stores 43 idenlified as part of the acquisition in the for the retail
and pharmacy businesses.

Provisions are based on management best estimates to be ndded and could be subject to change in the fisture and are not subject
to discounting.

Other provisions include potental liabilities incurred sg part of the Trading Group’s operations that are expocted to lead to
cash ontflows.

Banking Group Fire Marine  Motor Miscellaneous Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Asat 1 July 2017 3,668 906 3,228 9,289 17,091
Claims incurred during the year 4,536 [,938 4,100 2,375 [2,949
Claims paid during the year 2,607y (145%) (3,310) (4,242) (11,6i4)
Premivm written in the year 6,533 2,042 7,551 6,049 2175
Premiums eamcd during the year (5919) (1,993) (6,342) (6,549) (20,803)
Exchange differences (751} (178) (643) (1,249) (2,821}
As at 30 Junc 2018 5,460 1,260 4,584 5,673 16,977
Claims incurred during the year 2,404 1,147 3,730 4,568 11,849
Claims paid during the year (3,229) (872) (3,601) (4,348) {12,050)
Premium written in the year 1,870 2,023 7,481 6,778 24,152
Premiums earned during the year (6,903 (2019) (7,034) (6,092) (22,048)
Exchauge differences (1,254) (327 (1,122 (1417 (4,120)
As at 30 June 2019 £,348 1,212 4,038 5,162 14,760

The movement in provisions is due to the normal course of business of providing insurance contracts. All provisions in both
financial years arc currend. These were previously considered non-current (see note 50 for prior year adjustments).
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‘The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Company and movements thereon during the

current and prior reporting period.

Trading Group
Property, Investments
plant & Intangible Investment and DEmployee Short term

equipment assets  property  associates benefits timing Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 30 June 2017 65,713 69,424 5,168 13,257 (1,573) (541) 151,448
Ou acquisition (restated) 2,502 (940) - - - 23 1,590
Eoc;:dlt) / charge to profit and @3,082)  (8,302) 965 131 . 1260 (9,028)
(Credit) / charge to the OCI . . . {4,552) 465 45) (4,132
Exchange differences (9,033) 457) - (1,344) - - (10,834}
A1 30 June 2018 (rostated) 56,100 59,725 6,133 7,492 (1,108) 702 125,044
E&sr:dﬁ) { charge 1o profit and 8.810 @5 _ 395 . 75 7,043
(Credit) / charge to the OCI - - - 986 (154) 38 870
Exchange differenceos (11,925) (258) - {2,039) - 5 (14,147
At 30 June 2019 52,985 57,230 6,133 6,834 (1,262) 830 122,810

See note 50 for information regarding assets asquired through business combinations and details of the restatement.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right te do so, The following is the
snalysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax liabilities
Defetred tax assets

Net deferred tax Hability

2019 2018
£000 £060
124,072 130,152
1,262)  (1,108)
122,810 129,044

Net deferred tax liabilities include £123.8 million of deferred tax liabilities, and no deferred tax assets, which are expected to
be seltled or recovered more than 12 months after the reporting period. For the year ended 30 June 2018 the £122.8 million of
net deferred tax liability was materiatly due to be setiled in more than one year and related primarily to intangible assets and

property, plant & equipment,

Banking Group
Employee
welfare Employee Property, plant Investment
provisions Tax losses benefits & equipment property  Sub total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
A30 Jne 2017 (5777 (2,002) (1,650) 12,547 1,935 5,053
{Credit) / charge to profit and loss (1,439)  (9,708) (858) 1,027 189 (10,789
(Credit) / charge to the OCI - 358 (938) 1,515 (46) 889
Exchange differences 992 633 617 (2,113) (307 (178)
At 30 June 2018 £6,224) (10,719} (2,829) 12,976 1,771 (5,025)
(Credit) / clrarge to profit and loss (2,106) 9,369 (6,770) 1,949 4 2,446
(Credit) / charge to retained ) ) )
eamings i ) )
(Credit) / charge to SOCI/ ) )
revaluation reserve - ) ) i
Credit / (charge) to the OCI - - 7,756 (30) - 7,126
Exchange differences 1,703 1,632 532 (3.276) “on 190
At 30 June 2019 (6,627) 282 (1,311) 11,61% 1,374 5,337
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39. Deferred Tax {continued)
Expected credit

losses and short-
term timing

Sub total Investments Assocjates differences Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 30 June 2017 5,053 49,551 3,439 (13 58,030
(Credit) / charge to profit and loss (10,789 (26) 615 1 (10,199
(Credit) / C]large to the OCI 889 (49,995) - - (49,106)
Exchange differences (178) (3.886) (524) 3 @590
A130 june 2018 (5,025) (4,356) 3,530 (15)  (5,865)
(Credit) / charge to profit and loss 2,446 (3,735 1,619 - 330
(Credit) / charge to SOCI /
retained camings - 6,045 - (43,753) (37,708)
(Credlt)./ charge to SOCI/ = (4,876) - - (4,876)
revaluation reserve
{Credit) / charge to the OCI 7,726 {11,010) - (1,158) (4,442)
Exchange differences 190 3,899 (1,040) 9,884 12,933
At30 Junc 2019 5,337 (14,033) 4,109 (35,042)  (39,629)

During the year, a gain on remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities of £21.0 million through other comprehensive income,
resulted in a deferred tax impact of £7.7 million. Furthermore, a net loss on investments in debt instruments classified as 'at
EVOCT of £31,1 million resulted in a deferred tax impact of £1 1.0 million. In the prior year, & loss arising on investments in
securities as 'al FVOCT of 148.7 million resulted in deferred tax impact of £50.0 million,

Deferred (ax assets and liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally onforceable right to do so. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

Banking Group ' 2019 2018

£000 £000
Deferred tax liabititios {17,384) (18,27T)
Deferred lax assels 57,013 24,143
Net deferved tax asset 39,629 5,866

Net doferred tax assets include £13.3 million which is expected to be seftled or recovered more than 12 months after the
reporting period,

40. Employee benefits
Trading Grroup

The Trading Group operates a number of pension plans throughont the world, devised in accordance with local conditions and
practices. The majority of the plans ere defined bensfit plans and are funded by payments to separately administered trusts or
insurance companies. The principal plans are in the United Kingdom and Pakistan. Reduced disclosures have been provided
for the Pakistan scheme as it is considered immaterial.

Unidied Kingdom Scheme

The Group's maitt pension commitments relate to its two occupational pension schomes; the Batley's Limited Retirement
Benefits Scheme (the "Main scheme”) and the Batley’s Limiled Officers” Relirement Benefits Scheme (the “Officers’
scheme™). Both schemes are funded by the payment of contributions to separately administered trust funds. On 3} October
2015, the pension schemes were transferred from Batley’s Limited to Bestway Wholesale Limited as part of the group
reorganisation, at which point Bestway Wholesale Limited became the sponsoring company.

The Schemes are subject to the funding legislation, which came into force on 30 December 2005, outlined in the Pensions Act
2004, This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator, and Guidance Notes adopted by the Financial Reporting
Council, set out the framework for ftnding defined benefit ocoupational pension plans in the UK.

Tho trustees of the Schemes are required to act in the best interest of the Schemes’ beneficiaries. The appointment of the
trusiees is determined by the Scheme’s trust documentation. It is policy that one third of all frustees should be nominated by
the members,
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40. Emiployee benefits (continued)

Full actuanial valuations were carried out as at 30 April 2017 for the Main Scheme and 31 December 2018 for the Officers’
Scheme in accordance with the scheme funding requirements of the Pensions Act 2004 and the funding of the Schemes are
agreed between the Company and the trustees in fine with those requirements. These in partionlar require the surplus/deficit to
be caleulated using prudent, as opposed to best estimate actuarial assumptions,

The sponsoring company has agreed with the trustees that it will aim io eliminate the deficit for the Main Scheme over a period
of 4.5 years from 30 April 2018 by the payment of annual contributions of £498,000 increasing each year by 3%. In addition,
and in accordance with the actuarial valuations, the sponsoring company has agreed with the trustees that it will meet expenses
of the Schemes and levies to the Pension Protection Fund.,

For the purposes of IAS 19 the actuarial valuation as at 30 April 2617 for the Main Scheme and 31 Decomber 2018 for the
Officors” Scheme, which were carried out by a qualified independent actuary, have been updated on un approximate basis to
30 June 2019. There have been no changes in the valuation mothodology compared to the prior year.

Defined benefit pension schemes of the Trading Group

The information disclosed below is in respect of the whole of the plans for which the Trading Group is the sponsoring employer
throughout the years shown.

Present values of scheme liabilities, faly values of assets and deficit: 2019 2018

£000 £000
Present value of scheme liabilities (38,542) (37,479
Fair value of scheme asseis 31,067 27,868
Deficit (7,475) 9,611)
Related deferred tax asset 1,262 1,108
Net Hability (6,213) (8,503)

The present value of schomes' liabilities is measured by discounting the best estimate of future cash flows to be paid out by
the plan using the projected unit credit method. The value calculated in this way is reflected in the net liability in the stateinent
of financial position az shown above.

The projected unit credit method is an accrued benefits valuation method in which allowance is made for projected eamnings
increases. The accumulated benefit obligation is an altemative achuarial measure of the Schemes liabilities, whose calculation
differs from that under the projected unit credit method in that it includes no assumption for future eamings increases. In
assessing this figure for the purpose of these disclosures, allowance has been made for future statutory revaluation beaefits up
to retirement. At the balance sheet date, the accumulated benetit obligation was £35.4 million (2018: £37.8 millien).

All actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the year in which they oceur in other comprehensive income,
Impact of the asset ceiling

The Directors reviewed implicatians of the gunidance provided by IFRIC 14 and have concluded that it is not necessary to make
any adjustments to the IAS 19 fipures in respect of an asset ceiling or Minimum Funding Requirements as at 30 June 2019,

Movements in present value of defined benefit obligations: 2019 2018
£000 £000
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the yzar 37479 39,529
Current service costs 426 465
Interest cost 1,122 1,122
Past service costs 439
Actuarial 1oss / (gain) 2,174 (1,554)
Benefits paid (2,370) (1,800)
Exchange differences {728) (283)
At the end of the year 38,542 37479

There have been no scheme amendments, curtailments or settlements in the accaunling period.
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Movements in fair value of scheme assets: 2019 2018
£000 £000

Value of scheme assels at beginning of the year 27,868 27,594
Interest income on plan assets 105 -
Expected retym on scheme assels 730 706
Acluarial gains 1,482 675
Contributions by employer 3,095 569
Benefits paid (2,213) (1.676)
At the end of the year 31,067 27,863
Expense recognised in the income statement: 2019 2018
£000 £000

Interest on defined benefit pension cbligation 1,122 1,122
Current service costs 426 465
Past service costs 439 -
Expected return on defined benefit pension assets (730) (706)
Total expense 1,257 881
LExpense recognised in other comprehensive income: 2819 2018
£000 £000

Actuanal losses 2,182 -
Actuarial gains (1,482) (2,229)
Total expense / (gain) 700 (2,229)

The fair value of the scheme assets and the retum on thosoe assels were as follows:

2019 2018

£000 £000

Cash 406 239
Equities 5,824 8,801
DBonds 7,896 5,514
Hedge funds 1,506 -
Liability Driven Investments (LDI} 6,697 5450
Diversified growth funds 8,738 7,774
31,067 27,868

None of the fair values of the assets shown abave include any direct investments in the Group or Company’s own financial
instreamnents or any property occupied by, or ofher assets used by, the Group or Company. All of the scheme assets have a
quoted market price tn an active market with the exception of the Trustee’s bank nccount balance.

It is the policy of the Trustees and the Company to review the investment strategy at the time of each funding valuation. The
Trustees’ investment objeclives and the processes undertaken to measure and manage the risks inherent in the Schemes’
investment strategy are documented in the Scliemes’ Statoment of Investment Principles. The Schemes invest approxintately
20% of total assets in Liability Driven Investments (L.DI) to broadly provide 70% interest rale hedging and 125% inflation rate
hedging. .

All equity securities and govemment bonds have quoted prices in active markets, Al other plan assets are not quoted in an
active market.
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40. Employee benefits {continued)
Actuarial assumptions

The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages)

2019 2018

UK UK

Discouiit rate 2.30% 2.70%
Inflation (RPD) 3.45% 3.35%
Inflation (CPD) 2.45% 235%
Future salary increases 3.65% 3.55%

The assumptions relating ta tongevity underlying the pension liabilities at the balaice sheot date are based on standard actuarial
mortality tables and include an allowance for future improvements in longevity. The assumptions are equivaleat 1o oxpecting
8 63-year old to live for a number of years as follows:

- Current pensioner aged 65: 22.4 years (male), 24.5 years (female).
- Future retiree upon reaching 65: 24.6 years (male), 26.8 years (forale).
Sensitivity analysis

The calenlation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive 10 the assumptions sct oul above. The following table summarises
how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period would have increased / (decreased) because
of a chaage in the respeotive assumptions:

Change in assumption Change in liabilities

Discount raie Decrcase of 0.25% p.a. Increase by 4.9%
Rate of infiation Increase of 0.25% p.a. Inorease by 1.5%
Rate of salary growth nerease of 0.25% p.a. Increase by 0.5%
Rate of mortality Increase in life expectancy of 1 year Increase by 3.2%
Commutation Members commute an extra 10% of Post A Day Decrease by 0.7%

pension on retirement

The sensitivities shown above are approximate, Each sensitivity considers one change in isolutivn. The inflution seusitivily
includes the impact of changes to the assumptions [or revaluation, pension increases and salary growth. The average duration
of the defined benefit obligation at the poriod ended 30 June 2019 is 18 years (2018: 20 years).

The Schemes typicaily expose the Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk, salary growth risk,
mortality risk and longevity risk. A decrease in corporate bond yields, a rise in inflation or an in in life expectancy would
result in an increase to plan liabilities. This would detrimentally impact the statement of financial position and may give rise
in increased charges to the income statement in the future. This effect would be partially offsef by an increuse in the value of
the Schemes’ bond and LDI holdings, and in qualifying death in service insurance policies that cover the mortality risk.
Additionally, caps on inflationary increases ate in place to protect the plan against extreme inflation.

The Group and Trustees are aware of these risks and manage them through appropriate investment and funding strategies.
Funding

The best estimate of coniributions to be paid by the Group to the schemes for the year beginning 1 July 2019 is £559,000 per
annum.
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40. Employee benefits (continued)

Banking Group
2018 2018
Net surplus l Net liability Net surplusl Net liability
£000 £000 £000 £000
Defined benefit schenes
United Bank Limited, Pakistan (UBL) - 2,825 - 61,092
United Nationaf Limited, United Kingdom (UBL UK) 147 - - 160
UBL Fund Managers Limited, Pakistan (UFML) - 5 - 41
UBL Insurers Limited, Pakistan (UIL) - 38 - 44
Defired contribution schemes ‘
UBL - Provident Fund, Pakistan 609 - 131 -
UBL Bank (Tanzania) Limited, Tanzania - - - 17
756 2,868 131 61,354
Net lisbility 2,112 61,223

Banking Group (Paldstan) scheme - United Bank Limltéd, Paldstan (UBL)

The Bank operates a finded pension scheme established in 1975, as well as a funded gratuity scheme for new employces and
for those employees who have not opted for the pension scheme.

The Bank also operales a contributory benevolent fund scheme and provides post-retirement medical benefits to eligible refired
employees. The benevolent fund scheme and the post-retirement medical scheme cover all regular employees of the Bank who
joined the Bak pre-privatisation.

The lisbilities of the Bank in respeot of these schemes are determined based on actuarial veliations carmed out using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuerial valuations of the defined benefit schemes are carried out every year and the latest
valuation was carried out as ai 30 Junc 2019.

The number of employees covered under the following defined benefil schemes are:

2019 2018
Pension fund 7,891 10,608
Gratuity fund 9,447 10,382
Benevolent Fund 3,558 3,886
Post-retirement medical benefit scheme 8,250 9,744
Principat actuarial assumptions
The actuarial valuations were carried out as at 30 June using the following sigaificant assumptions:
2019 2018
Diseount rate and expected rate of refum on scheme assets 14.25% 9.00%
Expected rate of fulure salary increase 12.25% 7.00%
Expected rato of increase in pension 5.00% 5.00%
Expecled rate of increase in medical benefit 14.25% 9,00%
Post-retivemment morsality at age 60:
Ponsion fund 17.34 1734
Benevolent Fund 7.7 11
Post-retirement medical benefit scheme 13.87 13.87
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LPresent valuey gf scheme liabilities, fuir values of

assefs and deficit;

Present value of scheme ligbilities
Fair value of scheme assets

iNet asset / (Hability)

Present value of scheme liabilities
Fair value of scheme assets

Net agset / (liability)

Movement in present value of defined benefit
obligatians:

Defined benefit obligation at 1 July 2018
Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid

Retum allocated to other funds
Actuarial (gain) / loss

Exchange difference

At 30 June 2019

Movement in fair value of scheme assefs.

Value of scheme assefs at 1 July 2018
Interest income on scheme assets
Contribution by employer

Benefits paid

Amount paid by the fund to the Bank
Actuarial gain / (foss)

Exchange difference

At 30 June 2019

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annua! report and financial statements
For tive year ended 30 June 2019

Post-
vetivement
Pension Grafuity  Benevolent medical
fund fund Fund benefit Total
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
37,648 4,159 £,243 9,993 53,043
(43,987 (4,255 (1,976) - {50,218}
(6,33%) (96) (733) 9,993 2,825
Post-
retirement
Pension Gratuity  Benevolent medical
fund fund Fund benefit Total
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
71,823 4,692 2,474 9,910 88,899
(19,909) (4,785%) 3,113 - (27,307
51,914 93 (639) 9,910 61,092
Past -
retirement
Pension Graftuity  Benevolent medical
Tund Tand Fund benerit lotal
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
71,823 4,692 2474 9910 88,899
222 785 32 8 1,047
5,147 402 145 784 6,478
(4,715) (726) (258) (692) (6,391
305 - - - 305
(22,068) 158 (709) 2,631  (19,988)
(13,066) (1,152) (dd 1) (2,648) (17,307
37,648 4,159 1,243 9,993 53,043
Pension Gratuity Benevolent Post-retirement
fund fund Fund medical benefit Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
19,909 4,785 3,113 - 27,807
1,190 409 196 - 1,795
38,137 1,007 H - 39,155
- - 11 - 11
(6,985) {659) (696) - (3,340)
1,262 {109) 31 - {110
(9,526) (1,178) (625) - (11,329
43,987 4,258 1,976 - 50,218

91



Notes (continued)

40, Employec henefits (continued)

Expense recognised in the income statement:

Current service cosl
Net interest on defined benefit asset or liability
Return allocated to other finds

Current service cost
Net interest on defined benefit asset or fiability
Retum allocated to other funds

Employees' contribulion

Movement recognised in the statement of
compreltensive income:

Financial assumptions

Actuarial loss on obligation
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets
Adjustment for mark up

Financial assumptions

Experience adjustments

Return on plan assets over interest income
Adjustment for mark up

Bestway Group Limited

Regestered number § 1003305
Anmnuaf report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Pension Gratuity Benevolent Post-retirement Tatal
fund fund Fund medical benefit
2019 2019 2M19 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
222 785 32 8 1,047
3,946 O] (51) 784 4,672
305 - - - 305
4,473 718 19 792 6,024
Pension Gratrity Benevolent Post-retirement Total
fund fund Fund medical benefit
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
60,534 762 21 13 61,330
(1,093) (16) (18) 671 (456)
o908 “ - - 908
60,349 Tdo 3 684 61,782
Pension Gratuity Benevolent Post-retirement
fund fund Fund medical benefit Total
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £060 £000
(15,288) 32 277 2971 (12,562)
(6,780) 126 (433) (339)  (7.426)
(1,262) 109 34 SR
31 2 - - 83
(23,249) 269 (676) 2,632 (21,024)
Pension Gratuity Benevolent Post-retirement
fund fund Fond  medical benefit Total
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
- 5 (197 (2441) (2,623}
308 175 112 4,459 5,054
1,939 42 81 - 2,062
133 2 14 - 149
2,380 234 10 2,018 4,642
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40. Employee benefits (continuedy

The fair value af the scheme assets and the returit on those assets
were as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

(Quoted ordinary shares

Unguoted termt finance certificates
Market treasury bills

Pakistan investment bonds

Term depasits

Bestway Group Limited

Registered namber 11003305

Annua! report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Cash and cash equivalents

Quoted ordinary sharcs

Unguoted term finance certificates
Pakistan investment bonds

Special savings certificates
Reverse repo

Pension  Gratuity  Benevolent
fund fund Fund Total
2019 2019 2019 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000
77 356 22 455
544 200 100 844
6,843 - 96 6,939
14,610 1,196 664 16,470
21,913 2,239 626 24,778
- 264 468 732
43,987 4,255 1,976 590,218

Pension Gratuity  Benevolent
fund fund Fund Total
2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
97 22 14 133
744 6l 111 1,016
430 923 49 1,402
8,793 3,009 1,201 13,003
9,845 573 1,737 12,155
- o8 - 98
19,909 4,786 3,112 27,807

Fhe funds primarily invest in govemmeit securities and accordingly do not carry any significant credit risk. These are subject
to interest rate risk baved on market movements. [nvestment in term finance certifcatos are subject to credit risk and interest
rate risks, while equity sccurities are subject to price risk. These risks are regularly monitored by Trustees of the employee

funds.
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40. Employee benefits (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying one assumption keeping all other assumptions constant and calculating the
impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations under the various employee benefit schemes. The
increase/{decrease) in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a resutlt of a change in each assumption is summarised
below:

Post- Post-
retivement refirement
Pension Gratuity Benevolent  medical Pension Gratuity Benevolent  imedical
Banking Group fund fund Fund benefit  fund  fund Fund benefit
2019 2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018
£060 £000 £000 £000  £000  £000 £000 £000
Increase in discount rate by 1% 12,967 (826) 580 3,026) (5,437 (387) (118} (908)
Decrease in discount rate by 1% 23922 (17D 715 (1,485) 7,714 451 133 1,082
Increase in expected future
increment in salary by 1% N L) 672 ) - 4% ) :
Decrease in expected fiture
increment in salary by 1% - @9 672 ) - G ) )
Increase in expected future
increment in pension by 1% 23,730 - " - 7466 i ) ”
Decrease in expected future
increment in pension by 1% 13,030 B ) - (635D ) ) )
Increase in cxpected future
increment in wedical benefit by 1% ) B " @,517) ) i} ) Lodl
Decrease in expected fulure . . - (3,014) - - - (892)

increment in medical benefit by %

Although the analysis does not take aceount of the fulf distribution of expected cash flows, it does provide an spproximation
of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Expected contributions to be paid to the funds in the next financial year

The Banking Group contributes to the pension and gratuity funds according to the actumy's advice. Based on actuarial advice,
management estimates that the expected contribution of £0.7 million in the financiel year to 30 June 2019,

Funding policy

The Bank endeavours to ensure that liabilities under the various cmployee benefit schemes are covered by the Fund on any
valuation date having regards to the various actuarial assumptions such as projected future salary increase, expeoted future
contributions o the fund, projected increase in liability associnted with future service and the projected investment income of
the Fund.

Defined contribution plans

UBL. Pakistan operates a contributory provident fund scheme for its employees who are not in the pension scheme, The
employer and employee cach contribute 8.33% of the busic salary to the funded scheme every month,
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Notes (continued)

41, Operating lease arrangements

Trading Group

Lease pavments under aperating leases secognised as an expense in the year

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
£000 £000
22,322 16,640

Al the balance sheet dato, the Trading Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

Less than one year
Betiveen one to five years
More than five years

2019 2018
£000 £000
21,354 14,592
65,441 45,024
75,519 56,718
162,314 116,334

Operaling tease paymenis represent rentals payable by the Trading Group for certain of its office properties, retail stores,
pharmacies and vehicles. Property leases are nogotiated for an average term of 8 years and rentals are fixed for an average of
8 years with an option to cxtend for fiirther at the then prevailing market rate, The vehisle leases normally mn for a period of

3-3 yoars.

Loases as lessor

The investment propeilics ate let under operafing leases. The fuhire minimum leasc receivables under non-canceffable leases

are as follows:

Less than one year
Between one and five years
More than five yoars

During the year £6.5 million (2018: £7.2 million) was recogrised as rental income.

Banking Group

Lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year

2019 2018
£000 £000
4,539 4,703
14,246 15,455
44,310 48,785
63,095 68,943
2019 2018
£000 £000
18,808 18,544

A1 30 June 2019 the Banking Group had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases of £72.2 million (2018:

£74.6 miltion).

42. Capital Commitments

At 30 June 2019 the Gronp had entered into contracts to purchase property, plant and equipment; the Trading Group
commitment was £§2.4 million (2018: £1.8 million) and the Banking Group commitment was £4.6 million (2018: £123

million),
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Notes (continued)

43. Contingent liabilitics
Trading Group
Cement business

The cement business is subject to certain contingent legal and tax matters which are currently at different legal stages. The
Dircotors and the Company’s legal advisor are confident ol'a favourable outcome on all these matters, accordingly no provision
has been made in respect of these matters in the consolidated financial statements,

Banking Group

Penalties amounting to £23.0 million have been levied by the Banking Group’s (UBL) rtegulator relating to alloged
contraventions of the requirements of foreign exchange regulations. UBL maintains that it fully discharged its liability, in
accordance with the law and has filed a civil suit in the respective High Court challenging the levy of the penally. The High
Court has granted a stay on action being taken against UBL. The Directors based on the advice from legal counsel, are confident
that the view of UBL will provait and therefore no pravision has been made in respect of same in the consolidated finanoial
statements.

The banking business is subject to certain contingent legal und tax matters which are currently at different tegal stages. The
Directors and the Bank's legal advisor are confident of a favourable outcoimnie on all these maiters, accordingly no provision
has been made in respeot of these matters in the consolidated financial statements.

44, Financial instruments

Trading Group

a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital fo ensure that enfities in the Group will be able fo coplinue as a going concem while maximising
tho return to the shareholders through the optrimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group cousists of net debt (horrowings disclosed in note 36 after deducting cash aud bank balances)
and equity of the Group (comprising issued capital and retained camings).

The Group manages its capital by increasing/decreasing its debt and/or equity as nceded and also by adjusting the number of
dividends peid to sharehelders. The Trading Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

&) Financial risk

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities by categories:

Financial Assets 2019 2018
£000 £0600
Loans and receivables
Amounts receivable for sale of goods 162,993 159,725
Other receivables 35,297 54,548
Cash and cash equivalenis 154,181 170,121
Total financial assets 352,471 384,394
Tinancial liabilities
Qverdsafi 107,148 140,649
Trade paysbles 416,297 484,327
Other intorest-bearing loans and borrowings 288,189 366,799
Total financlal liabilities 811,634 991,775
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Notes (continued)
44, Financial instruments (contirued)
Financial risk management objectives

The Trading Group's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and
intemational financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating 1o the operations of the Trading Group
through internal risk reports which analyscs exposures by degree and magnigude of risks. These risks include liquidity risk
and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Trading Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by detailed forecasting and cash management to ensure that
loan covenants are not breached. The Group has & policy of using reasonable cash surpluses to pay down debt and thereby
reducing interest costs. The Group docs not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments,
for speculative purposes.

¢} Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financisl loss to the Teading Group if a customer or cownterparty to & financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Trading Group’s receivables from customers.

The Trading Group manages credit risk principally through the performance of credit checks on new customers and eredit
control procedures in accordance with IFRS 9. The trade debtor balances are made up of a large number of individual customer
balances, none of which are individually signifioant. Cash and cash equivalents represents deposits at high quality financial
institutions.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is listed in financial assets within the table sbove. All trade receivables at the balance sheet date are within the
UK or Pakistan. See note 30 for more information on provisions relating to credit customers,

d) Interest rate and liguidity risk

The Group is exposed te interest rate risk because the Trading Group borrows funds at floating interest rates, namely LIBOR
(Loudon inter-bank offer rate) and KIBOR (Karachi inter-bank offer rate).

Ultimate respousibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of Directars, which has established an appropriate
tiquidity risk management framework for the managoment of the Trading Group's short, medium and long-term funding and
fiquidity management requirements. The Trading Group manages liquidity sisk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash fAows, and hy matehing the
maturity profiles of financial assets and lisbilities.

Details of additional undrawa facilities that the Group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk are set out below. The
group had access to undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period of £50.31m (2018: £50.3m).

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Trading Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with
agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the eartiest date on which the Trading Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the
balance sheet date. The contractual maturity is based on (he earliest date on which the Trading Group may be required to pay.

Weighted
average effective 1 year or
interest 1'ate less 1-Syears 5+ years Total
L] £000 £000 £000 £000

30 June 2019
Fixed interest rate instruments:
Shares classified as debi 10.6 52 206 717 975
Shares classified as debl 6.0 - - 57,662 57,662
Variable interest rate instruments:
Bank loans LIBOR + 2.1 38,574 190,154 - 228,728
Bank loans KIBOR + 0.2 79,260 27,086 - 106,346
Trade payables 0 416,597 - - 416,597

534,483 217,446 58,379 816,308
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Notes {continued)

43. Contingent liabilitics
Trading Group
Cement business

The cement business is subject to certain contingent fegal and tax matters which are currently at different legal stages. The
Directors and the Company's legal advisor are confident of a favourable ontcome on alf these matters, accordingly no provision
has been made in respect of these matters in the consolidated [inancial statements.

Banking Group

Penalties amounting to £23.0 million have been levied by the Banking Group’s (UBL) regulator relating to atleged
contraventions of the requirements of foreign exchange regufations. UBL maintains thet it fully discharged its Hability, in
accordance with the law and has filed a civil suit in the respective High Court challenging the levy of the penally. The High
Court has granted a stay on action being teken against UBL. The Directors based on the advice from legal counsel, are confident
that the view of UBL will prevail and therefore no provision has been made in respect of same in the consolidated financial
statements,

The banking business is subject to certain contingent legal and tax matters which are currently at different legal stages. The
Directors and the Bank's legal advisor are confident of a favourable outcome on all these matters, accordingly no provision
has been made in respect of these matters in the consolidated financial statements,

44, Financial instruments

Trading Group

a} Capital risk managentent

The Group manages ils capital ta ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the retum 1o the shareholders through ihe optimisation of the debt and eguity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consisis of net debl (borrowings disclosed in note 36 after deducting cash and bank balances)
and equity of the Qroup (comnprising issucd capilal and retaincd sarnings).

The Group manages its capital by increasing/decreasing its debt and/or equity as needed and also by adjusting the number of
dividends paid to shareholders. The Trading Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

b) Finawncial risk

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities by categories:

Financial Assels 2019 2018
£000 £000
Loans and receivables
Amomts receivable for sale of goods 162,993 159,725
Other receivables 35,297 54,548
Cash and cash oquivalenis 154,181 170,121
Total financial assets 352,471 384,394
Financial liabitities
Overdraft 107,148 140,649
Trade payables 416,297 484,327
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings 288,189 366,799
Total financial liabilities 811,634 991,775
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Notes (continued)
44, Financial instruments {continued)
Financial risk management objectives

The Trading Group's Corporate Treasury funclion provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and
intemational financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Trading Group
through intemal risk reports which analyses cxposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include liquidity risk
and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Trading Group seeks te minimise the effects of these risks by detailed forecasting and cash management to ensure that
loan covenants are not breached, The Group has a policy of using reasonable cash surpluses (o puy down debt and thereby
reducing interest costs. The Group docs not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments,
for specudative purposes.

o) Credif Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Trading Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Trading Group’s receivables from customers.

The Trading Group manages credit risk prinsipally through the performance of credit checks on new customers and credit
control procedures in accordance with IFRS 9. The trade debior balances are made up of a large number of individual custemer
balances, none of which are individually significant. Cash and cash equivalents represents deposits at high quality financiai
institutions,

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, The muximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is listed in financial assots within the table sbove. All trade receivables at the balance sheet date are within the
UK or Pakistan. See note 3¢ for more information on provisions refating lo credit customers.

d) Interest rafe and liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk becauss the Trading Qroup borrows funds at foating interest rates, namely LIBOR
(London inter-bank offer rate) and KIBOR (Karach: inter-bank offer rate).

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk menagement rests with the board of Directors, which has esteblished an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Trading Group's shor, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Trading Group manages liquidity risk by maiataining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and achial cash Oows, and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Details of additional undrawn facilities that the Group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk are set out below. The
group had access to undrawn borrowing [lacilities at the end of the reporting period of £50.3m (2018: £30.3m).

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Trading Group's renwining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with
sgreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial libilities based
on the carfiest date on which the Trading Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted umount is derived from interest rate curves at the
balance sheet date. The contractual malurity is based on (he eatlicst date on which the Trading Group may be required to pay.

Weighted
average effective 1 year o
interest rate less 1-5 years 5+ years Totak
% £000 £000 £000 £000

30 June 2019
Fixed interest rate instruments:
Shares classified as debt 10.0 52 206 717 975
Shares classified as debf 6.0 - - 57,662 57,662
Variable interest rate instruments:
Bank loans LIBOR + 2.1 38,574 190,154 - 228,728
Bank loans KIBOR + 0.2 79,260 27,086 - 106,346
Trade payvables 0 416,597 - - 416,597

534,483 217,446 58,379 810,308
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44. Financial instruments (continucd)

Weiglhted
average effective
mtercst rate 1 year of Jess 1-5 yeurs 5+ years Total
% £000 £000 £000 £000
30 June 2018
Fixed interest rate instruments: 10 52 206 717 975
Shares classified as debt 6 ~ - 57,662 57,662
Shares classiffed as debt
Variable interest rate instruments:
Bank loans LIBOR +2.1 21,970 224,975 - 246,945
Bank loans KIBOR +0.2 103,579 62,204 - 165,783
Trade payables 0 484,327 - - 484,327

609,928 287,385 58,379 955,692

Sensitivity analysis
The Group has exposure o interest rate risk on bank loans that bear interest on LIBOR or KIBOR plus basis.

A 1% change in LIBOR or KIBOR rates will increase or decrease equity by:

2019 2018
£000 £000
Bank loans 2,882 3,628
2,882 3,628
A 1% change in interest rates will incroase or decrease profit and loss by:
2019 2018
£000 £000
Bank loans 2,842 3,628
2,882 3,628

Banking Group

This section presents information about the Banking Group’s banking business (UBL.) exposure to and its management and
contral of risks, it particular, the primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments such as credie, market, liquidity,
and operational risks.

Risk management

The Banking Group has an integrated risk management structure in place covering domestic and intemational franchise. The

Board Risk and Compliance Committee {BRCC) oversees the entire risk management process of the Banking Group.

Furthermore, Risk Maragement Committes has been formed which fooks at all risks collectively at senior management lovel.

The committee is chaired by {he President and comprises of Heads of all risk areas, finance, business etc. The Risk and Credit

Policy Group is responsible for the development and implementation of all risk policies as approved by the BRCC / BoD. The

group is organised into the functions of Market & Treasury Risk, Financial Institution Risk, Credit Policy & Research,

Consumer Credit Policy, Credit Risk Management and Operational Risk & Basel. Each risk function is headed by a senior

manager who reports directly to the Group Execulive, Risk and Credit Policy. The role of the Risk and Credit Policy Grougp

includes:

» Delermining guidelines relating to the Banking Group's risk appstite;,

» Recommending risk management policics in accordance with the Prudential Regulations, Basel II framework and
international best practices,

» Reviewing policies/manuals and epsuring that these are in accordance with BRCC/Board of Directors approved risk

nanagement policies;

Developing systems and resources lo review the key risk exposures of the Banking Group;

Approving eredits and granting approval avthority to qualified and experienced individuals;

Reviewing the adequacy of oredit training across the Banking Group;

Organising portfolio reviews focusing on guality assessment, risk profiles, industry concentrations, etc.;

Setting systems to identify significant portfolio indicators, problem credits and Level of provisioning required; and

Assigning of Obligor's Risk Rating (ORR) to customers.

.« & ® * 9 @
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44. Financial instruments {continued)
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Equity
investments
Financial Debt - Initially
asscts (other Debt investments designated Equity
than Debt investments at fair at falr investients- Financial
investrterits) at falr value valtre Initially linbilitics
- At value through through designated at at
amortised through Profitand Profit and fair value amortised
30 June 2019 cost 0C1 loss loss through OCI cost Tatal
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cash eud cash 1,336,341 . - , - - 1,336,341
equivalents
g‘::i‘l‘;f‘;?s o - 2,131,755 663,21 72214 6,305 - 4,403,266
Lending to
financial 108,907 - - - - - 108,907
institutions
Advances 3,370,909 - - - - - 3,370,909
Other assets 202,816 - - - - - 202,816
5,018,973 2,131,755 663,215 72,214 6,305 ~ 9,422,239

Reinsurance assets of £10.3 million recognised by our insurance business

Financial
liabitities
Trade and ofher
payables
Deposit and
other accounts
Sub ordinated
foans

Payable to
investors of UBL
Funds

Bills payable
Other interest-
bearing loans
and borrowing
Other liabilities

, is clagsified as a financial assel at amortised cost.

195,668 195,668

7,408,802 7,408,802

49,202 49,202
9,536 9,536
143,886 143,886

1,143,559 1,143,559

2,576 2,576

8,953,229 8,953,229
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44. Financial instruments {continucd)

Other

financial

Loans and Held-to- Available- Held for assets /
30 June 2018 receivablos nraturity for-sale Trading liabilities Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 1,228,013 1,228,015
Inveshments in financial assets - 2,137,648 2959413 221,366 - 5,318,427

lending to financial institutions - (38,776) - - - (38,776)

Advances 272,545 - - - - 272,545

Other assels 4,598,031 - - - - 4,598,031

impatrment provision on

investments 241,373 - - - - 241,373
5,111,949 2,098,872 2959413 221,366 1,228,015 11,619,615

Reinsurance assets of £11.4 million rocognised by our insurance business, is classified as a financial asset at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables - - - - 253,083 253,083
Deposit & other accounts - - - - 8,741,126 8,741,126
Sub ordinated loans - - - - 7,487 TA87
Bills payable - - - - 96,344 96,844
Other interest-bearing loans and ) ) ) . 1,906,370 1,906,370

borrowing
Other Labilities - - - - 4,462 4,462

i - . - 11009372 £1009,372

The 2019 figures presented are on IFRS 9 classilications while the compared figures are based on [AS 39 classification,
(e) Fair value measuremenis

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
markot participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, tho most advantageous market to which the
Banking Group has access to at that dato.

Tuvestmeunts which are {radable in an opeu market are revalued at the markel prices prevailing on the balance sheet date,

The fair value of fixed tern loans, other assels (except for nnrealised gain on derivafive financial instruments and forward
exchange contraots), other liabilities {except for unrealised loss on derivalive financial instruments and forward exchange
contracts) and fixed term deposits cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to the absence of a current and active
market for these assets and liabilitios and reliable data regarding market ratos for similar instruments.

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly different from
their carrying values since these are either short-term in nature or, in the case of customer loans and deposits, are frequentiy

repriced.
The information set out befow provides information about how the Group determines fair values of various financial assets
and financia! liabilities.

- Level 1 fair value measurements arc thosc derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in acfive tarkets for identical assels or
fiabilities,

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the assei or linbility, cither directly (i.e. as prices) or indireetly (i.c. derived from prices); and

-Level 3 fair value measurements are those detived from vatuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that
are nol based on obiservable market data {uncbservable inputs).
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44. Financial instruments (continued)

Investments in financiaf assets measured af fair
valiee (Note 29}

Tirvestments in:

Govemment Securities (T-bills, PIBs, GoP Sukuks
and Eurobonds)

Foreign Bonds

Ordinary shares of listed companies

Ordinary shares of unlisted companics
Preference Shares

Debt securitics (TFCs, Sukuks and others)
Mutual Funds

REIT scheme

Investments in financial assets not measured at fuir
value (Nofe 29)

Securilies carried at amortised cost (2018: held-to-
maturity)

Off balance sheet financial instruments (at notional
value)

Forward purchase and sale of foreign exchange
contracts

Interest rate swaps
FX options - purchased and sold

Forward purchase of govemment securitics

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2019

Lovel 1 Level 2 Level3  Carrying Value
£000 £000 £000 £000

- 2,348,975 - 2,348,975

- 428,761 - 428,761
69,085 - - 69,085
- - 6,305 6,305

- 177 177

- 17,057 - 17,057

- 1,088 - 1,088
2,042 - - 2,042
71,127 2,795,881 6,482 2,873,490
- - - 1,415,700

- 34,281 B 3,458,334

- (96) - 1,524

. . - 8,076

- 158 . 382,280

Investments in financial assets measured al fair
value (Note 29)

Investments in:

Govenunent Securities (T-bills, PIBs, GoP Sukuks
and Eurobonds)

Foreign Bonds

Ordinary shares of listed companics

Ordinary shares of unlisted companies
Preference Shares

Debt securities (TFCs, Sukuks and athers)
Mutual Funds

REIT scheme

Irvestments tn financial assets not measured af fatr
vdfie (Note 29}

Securities carried at amoriised cost (2018: held-to-
maturity)

Qff balance sheet financial instriments (ai notional
value)

Forward purchase and sale of foreign exchange
contracts

Interest rale swaps
FX options - purchased and sold

Forward purchase of government securities

Fair value hierarchy a5 &t 30 June 2018

Lovel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Carrying Valus
£000 £000 £000 £000

- 2,632,526 - 2,632,526

- 403,337 - 403,337
130,782 - - 130,782
- - 4,685 4,683

. . 2,656 2,656

- 3,448 . 3,448

3,345 - - 3,345
134,127 3,039,311 7,341 3,180,779
- - . 1,643,521

- 4,652 - 2,552,728

- 126 - 14,098

- - - 1,057

- asy - 5,072
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44, Financial instruments (continted)

Operating fixed assets and investment properties are carried at revalued amounts determined by professional valuers (level 3
measurement) based on their asscssment of the market values as disclosed in notes 24 and 25 respectively.

Daring the year there have been nto transfers between the levels,

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified at amontised cost, is based on quoted market price. The fair value
of unquoted equity securities, other then investments in assoctates is the fair value of unguoted equity investments is measured
by using the wmarket approach (comparable company multiples) and the cost approach {adjusted net asseis) under IFRS 13, The
fair value of associates is based on the net assets of the associates as per their |atest financial statements.

() Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty may not seftle an obligation for full valus, ¢ither when due or at any time
thereafter.

This risk arises from the potential that a customer's or counterparty's willinguess or ability to meet such an obligation is
impaired, resulting in an economic loss to the Banking Group. The credit risk management process is driven by the Bank's
Credit Policy, which provides policies and procedures in relation to credit initintion, approval, documentation and
disbarsement, credit maintenanco and remedial management. Individual credit authorities are delegated to oredit officers by
the Board according to their seasoning/matirity. Approvals for corporate and conswmer loans are centealised, while approval
suthorities for Commercial and SME oexposures are delegatod to a Regional level. All credit policy functions are centrally
organised.

Concentrations of credit risk exist if clients are engaged in similar activities, or are located in the same geographical region, or
havo comparable economic characteristics such thak their ability to meet contractual obligations would be similarly affected by
changes in economic, political or other conditions. The Banking Group meanages limits and conirols concentrations of credit
risk to individual counterparties and grou ps, and Lo industries, where appropriate. Limits are also applied to porifolios or sectors
where the Banking Group considers it appropriate to resirict credit risk concentrations, or to arcas of higher risk, or te control
the rate of portfolio growth.

Risk limit contrel and mitigation pelicies

The Banking Group manages, limits and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever they are identified - in particular, to
individual counterparties and groups, industries and countries.

The Banking Group struclures the Jevels of eredit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation
1o one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to geagraphical and industry sogments. Such risks are monifored on a revolving
basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review, when considered necessary, Limits on the tevel of eredit risk by produet
and industry seclor are approved quarterly by the Management Board.

The exposure 1o any one borrower is further restricted by sub-limits covering on- and off-balance shest exposures. Actual
exposures against limits are monitored daily.

Exposure to credit risk is also managed through analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers fo wieet inferest
and capital repayment obligations at the time of lean appraisal for initial and subsequent loans.

Sonte other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below.
(i) Coltateral

The Banking Group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking
of security for funds advances, which is common practice. The Banking Group implements guidelines on the acceptability of
specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The prineipal collateral types for loans and advances are given in
described in note 44.

In addition, in order to minimise the credit loss, the Banking Group will seek additional collateral from the counterparty as
soon as impairment indicators are noticed for the relevant individual loans and advances.
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44. Financial instruments {contiuned)
(i) Credit-related commitments

‘The primary purpose of these instnnents is to ensure that funds are available to a customor as required. Gnarantees and standby
letters of credit carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit — which are written
undertakings by the Banking Group on behalf of a customer authorising a third party tw draw drafls on the Banking Group up
to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions - are collateralised by the underlying shipments of goods to which
they relate and therefore carry loss risk than a direct loan,

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, gnarantees or
fetters of credit, With respect to credit risk an cammitments to extond credit, the Banking Group is potentially exposed fo loss
in an amount equal lo the total unused commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the tolal unused
commitments, a3 most commitments to extend credit are contingenf upon cistomers maintaining specific credit standards. The
Banking Group mouitors the term fo maturity ol credit commitments because longer-term commitments generally have o
greater degree of oredit risk than shorter-term commitments.

Lending to Tivestments

financial Loans and (debt  Off balance
institutions advances securities) sheet items
2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000

At amortised cost
Considered good 108,908 3,234,529 1,542,689 -
Whatch list - 169,739 - -
Substandard - 33,432 - -
Doubstful - 24,669 - -
Loss - 317474 - -
Less: Allowaiice for impairment - (408,934) (12,910) -
Fuir value threugh OCI/ avaifable for sale - - - -
Considered good - - 2,122,672 -
Watch list - - 9,083 -
Loss - - - -
{.esz: Allowance for impairment - - - -
Fair value through profit and loss - - - -
Considered good - - 663,215 -
Loss - - - -
Less: Allowance for impairment - - - -
Off balance sheet - - - -
Trade-related contingent liabilities - - - 959,552
Direct ¢redit substitutes - - - 181,307
Transaction-related contingent liabilities - - - 710,717
Forward contracts — purchase* - - - 2,055,005
Fonward contracts — sale* - - - 1,740,420
Derivatives - Intorest rate swaps* - - - 1,524
Derivatives - Cross currency swaps - - - -
FX options — purchased™ - - - 4,038
FX options - sold* - - - 4,038
Forward parchase of Government securitics™ - - - 382,280
Forward sale of Government securitios* - - - -
Other claims, commitmonts and contin gencics - - - 798,059
108,908 3,370,909 4,324,749 6,836,940

* These represent the notional amount of the derivatives trade.
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44. Financial instruments (continued)

Al aniortised cost

Considered goad

Watch list

Substandard

Doubtiul

Loss

Less: Allowance for impairment
Fair value through OCI / available for sale
Considered goad

Watch list

Loss

Less: Allowance for impairment
Falr value through profit and loss
Considered goad

Loss

Less: Allowance for impairment
Gff balance sheet

Trade-related contingent ligbilities
Dircet credit substitutes
Tranzaction-relatod contingent liabilities
Forward contracts — purchase*
Forward contracts — saie*
Derivatives - Inferest rate swaps*
Derivatives - Cross country swaps
FX options — purchased™*

FX options — sold*

Forward purchase of Government securities®

Forward sale of Government scourities*

Other clains, commitments and contingencios

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Lending to Investments
financial Loans and (debt Off balance
mstilutions advatices securities) sheel rtems
2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
269,750 4,569,481 2,011,553 -
- 28,335 - -
8,052 24,483 - -
425 308,512 20,338 -
(5,682) (332,781) (11,262) -
- - 2,796,188 -
- - 607 -
- - 607y -
« - 221,366 -
- - . 1,199,358
- - - 164,656
- - - 1,014,206
- - - 1,794,251
- - - 1,503,421
- - - 18,212
- - - 683
- - - 683
- - - 6,552
- - - 137,827
272,545 4,598,030 5,138,183 5,839,849

* These represent the notional amount of the derivatives trade.

The Banking Group has pledged marketable securities amounting to £566 miflion against repurchase borrowings. The breakup

of these securities has been disclosed in note 29,
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4d, Financial instruments (confinaed)

The table below sets out the concentration of risk by sector and by geographical location:

Investments
Investiments Investments {(deht
(debt (debt sccurities)
Cash and Lending to securities) securities) through Off
cash financial through through Amortised Other balance
cquivalents institutions Advances FVIPL FYOCI cost  assets sheet items
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 20192 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 £600
Concentration of credit risk
Chomical and - - 6uled - - 487 7226 29321
pharmaceuticals
Agri business - - 393,17 - - - - 22,403
Communication - - 14,536 - - - 53,323 38,301
Textile - - 356,046 177 313 333 2487 32,462
Sugar - - 43,320 - - - - 1,375
Shoes and leather ) ) 9.808 _ ) } 407 6,647
garmeiis
Tl'lll.lspcﬂ.&tlml B } 4.968 _ oL ; R }
equipmen?
Financial 197,066 108,908 299,419 15,170 58,396 7,119 66,331 5.346,675
Electronios and
elecirical appliances B ) 71,346 ) . T 2449 3,180
Production and
transmission of - - 866,951 - 12423 82,330 38,884 469,763
onergy
Paper and allied - - 3,524 - - - 869 7438
Wholesale traders - - 127,262 - - - 2911 20,193
Fertilizer dealers - - - “ -o- 2,051 - 8,222
Sports goods - - - - - - - -
Food industries - - 81,902 - 2,231 - 487 &,122
Caonstruction - - 176,561 - - - 15,764 74,514
Engincering - - 9,171 - - - 1,218 20,166
CGlass and allied - - - - . - - -
Hotels - - 2,656 - - - - 1,612
Polyesier and fibre - - - - - - - 30,561
Individuals - - 348,230 - T 37,757 - - 12,190
Others including 1 139 995 . 429230 647,869 2,020,633 1437457 10461 643794
government securities
1,336,341 108,908 3,370,907 663,21¢ 2,131,753 1,529,777 202,817 6,836,939
Concentration by locations -
Pakistan opcrations 873,238 98,398 2,356,504 663,216 1707473 1417813 179,564 4,084,000
Middle East 352,415 - 794,823 - 237,111 61,111 22,705 2,382,060
United States of {4,137 - - - 2487 - - -
America
Export processing 172 - 374 - - - 499 12,015
Zones
Europe 93,020 - 122,432 - 3,060 3,444 49 337,942
Africa - 8,659 14,781 - 69,484 17,970 - -
Rest of the world | 3,359 1,851 81,993 - 112,138 29,439 - 20,922
1,336,341 108,908 3,370,907 663,216 2,131,753 1,529,777 202,817 6,836,939
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44, Financial instruments (continued)

Lending o

financial Loans and Investments Off balance
institutions advances (debt securities) shect items
2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

Concentration of credit risk
Chemical and pharmaceuticals - 88,167 756 25,793
Agri business - 56,266 - 235,824
Communication - 184,237 13 82,514
Textile - 700,657 1,440 17,961
Sugar - 104,007 _— 15
Shoes and ieather garmeats - 14,212 . 7,900
Transportation equipment - 90,627 2,098 18,283
Financial 278,227 311,916 73,315 3,463,602
Electronics and electrical appliances - 32,609 3,117 8,363
Production and transmission of energy - 1,134,075 112,572 699,612
Paper and allicd - 135,386 - 8,441
Wholesale traders - 98,931 - 17,997
Fertilizer dealers - 104,636 5,499 10,894
Sports goods - 10,188 - -
Food industries - 517,094 8,153 9,659
Construction - 296,262 626 199,019
Engineering - 137,970 - 108,579
(ilass and allied - 10,090 - 986
Hotels - 177,955 - 175
Polyester and fibre - 25,540 - 33,511
tndrviduals - 406,079 19,341 21,352
Others including government securities - 293,907 4,911,253 869,300
278,227 4,930,811 5,138,183 5,839,849

Congcentration by locations
Pakistan operations 197,601 3,673,365 4.370,111% 3,051,154
Middle East 59,031 922,839 497,774 2,197.7751
United States of America - - - -
Export Processing Zones 8,342 1,290 11,392 15,399
Europe 12,753 313,525 246,657 573,861
Africa - 19,792 11,749 1,684
Rest of the World - - - -
278227 4,930,811 5,138,183 5,839,849

Credit risk measurement

The estimation of credit exposure for risk management purposes is complex and requites the use of models, as the risk
associated with exposure varies with changes in market conditions, expocted cash flows and the passage of time, The
assessment of oredit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to the likelihood of defaulis occurring, of the
associated loss ratios and of defanlt correlations between counterparties. The Banking Group measures credit risk using
Probability of Defauit (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Defanit (LGD). This is similar to the approach used
for the purposes of measuring Expected Credit Loss (ECL) under IFRS 9,

Credit ratings and PD estimation process

The Banking Qroup’s Credit Risk Dopartment operates its intema! rating models for Advances, lending’s to financial
institutions and off-balance sheet obligations. The models incorporate both qualitative and quantitative information and, in
addition to information specific to the borrower, utilise supplemental external information that could affect the bomrower’s
behavior. PDs for rated portfolios are determined using migration of eating grades from one period to other within (he PD
observation period. Consumer lending cotnprises unsecured personal loans, credit cards and averdiafls, PDs models of these
produsts are primarily driven by days past duoo,

Por debt securities and balances with banks in the Treasury porifolio, exteral rating agency credit grades are used. The PDs
associated with cach grade are determined bascd on rcalised default rates as published by the rating agency.
Estimated historical realised delault rates are adjusted for IFRS 9 ECL calculations to incorperate forward looking information
and the IFRS stage classification of the exposure. This is repeated for each econemic scenario as appropriate.
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44, Iinancial instruments (countinned)
The Bunking Group's internal credit rating grades

Lending te financial institutions, advances and Off-balance sheet obligations

Internal credit rating va “Lngtﬁ;:lf;zg::
Performing

i-4 High Grade
5-6 Medium Grade
7-9 Low Grade
Non-performing

10-12 Drefanic

Debft securities and balances with barks

Ratings Agency's
Internal credit rating Rating (JCR - VIS)
Medium to Long term Ratings Agency's Description

Performing
AAA ighest oredit quality. The risk factors are negligible being only slightly
more than for risk-free Goveinment of Pakistan debt
AAY AA . AA. High c!‘edit quality.' I’mtecl_ion factors are strong. l?isk is todest but may
Investment grade ' * vary slightly Eror{1 time to ilfne because of economic cqndittons.
At AL A IGood credit quality. Protection factors are adequate. Risk factors may vary
e with the possible changes in the economy.
BBBE+. BBB A dequate credit quality. P‘rote.ct.im factors are reasonable and sufficient. Risk
’ ciors are considered variable if changes occur in the economy.
BBB- IAdequate credit quality. Protection factors are reasonable and sufficient. Ris
factors arg considered variable if changes occur in the economy.
Obligation decmed likely to he met when due. Protection factors are capable
Non-Investment BB+, BB, BB- of weakening if cllangcs_occlfr in the economy. Overall quality may move up
ade or down frequently within this category.
F IObligations deemed less likely lo be met when due. Protection factors are
Bt B. R capable of Quctuating widely if changes oceur in the economy. Overall
r quality may move up or down frequently within this category or into higher
t lower rating grade.
Non-performing
cce IConsiderable uncertainty exists towards obligations when due. Protection
ffaciors are scarce, and risk may be substantial.
Loss cC A high dofault risk.
C A very high default risk,
D Defaulied obligations,

Expected credit loss measurement

IFRS 9 cutlines a ‘three-stage® mode! for impairment based on changes in credil quality since initial recognition as summarised
below:

- A finaucial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recoguition is classified in ‘Stage ' and has its credit sk
continuously monitored by the Banking Group.

- If a significant increase in credit risk (‘SICR’) since initial recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to
'Stage 2’ but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

- 1f the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrumont is then moved to *Stage 3°.

- Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of fifetime expected credit losses
that result from default ¢vents possible within the tiext 12 months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based
on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

- A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS 9 is that it should consider forward- looking information.

-« Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assots are those financial assets that are oredit- fmpaired on initial
recognition. Theit ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).

Further explapation is also provided of how the Banking Group determines appropriate groupings when ECL is measured on
a collective basis.
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Significant increase in credit vish (SICR)

The Banking Group contintously monilors ail assets subject to ECLs. In order lo determine whether an instrument or a portfolio
of instruments is subject to twelve manths expected credit foss or lifetime expected credit loss, the Banking Group assesses
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Banking Group has established a policy
to perform an asscssment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a tinancial instrament’s credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition.,

Significant increase in credit risk is measured by comparing the risk of default estimated at origination with the risk of default
at reporting date. The Banking Group also applics a secondary qualitative method for triggering a significant increase in credit
risk for an asset, such as moving a customes/facility to the watch list, or the account becoming forbome. Regardless of the
change in credit grades, if contractual payments are more than 60 days past due in case of corporate advances and 30 days past
due in case of retail advances and other financial assets subject to impairment, the credit risk is deemed to have increased
significantly since initial recognition.

As per IFRS 9 there is a rebuttable presuaption thal the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, however the Banking Group has carried out an analysis
of corporate advances whereby the Banking Gronp has monitoered repayment behavior of those corporate customers who were
in the bucket of 30-60 days past due at any time during the year ended 30 Junc 2019 and observed that majority of such
customers pay back bofore 90 days and therefore, do not ultimately fall under default category.

Definition of defanit and credit-impaired assets

The Banking Group considers a financial instrument defaultod and therefore Stage 3 (eredit-impaired) for ECL calculations in
all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past dus on its contractual payments or when the enfity is rated at CRR 10 or
above or CCC/ CC as at the assessiment date. As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether n cusiotner is in default, the
Benking Group elso considers a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When such evenls accur, the Banking
Qraup carofully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer es defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage
3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.

Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assuniptions and estirmation techniques

“The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) it measured on either a 12-month (12M) or Lifctime basis depending on whether a significant
increase in credif risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is considered fo be credit-impaired. Expected
credit losses are the discounted product of the Probability of Default (PD), Exposurc at Defaull (EAD), and Loss Given Default
(LGD), defined as follows:

- The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per “Definition of default and credit-
impaired” above), sither over the next 12 months (12M PD), or over the remaining lifstime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

- The EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, considering oxpected changes in the exposure afler the
reporting date, including ropayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected
drawdowns on committed facililies, and acorued intersst from missed payments. The EAD represents the gross cafrying amount
of the financial instruments subject to the impairment calculation, addressing both the client’s abilily to increase ifs exposure
while approaching default and potential early repayments too. The EADs are determined based on the expecled payment
profile, which varies by produet type. Far amortising products and bullet repaymont loans, this is based on the contractual
repsyments owed by the borrower over the 12 months and lifetime basis. This is also adjusted for any overpayments made by
the borrower. For revolving products, the EAD is predicted by tsking current drawn balance and adding a credit conversion
factor which aflows for the expected drawdown of the remaining limit by the time of defauil.

The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the contractual life of a financial instrument wnless the
Banking Oroup has the Jegal right to call it earlier. The Banking Group's product offering includes a variety of corporate and
retail credit cards facilities, in which the Banking Group has the right to cancel and/or reduce the facilities with one day’s
notice. However, in case of credit cards, the Banking Group does not limit its exposure to credit losses 1o the contractual notice
period, but, instead caleulates ECL over a period that rofloots the Banking Group's expeotations of the customer behaviour, its
likelihood of defauit and the Banking Group's future sk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling
the facilitics. Based on past experience and the Banking Group’s expectations, the period over which the Banking Group
calculates ECLs for credit card, is till the date of validity of credit card.

To caleulate the EAD for a Stage 1 loan, the Banking Group assesses the possible defanlt evenis within 12 months for the
caleulation of the 12 months ECL. For Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI financial sssets, the exposure at default is cousidered for
events over the lifetime of the instruments, ’
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- LGD is au estimate of the loss arising in the case where a delnult occurs at a given time. Itis based on the difference betweoen
the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect ta receive, including from the realisation of any coliateral,
It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

Banking Group caleulates LGD rates and these LGD rates take into acconnt the EAD for historical pool of non-performiig
loans in comparison Lo the amount recovered or realised against such loans. [n determining LGDs, the Banking Group considers
all eligible collateral provided the coliateral can be legally enforced. Due 1o the complexities involved regarding collateral
realisation aud lack of historical experience to demonstratc recoverics through realisation of collaterals, the Banking Group
teslricts the expected recoveries (to be considered in LGD computations) based on its historical recavery expetiences.

LGDs for corporate and retail portfolio is calculated using the actual historical recoveries on its defaulted portfolio over a
period of at least 5 years prior to the assessment date. The historical defaults are taken for the different vintages and the
recoverices are caloulated and discounted back for that particular vintage. The recovery period / crysiallisation period is ot
defined as such and will change based on the vintages taken.

LGDs for investment portfolio has been fixed at 45% as per lhe Basel guidelines. This approach is followed due to the
conplexities involved with respect to collateral realisation and lack of snfficient historical data points fo demonstrate recoveries
through realisation of collateral.

PD, EAD and LGD are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e. the exposure has not prepaid or
defaulted in carlier year) on annual basis, This effectively caloulates an ECL for each future year, which is then discounted
back to the reporting dats and summed. The discount rale nsed in ECL computation is the original effective interest rate or an
approxiimation thereof.

Forward locking economic information is alse included in determining the 12 months and lifetime ECL. The Banking Group
has performed historical analysis and identified key economic variables impacting credit risk and ECL for each portfolio. These
economic variables and their associated impact on PD, EAD end LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert judgement has also
been applied in this process, Forecast of these economic veriables (the “basc cconomic scenario™) are obtained from extemal
sources on g quarterly basis.

In addition to the base economic scenario, the management also estimate other possible scenarios along with scenarios
weighting, The scenario weighting is determined by an expert credit judgement. As with any cconomic forecasts, the
prajoctions and likelihoods of the occurrence are subject to a high degree of inherent uncortainty and thercfore the actual
outcomes may be significantly difforent to those projected. The Banking Group considers theso cstimates of the possible
outcomes. The Banking Group has used baso, upside and downside scenarios for ifs ECL ostimation.

Forward-looking information incarporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and ¢he caloulation of ECL boih incorpomte forward-looking information. The Banking Group has
porformed historical analysis and identified the key economic variables impacling credit risk and expected credit losses for
cach portfolio.

In its ECL models, the Banking Group relies on & range of forward looking information an a geographic regionis basis with
economic inputs, such as:

- GDP growth

- Consumer Price Index
- Export growth

« Unemployment

Aunalpsis of inputs to the ECL medel nnder imultiple economic scenarios per geographic regions

To ensure completencss and accuracy, the Banking Group obtains the data used from third party sources i.e., publications of
Internationn) Monetary Fund and verifies the accuracy of inputs to the Banking Group® ECL models including determining the
weights attributable to the multiple scenarios. The following tables set out the key drivers of expecied loss and the assumplions
used for the Banking Group's base case estimate, ECLs based on the base case, plus the effect of the use of multiple economic
scenarios for each of the geographical segments, as at | July 2018 and 30 June 2019,

The tables show the values of the key forward looking economic variables/assumptions used in each of the economic scenarios
for the ECL calculations.
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Notes (continued)

44. Hinancial instruments (continued)

Region Pakistan
30 Jue 2019
Key drivers

GDP growth %

Consumer price index %

Vaolume of exports of goods %

1 July 2018
Key drivers

GDP growth %

Unemployinent rates %

Consumer price index %o

Volume of exports of goods %

Region United Kingdom
30 June 2019

Key drivers

GDP growth %

1 July 2018
Key drivers

GDP growth %

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downsido

Upside
Base case
Downside

Upside
Base case
Downside

ECL
Scenaric

Upside
Besc case
Downside

Upside
Base case
Downside

Upside
Basc case
Downside

Upside
Base caso
Downside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

Assigned
Probabilities
%4

%
60%
35%

5%
60%
35%

5%
60%
35%

Assigned
Probabilitios
%

5%
60%
35%

3%
60%
35%

3%
60%
35%

5%
60%
35%

Assigned
Probabilities
%o

10%
80%
10%

Assigned
Probabilities
%Y

10%
80%
10%

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 1 E003305

Annuval report snd financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
% % % % %
35 34 34 33 3z
29 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6
23 22 2.2 2.1 2.0
9.9 92 12 7.2 72
1.6 7.0 50 50 5.0
54 4.8 2.8 2.8 23
8.5 123 9.9 9.4 8.5
2.5 6.3 3.9 34 2.5
-3.5 03 «2.0 2.6 -3.4
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
%% % % % %
5.7 6.1 4.3 3.8 38
5.4 58 4.0 s 3.5
50 55 37 32 3.1
6.1 6.1 6.2 6.2 6.3
6.0 6.1 6.1 6.2 63
6.0 6.0 6.1 6.2 6.2
T4 12 107 9.7 82
4.1 39 7.5 6.3 50
09 0.7 4.2 32 18
0.1 15.5 17.2 133 10.2
<33 118 136 9.7 0.5
0.1 8.2 9.9 6.0 29
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
% % Ya % S
1.7 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2
1.2 14 1.5 1.6 1.6
0.6 0.8 0 1.0 1.0
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
%% % % % %o
L7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0
1.7 14 1.5 1.5 1.6
1.7 09 1.9 11
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Notes (continued)

44. Rinancial instruments (continned)

Region Switzerland

31 June 2019
Key drivers

GDP growth %

1 July 2018
Key drivers

GDP growth %

Region UAL
30 June 2019
Key drivers

GDP growth %

1 July 2018
Koy drivers

GDFP growth %

Region Bahrain
30 June 2019
Key drivers

GDP growth %

1 July 2018
Key drivers

GDP growth %

ECIL.
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Dovwnside

ECL

Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

ECL

Scenario

Upside
Basc case
Dowuside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

ECL
Scenario

Upsido
Base cose
Daownside

ECL
Scenarie

Upside
Base case
Downside

Assigned
Probabilities
Y%

10%
80%
10%

Assigned
Probabilities
%%

1.7
17
L7

Assipned
Probabilitics
%

30%
40%
30%

Assigned
Probabilities
Y%

30%
40%
30%

Assigned
Probabilitles
%

30%
40%
30%

Assigned
Probabilities
%

30%
40%
30%

2019
%

4.0

1.6

2018

o—=wN
— L

2012
%

2.6

1.6

2018
%

3.2

2.2

Bestway Group Limited

Repistered number 11003303

Annnal report and financial statemnents
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2020 2021 2022 2023
% % %o %
2.1 2.2 22 2.2
15 1.6 1.6 1.6
L0 1.0 1.0 10
2018 2019 2020 2021
% % % %
23 22 2.1 7
1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7
14 1.2 12 7
2020 2021 2022 2023
% % %% %
4.5 432 4.1 4.0
33 3.0 2.9 23
2.1 1.8 1.7 1.6
2019 2020 2021 2022
% % % %
4.6 4.4 4.3 4.3
34 32 31 3.1
22 2.0 1.9 1.9
2026 2021 2022
% 3 %
2.5 2.5 26
35 35 3.6
1.5 1.5 1.6
2019 2020 2021 2622
%o %% % %
2.6 25 25 2.6
3.6 35 3.5 3.6
1.6 1.5 1.5 L.6
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Notes {continued)

44, Financial instruments {cenfinued)

Bestway Group Limited

Registered pumber 11003305
Annual report and fiiancial statoments
For the year ended 30 Janc 2019

Region Qatar
30 June 2019
Key drivers ECL Assigned
Scenaric  Probabilities 2019 2020 2021 2022
Yo % Yo % %
GDP growth %
Upside 30% 2.8 26 2.7 29
Base case 46% 4.0 38 39 4.1
Downside 30% L. 14 1.5 1.7
1 July 2018
Key drivers ECL Assigned
Scenario  Probabilities 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
% % Yo %% % %
GDP growth %
Upside 30% 27 28 2.6 27 29
Base case 40% 39 4.0 38 3.9 4.1
Downside 30% £S5 L6 1.4 1.5 1.7
Following tables outline the impact of multiple scenarios on the allowance:
Region - Pakistan
30 June 2019
£000 Balances Debt
with Debt Instruments Lending  Small
other Instruments at Amortised and Business Consumer
banks at FVQCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) 10 23 160 7,200 - - 31 7 7431
Base case (60%) 148 281 1,916 89,441 . - 528 172 92,486
Downside (35%) 105 184 L118 55165 - - 499 201 57,252
Total 263 468 3,194 151,806 ~ - 1,058 380 157,169
1 July 2018
£000 Debt
Balatices Debt Instruments at  Lending  Small
with other Instruments Amortised and Business Consuner
banks at FVOCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside {5%) 6 30 206 9,393 - - 61 .22 9,7i8
Base case (60%) 87 363 2477 117,797 - - 1,615 477 122,216
Downside (35%) 65 212 1,446 81872 - - 1,516 945  B6,056
Total 158 605 4,129 209,062 - - 2,592 1,444 217,990
Region - United Kingdom
30 June 2019
£000 Balances Debt
with Debtlustruments at  Lending  Smalt
otherInstruments  Amortised and Business Consumer
banks at FVOCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) 9 848 - 1,007 - - - - 1,864
Base case (60%) 88 7,795 - 9,796 - - - - 1767
Downside (35%) 13 1,126 - 1,478 - - - - 2,617
Tatal 110 9,769 - 1228 - - - - 22,160
1 July 2018
£000 Balances Dobt Debt Lending  Small
vith other Instruments Instraments at and Business Consumer
banks  at FVYOCIAmortised Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) - 164 393 2,684 - - - - 3,241
Base case (60%) 1 2,136 3,392 23,802 - - - - 29331
Downside (35%) - 426 468 3,323 - - - - 4217
Total 1 2,726 4,253 29,800 - - - - 36,789
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Notes (continued)
44, Financial instruments (confinned)

Region - Siitzerland
30 June 2019

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year snded 30 Junc 2019

£000 Bakanc Debt
eswith Debt Instvuments Lending  Small
other Instruments at Amortised and Business Consumer
banks at FVOCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) 13 - 275 5 . - . - 293
Buse case (60%) 215 - 2,574 57 - . - - 2,846
Downside (35%) 53 - 375 11 - - - - 439
Total 281 - 3,224 73 - - - - 3,578
1 July 2018
£000 Balances Debt
with Debt Instruments at  Lending  Small
otherdnstruments at  Amortised and Business Consumer
bauks FVOCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) 7 - 10 32 - - - - 49
Base case (60%) 138 - 116 315 - - - - 569
Downside (35%) 38 - 20 48 - - - - 106
Total 183 - 146 395 - - - - 724
Region - Qatar
36 June 2019
£000 Balances Debt
with Debt Instrumenis [ending  Small
other Instruments at Amartised and Business Consumer
banks at FVOCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) - 50 129 12,521 - - 68 - 12,768
Base casc (60%) - 67 172 16,694 - - al - 17,024
Downside (35%) . 50 129 12,521 - - G8 - 12,768
‘Total - 167 430 41,736 - - 227 - 42,560
1 July 2018
£000 Balances Daobt
with Debt Instrumonts at  Leading Small
other Instruments Amortised and Business Consumer
banks at FYQCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) - 147 49 3414 - - 20 - 3,630
Base case (60%) - 195 65 4,553 - - 27 - 4,840
Dovmside (35%) - 147 49 3414 - - 20 - 3,630
Total - 489 163 11,381 - - 67 . 12,100
Region - Bahrain
30 June 20192
£000 Balances Debt
with Debt Instruments Lending Small
other Instruments at Amortived and Business Consumer
banks at FVOCI CostAdvances Lending Lending Unfunded Accoptances Total
Upside (%) - 348 124 866 - - 108 - 1446
Basc case (60%) - 464 165 1,154 - - 144 - £,927
Downside (35%) - 348 124 866 - - 108 - 1,446
Total - 1,160 413 2886 - - 360 - 4,819
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Notes (continned)

44, Financial instruments (continted)

[ July 2018

£000 Debt
Balances Debt Instruments Lending  Small
with other Instruments at at Amortised and Business Consumer

banks FVOCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfiinded Acceptances  Total
Upside (5%) - 370 92 878 - - 54 - 1,394
Base case (60%) - 493 122 1,171 - - 72 - 1,858
Dovwnside (35%) . 370 92 878 - - 54 - 1,394
Total - 1,233 306 2927 - - 180 « 4,646

Region - UAE

30 June 2019
£000 Debt
Baiances Debt IEnstruments Lending  Small
with other Instruments at Amortised and Business Consumer
banls  at FVOCI Cost Advances lending Lending UnfundedAcceptances  Total
Upside (5%) 12 854 1,654 55,386 - - 238 - 58,204
Base case (60%) 103 1,220 2,256 74,166 - - 352 - 78,097
Downside 83 98BS 1,738 55,902 - - 303 - 59011
(35%)
Total 258 3,059 5648 185,454 - - 893 - 195312
1 July 2018
£000 Balances Debt Debt Lending Small
with other Instruments Instruments at and Business Consumer
banks at FVOCIAmortised Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Accepiances Total
Upside (5%) 133 583 1,566 49483 - - 785 - 32550
Base case (60%) 178 841 2,125 66464 - - 1,447 - 71,055
Downside (35%) 133 686 1,627 50,272 - - 1,530 - 54248
Total 444 2,110 5318 166,219 - - 3,762 - 177 853

Grouping of instricmenis for losses measured on a collective busis

*For expected credit loss provisions modelled on a collective basis, a grouping of exposures is porformed on the basis of shared
risk characteristics, such that risk exposures within a group are homogeneous. In performing this grouping, there must be
sufficient information for the group to be statistically credible. Where sufficient information is not available internally, the
Banking Group has considered benchmarking internal / external supplementary data to use for modelling purposes. The
characteristics and any supplementary data ased to determine groupings are outlined below:

Region - Pakistan
Corporate, Commercial and SME Retail

-Obligors Risk Rating -Product Basis
(Personal Loans, Auto Loans, Credit Cards, Agricultural Loans and

House Loans)

Regjon - United Kinpgdom and

Switzerland

Corporate Consumer Loans
-External Ratings -Individuals

Region - UAE, Qatar and Bahrain

Retail Exposure Non-Retail Exposure
-Oblipors Risk Rating ~Individuals
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Notes (continued)
44, Financlal instruments (continned)
Exposnre to credit visk

Muximum exposure to credit risk - Finuncial instruments subject to impairment

The analysis of the credit risk exposure of financial instruments for which an ECL allowance is recognised is disclosed in their
respective noles. The gross carrying amount of these financial assets also represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit
risk on these assets. The disclosure is in the notes as per the following:

Financial Assets . Note reference
Lending to financial institttions and advances 31
Investmeonts in financial assets 29
Off balance sheet obligations 34
Cash and cash equivalents 32

Mazximune exposure to credit visk - Financial instruments not subject (o impairment

The following information lists the maximum credit risk exposure from financial assets not subject to impairment:

Maximum

Exposure to

Risk

£000

Debt investinents at fair value through profit and loss 663,215
Equity inveatments- nitially designated at fair value througlt profit and loss 72,214

Equity investments- [nitially designated at fair value through OCI 6,305
741,734

Collateral and other credit enliancemernts

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty, Guidelines are in
place covering tho acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral.

The main types of coflateral obtained are, us follows:

Exposure Collateral
Securities lending and

reverse repurchase Cash or sccurities.
transactions

Corporate ard small
business fending
Retai} lending Mortgages over residential properties, chargo over vehicles and cash collaterals.

Charges over real eslate properties, government guarantees, cash or other liquid collalerals.

The tables below show the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of linsncial assct. They also show the total fair value of
collateral and the net exposure to credit risk.
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44, Financial instrruments {confinned)

Type of Collateral and Credit Enhancement
Fair Yalue of Collateral and Enhancements held

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

30 June 2019
Mazimum
exposuse
to credit Government Total Net Associated
In £060 risk  Cash_Securities  puaranices Real Estate Others Collatersl Exposure ECL
Balances with
Other Banks 210 B B i i - B 210 1
Loans and
Advances to 3,780 106 14 784 244 29 Li177 2,603 409
Customers
Lending to
Financial 109 - - - - - - 109 -
institutions
4,099 106 14 784 244 29 1,177 2,922 410
Debt
instruments at 1,543 - 2 75 - - 77 1,465 13
amortised cost
Taotal financial
assels at 5,642 106 16 859 244 29 1,254 4,388 423
amottised cost
Debt
u;lsztmments at 2,132 _ . A . . _ 2,132 15
fair value
through OCI
7,774 106 16 859 244 29 1,254 6,520 438
Other 1920 56 - - | - 57 1,863 2
commitments
9,694 162 16 859 245 29 1,311 8,383 440
Fair Value of Collateral and Enhancements held
30 June 2018
Maximum
exposure o Government Total Net Associated
In £000 credit risk  Cash  Securities  guarantcos  Real Estate  Others  Collateral Exposure ECL
Balances with
Other Banks 133 ) ) ) . ) i 153 !
Loans and
Advances to 3817 132 %] 1,029 294 34 1,498 2,319 338
Customers
Lending to
Financial 215 - - - - - - 215 4
institutions
4,185 132 9 1,029 294 34 1,498 2,687 343
Debt
instruments at 1,645 - 3 56 - - 57 1,588 11
amortised cost
Total financial
assets al 5,830 132 10 1,085 294 34 $,555 4,275 354
amortised cost
Debt
in.strumenix at 2,182 ) . _ ) R . 2,182 ¢
fair value
through OC1
3,012 132 10 1,085 294 34 1,555 6,457 3606
Olher_ 1,956 34 . - 6 27 67 1,889 6
commiments
9,968 166 10 1,085 300 61 1,622 8,346 366
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Nofes (continted)
44, Financial instruments (continued)

Loss allowance

- Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 due to financial instuments experiencing significant increases (ot
decreases) of credit risk or becoming credit-impaired in the period, and the consequent “step up™ (or “step dovwn™)
between 12-month and Lifo

- Additionai sllowances for new finaneial instruments recognised during the period, as well as releases for financial
instruments de-recognised in the period,

- Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs, EADs and LGDs in the period, arising from regular
refreshing of inputs to models; :

- Impacts on the measurement of ECL due 1o changes made to models and assnmptions;

- Discount unwind within ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL is measured on a present value basis;

- Foreign exchange retranslations for assets denominated in foreign currencies and other movemeuts; and

- Financial assets derecognised dusing the period and write-offs of allowances related to Asscts that were written off
dnring the period.

The changes in the loss allowance bstween the beginning and the end of the annual periods duc to the above factors and the
significant changes in the gross carrying awount of financial assets that contributed to changes in the loss allowance is disclosed
in their respective notes as follows:

Financial assots Note refercnce

Lending lo financial institutions and advances 31

Investnients in finaucial assets 29

Off balance sheet obligations 34
Write off policy

The Banking Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has
concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include (i) ceasing enforcement activity and (ii) where the Banking Group’s recovery method is foreclosing on coliateral and
the value of the collateral is such that there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the residual exposure
in full.
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Notes (continued)

44, Financial instvuments (conrinued)
(&) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to movemnents in market prices. It results
from changes in interest rates, exchange rates and equity prices as well as from changes in the correlations botween them. Each
of these components of market risk consists of a general market risk and a specific market risk that is driven by the nature and
composition of the portfolio,

Measuring and controlling market tisk is usually carried out at a portfolio level. Howevor, cortain controls are applied, where
necessary, to individual risk types, to particular books and to specific exposures. Controls are also applied to prevent any undue
risk concentrations in trading books, taking into account variations in price, volatility, market depth and liquidity. These
controlfs include limits on exposure to individual market risk variables as well as limits on cancentrations of lenors and issuers.

Trading activities are cantered in the Treasury and Capifal Markets Group which facilitales clients and also runs proprietary
positions. The Group is active in the cash and derivative markets for equity, interest rate and foreign exchange.

The Market and Treasury Risk division performs market risk management activities. Within this division, the Market Risk
Management unit is respansible for the development and roview of market risk policies and processes, and is involved in
research, financial modelling and testing / implementation of risk management systems, while Treasury Middle Office is
responsible for implementation and monitoring of market risk and other policies, escalation of deviations lo scnior
management, and management information systom reporting.

The functions of the Market Risk Management unit are as follows:

¢ o keep the market risk exposure within the Graup’s risk appetite as assigned by the Board of Directors.
to develop, review and upgrade procedures for the effective implementation of markot risk management policies approved
by the Board of Directors.

* [0 review new product proposals and propose / recommend / approve prosedures for the management of their market risk.
Various limits arc assigned to differcut businesses on A product/portiolio basis. The products are approved through product
programs, where risks are identified, and limits and parameters are sof. Any transactions / products falling outside these
product programs are approved through separate transaction / product memos.

s to mairtain a comprehensive database for performing sisk analysis, Stress tesling and scenario analysis. stress testing
activities are performed on a quarterly basis on both the Banking and Trading books,

() Foreigu exchange risk

Foreign Exchange Risk is the risk that the fair value of s financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. Exposures are monitored by currency to ensure that they remain within the established limits for each currency.
Exposures are also monitored on an overall basis to ensure compliance with the Group’s SBP approved Foreiga Exchange
Exposure Limit for Banking Group.

The Banking Group is en active participant in the cash and derivatives markets for currencies and carries currency risk from
these trading activities, conducted primanly by the Treasury and Capital Markets Gronp (TCM). These trading exposures are
monitored through prescribed stress tests and sensitivity analyses.

The Banking Group's loca! reporting currency is the Pakistan Rupee, bul its asscts, liabilitics, income and expenses are

denominated in muitiple currencies and converted to Pakistani Rupee. From time to time, TCM proactively hedges foreign
cuirency exposures resulting from its market making activities, subject to pre-defined fimits.
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Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Aunual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Off- Net Net
balance currency Off-balance currency
Assets  Liabilities sheetitems exposure Assets  Liabilities sheetitems  cxposure
2019 2012 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Pakistan
Rupee 7502677 (6423,993) (347,769) 730,915 9369,240 (8,101,010) (300,974) 967,256
USDollar 1,198,181  (882,273) (311,888) 4,020 1,570,243 (991,335) (599,793)  (20.889)
gf:r'l‘i: . 332,958 (350,052) 94,045 76,951 274,750 (321,734) 1259260 76,276
i?gf““s" 207 50) 72) 85 157 (40 4 43
Euro 19506  (49,558) 30,180 128 ILE33  (BZ17T5) 51304 962
UAE Dirham 596,675 (1,048,688) 446,218  (5,795) 598,766 (1,211,324) 612,011 (547
g‘i’:::"" 66,056  (129,054) 63315 317 73,000 (140,720) 69,999 2369
Qotari Riyal 112,176  (149,090) 358506  (1,408) 151,047 (176,931) 22,518  (3,366)

Other

Currecics 91,440  (33661)  (%535) 45,244 113,796 (92,183) 15,749 37,362
9,919,876  (9,066,419) - 853457 12,182,922 (11,123,456) - 1.059,466

Seusitivity analysis

The effect of different levels of impact in the exchange rates would have following impact on the equity of the Banking Group.
This analysis sssumes that all other variables, in particular interest rafes, remain constant,

Magnitude of impact (%)

Net foreign impact (£million)
Loss on exchange rate change (£ million)
Tax adjusted loss (£ million)

(i) Egquity position risk

20% 30% 50%
122.54 122.54 12254
(24.51) (36.76) 6127
(14.95) (22.43) (37.38)

Equily position risk is the sk that the fair value of a financial instrument wilk flucinate due to changes in the prices of individual
stocks or the levels of equily indices, The Bank's cquity book comprises of FYPL and FYOCI portfolios. The objective of the
FVPL pertfolio is to make short-lerm capital gains, whilst the FVOCI portfolio is maintained with a medium-term view of
eaming both capital gains and dividend income. Product program manuals have been developed to provide guidelines on the
objectives aud policies, risks and mitigants, limits and contraols for the equily partfolios of the Group.

Impact of 5% change in equity prices on,

Income statement
+5% change
-5% change

2019
£000

3,611
(3.611)
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Notes (continued)
44. Financial instruments (continned)
() Yield / interest risk

Mismatch of interest rate sensitive assets and Labilities

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair vafue of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in interest rates, including
changes in the shape of yield curves. Interest rate risk is inherent in many of the Group's businesses and arises from mismatches
between the contractual maturitics or the re-pricing of on and off-balence sheet assets and labilities. The interesl rate sensitivity
profile is prepared on a quarterly basis based on the re-pricing or contractual maturities of assets and liabilities.

[nterest rate risk is monitored and managed by performing periodic gap analysis, sensitivity analysis end stress testing and
taking appropriate actions where required.

The table below discloses the mismatch between coutractual maturities and re-pricing of cash flows of on assets and liebilities
in the statement of financial position:

Non-interest-
Over 1 Over 2 bearing
On balance sheet Effective yicld Uptel yearto2 yearstoS  OverSs financial
financial instruments / interest rate Total year years years years  nstruments
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
% £000 £000 £000 £600 £000 £000
Assets
Cash and balances with 0.50%-0.90% 1336340 287,005 - . - 1,049335
treasury banks
Lending lo finausial 5.60%-10.50% 108907 107,72 - 173 : :
institutions
Investments 7.30%-8.70% 4,403,269 2,548,186 330,542 804,726 605,869 113,940
Advances 6.30%-9.60% 3370909 3,245726 5858 21663 26,770 70,292
Other assets 202 816 - - - - 202 816
9422241 6,188,089 336400 828,124 632,639 1,436,989
Linbilittes
Bills payabls 143,886 - - - - 143,886
Borrowings 3.40%-4.60% 1,143,559 995,693 113,342 - B 35,124
Deposits sd ofhor 2.50%430% 7408801 3964901 126871 70,170 77,570 3,169289
Subordingled Debt 10.20%-12.10% 49,202 48,152 - - - 1,050
Payable to investors of ) : . .
URBL Funds 9,536 9,536
Other liabilities 198,245 20,054 - - - 178,151
8953220 S031,776 240213 70170 71,570 3,527,500
On balance sheet gap 469,012 1,150,313 96,187 757,954 535,069 (2,090,511)
Net non-financial assets 384,442
Total net assets 853,454

120



Notes (confinued)

44. Financial instruments (continned)

Bestway Group Limited

Registered aumber [ 1003305
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

Off-balance sheet Fair  Notional Non-interest-
financial instruments value value Total Exposed to yield / interest rafe bearing
financiaf
Upto 1 year [-2years 2-5years >S5 yecars Iinstruments
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £006
511 torest rale long 1,524 ; 1,524 . R )
erivatives (969 1,524
Interest rate short '
derivatives (1,524) (1,524) ) ) ° )
Cross currency long swap - - - - - - - -
Cross currency short swap - - - - - - - -
Foreagn aurrency forward 2,055,005 2,055,005 - - . - 2,055,005
purchases 34281
f;lzlg“ currency forward (1,740 ,420) (1,740,420) - - - - (1,740,420)
FX options - purchased 4,038 4,038 - - - - 4,038
FX options - sold (4,038) (4,038) - - - - (4,038)
Forward purchase of 158 332280 382,280 . - - - 382280
govemmeiit securities
Forward sale of government ) ) } B R
securities " . )
Off-balance sheet gap 696,865 {1,524) 1,524 - - 696,865
Total yield / Interest rate risk sensitivity gap 1,165874 1,148,789 97,711 757,954 555,069 (1,393,649)
Cum yield / Interest rate visk sensitivity gap - 1,148,789 1,246,500 2,004,454 2,559,523 1,165,874

Non-lterest

Over 2 bearing
On batance sheet financial  Effective yield / Upto 1 Qverlyear yearsto5  Over 5 financial
instruments interest rate Total r o2 years years yonrs instruments
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
% £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Cash and balances with 0.07% 1,030,647 58,803 . _ _ 971,844
treasury banks
Balances with other banks 3% 197,368 104,991 - - - 923717
Londing to financial S% 272,545 256493 5942 10,110 . .
instrtutions
Investments 7%  5304,883 2,439,158 901,233 1,064,381 733,301 166,810
Advances 6% 4,598,032 4,422,384 44613 64,308 49,859 16,868
Other assets - 242,237 - - - - 242,237
§1,645712 7,281,829 951,788 1,138,799 783,160 1,490,136
Liabilities
Bills payable - 96,844 - - - - 96,844
Borrowings 5% 1,865,759 1,706,042 132,192 23811 - 3,714
Depaosits and other accounts 3% 8,683,862 4,668,787 56,378 72,625 96,127 3,789,945
Llal‘nhttcs against assels 3% 75 15 R . _ .
subject to finance lease
Payable to investors of UBL N 7487 7487 . . . N
fiunds
Other liabilities - 423,755 - - - - 423,755
11077,782 6382391 188570 96436 96,127 4,314,258
On balance sheet gap 567,930 899,438 763,218 1,042,363 687,033 (2,824,122
Net non-financial assets 491,536
Toflal net assets 1,059.466
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44, Financial instruments (eontitned)

Off-balance shest financial Fair  Nalional . . L Non-interest
instruments valne value Total Exposed to yield / interest rate bearing
] financial
Upto} year 1-Zyears 2-5years >J years Tnstruments
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £060 £000 £000 £000
Inferest rate long
derivatives 18,212 18212 ) ) i "
Interest rate short 163 18212 (18,212 (18212
derivatives 212) 2412) B B B B
Cross enrrency long swap - - - - - -
Cross currency short swap - - - - - -
Foroign currency forward 1794251 1704251 1794251 - . - '
purchases 6.009
E:]’:;‘g“ currency forward (1,503421)(1,503,421) (1,503,421) ; _ ; _
FX options - purchased 683 683 683 - - - -
FX options - sold ) (683) (683) (G83) - - - -
Forward purchase of
Govemment securities @4 6,552 6,352 6,552 - ) B .
Forward sale of
Govemnmnient seourilies i i B ) i i ) )
Off-balance shoct gap 297,382 297,382 - - - -
Total yield / interest rale risk sensitivity gap BG5,312 1,196 820 763,218 1,042.363 687,033 (2,824,122)
Cum yield / interest rale risk seusitivity gap - 1,196,820 1,960,038 3,002 401 1,689434 865,312

Sengitivity analysis

The offect of different levels of impact in the interest rate applicable as of the balance sheet date would bave following impact
oa the equity of the Group, This analysis assumes that ail other variables remain constant, This analysis is performed at Group
level.

Magnitude of impact (%) 2% 3% 4%
Total assets of the Bank - (£ million) 1,169 1,169 1,169
Net fall in market value of equity - (£ million) 23 (35) (C1)]
Tax Adjusted Loss - (£ million) (i4) @ 29
) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Banking Group may be unable to meet its obligations or to [und increases in assets as they
fall due without incurring unacceptable cost or losses.

The Assels and Liability Management Commitiee (ALCO) of the Banking Group is responsible for the oversight of liquidity
mahagoemen! and meets on a monthly basis or more frequently, if required.

The Banking Group's approach to fiquidity management is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liguidity to mest its lisbilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking sustained damage to business franchises. A centralised approach is adepted, based on an integrated framework
incorporating an assessment of ali material known and expected cash flows and the availsbility of collateral whioh conld be
used lo sccure additional funding if required. The framework entails careful monitoring and control of the daily liquidity
position, and regular liquidity stress tosting under a variety of scenarios, These encompass both normal and stressed market
conditions, including general market crises and the possibility that access to markets could be impacted by a stress event
affecting some part of the Banking Group’s business.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

Maturities of assets and liabilifies - based on contractual maturity of the assets and Habilities of the Banking Group

The maturity profiie presented below has been prepared on the basis of contractual maturities, except for products that do not
have a contractual maturity which are shown in the first bucket.

30 June 19

Assets

Cash and batances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lending to financial institutions
Investments

Advances

Other financial assets

Liabilities

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Sub-ordinated loans

Liabilities agninst assets subject to finance lease
Payable to investors of UBL Funds

Other financial linbilities

Net inflow / (cutflow)

30 June 2018

Assets

Cask and balances with treasury banks
Balaness with other banks

Lending to [inancial institutions
Investinents

Advances

Other financial assets

Liabilities

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other sccounts

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Payable to investors of UBL Funds

Other financial liabilities

Net inflow / (outflow)

Over 2

Carrying Over Lycar yearsto$
amount Up to 1 year to 2 years years Over 5ycars
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1,126,288 1,126,288 - - -
210,053 210,053 - - -
108,907 98,372 - 10,535 -
4,403,268 2,460,549 363,437 698,579 880,703
3,370,909 1,665,740 216,926 131,213 751,030
384,930 360,488 - - 24,442
9,604,355 5,921,490 580,363 1,440,327 1,662,175
143,886 143,886 - - -
1,141,474 967,260 63,641 12,494 98,079
7,408,801 7,109,108 141,890 137,178 20,625
49,202 - - - 49,202
9.536 9,536 - - -
313,521 282,368 21,154 - 9,999
8,922,534 8,368,272 226,685 149,672 177,905
681,821 (2,446,782) 333,678 1,290,655 1,484,270

Carrying Over 1 year Over 2 years
amoun! Up to | year to 2 years to 5 years Over 5 years
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1,030,647 1,030,647 - - -
197,368 197,368 - - -
272,544 214,166 18,754 38,423 1,201
5,279,651 2,387,013 860,545 1,172,906 859,187
4,598,030 2,433,499 497,384 959,025 708,122
452,347 426,251 - - 26,096
11,830,587 6,688,944 1,376,683 2,170,354 1,594,606
96,844 96,844 - - -
1,900,169 1,734,563 380 46,111 119115
8,741,127 8,205,299 205,479 288,274 42,075
1,487 7487 - - .
377,830 289,586 26,201 - 62,043
11,123,457 10,333,779 232,060 334,385 223,233
707,130 (3,644,835) 1,144,623 1,835,969 1,371,373
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44. Financial instruments fcontinued)
D Querational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed intemal processes, people and systems or from extermnal
events.

The Operational Risk Division of the Group is primarily responsible for the aversight of operational risk management across
the Banking Group. The operationa risk management framework of the Banking Group is governed by the Operational Risk
Management Policy and Procedures, whilc the implementation is supported by an operational risk management system and
designated operational risk coordinators within different units across the Gronp. The framework is in line with intemational
best practices, flexible enough to implement in stages and pormits the overall approach to evolve in response to organisationat
leaming and future requirements.

Loss data, collected through a well-defined program, is evaluated and processos are reviewed for improvements in mitigation
techniques. Periodic workshops are vonducted for Risk & Control Seif-Assessment and key risk exposures are identified and
assessed against existing controls to evafuate improvement opportunities. Key Risk Indicators are also defined for monitoring
of risk exposures,

Business Continuéty Plans have been implenieunted across the Banking Group, cleady defining the roles and responsibilities of
respective stakeholders, and covering recovery strategy, 1T and structural backups, scenario and impact analyses and testing
directives. The outsourcing policy has also been augmented to address risks associated with such arrangements.

{m) Capital risk management

Capital is held to protect the Banking Group’s banking business’s (UBL) depositors, cover inherent risks, provide & cushion
for stress events and fo support the business strafegy. In assessing the adequacy of capital resources, UBL considers its business
plan, sisk appetite, the material risks ta whioh it is exposed, and the appropriale sirategics required to manage those risks.

UBL is committed to maintaining a strung capital base under both existing and future regulatory requirements. The strength of
its capital base is dependent upon the size of its capital relative to Risk Weighted Assots,

UBL prepares a Capital Adequacy Assessment Process document that sets out how it identifies and manages the key risks to
which it is exposed and details its capital requirements, capital resources and capital adequacy over the planning period,
including wnder stress scenarios. This process is used to ensure that it applies appropriale management buffers to regulatory
capital requireiments in line with risk appetite. In onder to appropriately monitor and manage the Bank’s capital resources, UBL
produces regular reports on the current and forecasted level of capital for the Board and the sharcholders. The key assumptions
and risk drivers used to create the stress tests are regularly monitored and reported and are used in determining how it will
cvolve its capital resources and ensure they are appropriate for growth.

The Banking Group’s insurance business's (UIL) objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continic as a
going concem so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a
strong capital base to support the sustained development of ils business.

UIL manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makoes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions,

In nccordanee with srance Ruies, 2017 issucd by the Securities and Exchange Comamitssion of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRG
89¢1)/2017, minimuin paid-up capital requirement to be complied with by Insurance / Takaful companios as at 31 December
2017 and subsequent year is PKR 500 miflion (£2.4 million). As at June 201% UIL’s paid-up capital of PKR 1,152 million
(£5.6 million) was in excess of the prescribed limit.
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45, Subscquent events (continued)

Afler the year end, Bestway Cement Limited declared and paid £8.6 miltion in dividends for the quarter ended 30 June 2019.
United Bank Limited declaved and paid £14.7 million in dividends for the qusrier ended 30 June 2019.

There have been no other subsequent events which would have a material effect on the Group's financial statements at 30 Junc
2019.

46, Share capital
2019 2018
£000 £000
Authorised:
1,000,000 ordinary shares of £0.0F each 10 10
Allotted, catled up and fully paicl:
1,000,000 ordinary shares of £0.01 ¢ach 10 10

On 26 June 2019, Bestway Group Limited declured aad paid o final ordinary dividend of £4.00 per shave for the year ended 30
June 2018, This is in addition to the £6.00 por share interim dividend declared and paid on 21 May 2018 for the year ended 30
June 2018. Together, this dividend totalled £10 million. No dividend has yet been declared for the year ended 30 June 2019,

47. Non-controlling interest

Total

£000

Balance at | July 2017 720,113
Share of total compreheasive income for the year (24,491)
Payment of dividends (53,595)
Repurchase of own shares (1)
Balance at 30 June 2018 642,017
Change in accounting policy (29,361)
Balance at 30 June 2018 (restated) 612,656
Share of total comprehensive income for the year (38,515)
Payment of dividends (46,211)
Change in son-controlling interest (15)
Issuance and repurchase of units ;191
Balance at 3¢ June 2019 529,106

Summarised financial information fnn respect of each of the Group's subsidiaries that have inateriat non-controlling interests is
set ont below. The summarised financial inforination belaw represents amounts before intragroup eliminations,

2019 2018

£000 £000
Bestway Cemenf Limited
Current assefs 72,487 120,070
Non-current assets 379,684 470,083
Current lisbilities (119,699 (165,164)
Mon-current liabilities (50,972) (93,982)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company (282,100) {331,607)
United Bank Limited
Current assets 5,988,615 6,689,189
Non-current assets 3,929.273 5,513,783
Current fabilities (8,512,158) {10,333,779)
Non-current iabilities (554,263) (789,67T)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company (823,723) (1,045,844)
Non-controlling interests 27,744) (33,672)
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48, Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and wholly ovwned subsidiaries are not required to be disclosed in accordance
with IAS 24. Transactions between the Group and related pastics are disclosed below,

Trading transactions

During the year, Group companies entered into the following transactions with related parties:

Pucchase of goods
2019 2018
£000 £000
Map Rice Mill (Pvt) limited 2,431 2,766
Total 2,431 2,766
Net interest reccivable
2019 2018
£000 £000
Buybest Limited - 27
Total - 27

The following amonnts werc outstanding at the balance sheel date;

Amountis owed by Aracunts awed to
related parties related parties
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £009 £000
Map Rice Mill (Pvt) limited 182 349 167 -
Buybest Limited 560 1,035 - 51
Total . 742 1,584 167 51

Buybest Limited is a related party of the Group becatse certain Directors of Bestway Group Limited are also Directors of this
Company. MAP Rice Mill (Pvt} Limited is a related party of the Group because it shares common sharsholders with MAP
Trading Limited.

Sales and purchases of goods between related parties arc either done so at cost or at cost plus a mark-up to cover administrative
expeises. The amounts payable or receivable or interest free are unsecured and will be sottled in cash.

49. Remuneration of Directors and Key Management Personnel

Aggregate Divectors' remuneration

The remuneration of Directors of the Group, is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in TAS 24 Related
Party Disclosnres.

2019 2018
£000 £000
Balaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind 10,628 6,453
Contribution fo money purchase pension scheme 56 204

12,363 6,657

The above remuneration relates to 6 directors (2018: 6 directors). 2 of these directors did not receive any emoluments for their
services to the Group,

The aggregate of remuneration and amounts receivable under long ternt incentive schemes of the highest paid Director in the
Group was £6.8 million (2018: £1.8 million).

Post-employment benelits are accruing for 6 (2018: &) directors under the money purchase scheares.

126



Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Aunnwal report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes (continued)
49. Remuneration of Key Management Personnel and Directors (continued)

Aggregate key management personnel remuneration

The remuneration of key management personnct and Directors of the Group, is set out below in aggregate for each of the
categories specified in [AS 24 Related Parly Disclosures,

2019 2018

£000 £000

Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind 19,596 20,514
Contribution to money purchiase pension scheme 431 356
Coutribution to gratvity fund pension scheme 3,038 37
23,065 20,907

Koy management personnel are considered as such as they are instrumental in planning, directing and controlling activities of
the Group. '

Other fransactions svith Dirvectors

On 4 April 2017, Bestway Northern Holdings Limited acquired & 74% share of Oakleaf Limited, with the consideration being
satisfied via the issuc of 57,662,428 preference shares with par value of £1 per sharc and a coupon rate of 6%, with interest
being paid quarterly over 10 years. The sharcholders aro also Directors of Bestway Group Limited and the outstanding balance
of redeemable preference sharcs shown as non-curreat linbitities is as follows:

2019 2018
£000 £000
Sir MA Pervez 37,403 37,403
Lord ZM Choudrey 10,130 10,130
MY Sheikh 10,130 10,130

57,663 57,663

Dividends payable in the year on these preference shares is as follows:

2019 2018
£000 £000
Sir MA Pervez 2,244 2,244
Lord ZM Choudrey 608 608
MY Sheikh 608 608

3,460 3,460

The Banking Group has cerain related party transactions with the Company’s Directors and details of these
transactions is given below;

Deposits Interest Interest
Advances taken payahle Netincome expense
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Year ended 30 June 2019
Details of transactions with these Direclors is as _ 47,128 361 _ 1,118
follows
Interest Inferest
Advances Deposits payable Nelincome expense
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Year ended 30 Junc 2018
Details of transactions with these Directors is as 4 25,519 43 _ 1,183
follows

During the year no shares of UBL were sold by the Company’s Directors and 85,000 additionat shares were purchased.

127



Bestway Group Limited

Regislered number § 1003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes (continied)

49. Bemuneration of Key Management Personnel and Directors (continued)

The current Divectors of the Company and their immediate relatives coutrol 100% (2018: 100%) of the \iotmg shares of the
Company.

During the year under reviow, Bestway Foundation provided in excess of £225,0600 (2018: £200,000) in grants fo students of
Scuth Asian origin to attend a number of universities in the United Kingdom. In addition, Bestway Foundation donated over
£240,000 (2018: £185,000) to nine charities in the UK, including mmongst others, The Duke of Edinburgh Award,
Crimestoppers and Grocery Aid.

§0. Prior year adjustments
Trading Group

Following the purchase of Bargain Booze Ltd by the Group an cxercise has been performed to assess if {he original fair vatues
on the opening statement of financial position have been changed. It has been concluded by management that these changes
are material resulting in a restatement of the consolidated statement of financial position and income statement for the year
ended 30 June 2018, Distribution expenses have also been reclassified from administrative expenses to reflect the correct
classification of these transactions. The following line items in the financial sttements have been amended as follows;

Extract of consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year to 30 June 2018
restated (due to prior year adjustments)

Movement due to
Original rostatement Restated
Trading Total| Trading Total] Trading Tatal
Group Combined| Group Combined Group Combincd
£Q00 £600 L0060 £000 £000 £000
Distribulion expenses (10,933 10,933y (3,013) (3,013} (13,946) (13,946)
Administrative expenses (386,616) (727,552) 3,887 38871 (382,729) (723,665)
Total operating profit 115,685 353,841 874 874 116,559 354,715
Underlying Profit before tax 93771 331,927 374 874 94,645 332,801
Adjusting ltems:
Gain on acquisition {sec note viii) 20,360 20,3607 (13,204) (13,204) 7,156 7,156
Profit before tax 114,131 295,817| (12,330) (12,330) 101,801 283,487
Profit for the year 85,531 213,532 (12,330) (12,330) 73,201 201,202
Attributable fo:
Owners of the Company 50,882 123,3507 (12,330) (12,330) 38,552 111,020
Non-controlling interests 34,649 89,960 - - 34,649 89,960
Invesiors of UBL funds - . ) - - - 222
Profit for the year 85,531 213,5321 (12,330) (12,330) 73,201 201,202
Other comprehensive income for the yenr (52,275 (253,722) N - (52,275) (253,722)
Total comprehensive income for the year 33,256 (40,190} (12,330) (12,330) 20,926 (52,520)
Total comprehensive inceme atiributable to:
Owners of the Company 24479 (15,6993] (12,3300 (12,330} 12,149 (28,029
Non-controlling interests 8,777 (24 491) - - 8,777 (24,491)
Total comprehensive income for the year 33,256 ‘ (40,1903} (12,3303 (12,330} 28,926 (52,520)
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50, Prior year adjustments (continued)

Extract of consoliduted statement of financial position as at 30 Juure 2018 restated (due to prior year adjustments)

Note Original Movement due Restated
to restatement
£000 E000 £000
Non-current assets
Trading Group
Other intangible assels i 436,835 (4,614) 432,221
Properly, plant and equipment i 689,445 (8,428) 581,017
Total non-curvent assets 6919614 (13,042) 6,906,572
Current assets
Trading Group
Inveniories iii 330,330 (1,544) 328,786
Cash at bank and in hand v 169,887 234 170,121
Total current asscls 7,480,256 (1,310) 7,478,946
Total asgets 14,399,870 (14,352) 14,385,518
Current liabilities
Trading Group
Trade and other payables v 582,582 182 582,764
Provisions v 22,715 zn 22,588
Total current liabilities 15,178,632 55 11,178,687
Non-current liabilitios
Trading Group
Doferred tax liabilities wit 131,121 (2,077) 129,044
Total aon-curvent Habilities 1,280,7G5 (2,077) 1,278,628
Total linbilities 12,459,337 (2,022) 12,457,315
Total net assets 1,940,533 (12,330) 1,928,203
Equity
Retained earnings Vi 673,897 (12,330) 661,567
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,940,533 (12,330) 1,928,203
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50. Prior year adjustments (continued)
Notes relating to prior year adjustnents

i Intangible assets

An adjusiment of £4.6 million was made to the provisional fair value of inlangible assets that arosc principally from software
being sfated in excess of its fair value.

i, Property, plant and equipment

Following acquisition, a full review of property, plant and equipment was undertaken which identified that the fair value of a
number of assets had been overstaled and that asset decommissioning costs had been omitted from the provisional fair valnes.
The net adjustment to finalise the fair values led to a reduction of £8.4 million in the provisional fair value of property, plant
and equipment.

Hl Inventories

An adjustment of £0.8 milliou was made to inventory to goods supplied to the business under retention of titfe ¢lauses which
were subsequently enforced by the supplier. In addition to this there was a flrther adjustment to increase the level of inventory
provisions by £0.7 million. The total impact of these adjustments was to reduce the fair value of inventories by £1.5 million.

iv. Cash at bank and in hhand
An edjusiment of £0.2 million was made to restate the cash bafance.
» Trade and other payables

Trade payable refated to provisions on the opening balance has had the fair value reassossed and increased the provision by
£0.1 million.

vi. Provisions

A net adjustment of £0.1 million was made to restate the fair value of the dilapidations provision as the provisional amount
was not sufficient to cover the potential liability.

vii. Deferred tax

The deferred tax liability was restated by £2.1 million as a result of the finalisation of the fair vatue of net assets acquiired.
This principally arises from the adjustment made to intangible assets and property plant and equipment.

viii. Adjusting items

Asg aresult of the fair vaine adjusiments made fa intangible assets and property, plant and equipmnent there was a reduction in
amortisation and depreciation expeuses totalling £0.8 miflion, recognised in administrative expenses. IFRS 3 requires
negative goodwill fo be immediately recognised in the income statement. The finalisation of the fair values resulicd in 4
teduction of £13.0 million in the negative goodwiil balance, recognised in adjusting items. These two items resulted in net a
restatement of £12.3 million on retained carnings.
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50, Prior year adjusitments {continued)
Banlking Group

The comparative figures for certain liabilities previously disclosed in the statement of financial position for the year ended 30
June 2018 have been restated to reflect the apprapriate categaries requirad by IAS 39, Financial Instraments. The adjustments
have been disclosed below:

Movement due

to
Criginal reclassification Restated
£000 £000 £000
Current liabilities
Banlking Group
Trade and other payables 168,522 (97,875) 70,647
Deposits and other accounts 8,148,034 57,265 8,205,299
Other interest-bearing loans and botrowings 1,859,558 40,610 1,900,168
Provisions - 16,977 16,977
Non-current liabilities
Banking Group
Provisions 16,977 (16,977) -
10,193,091 - 10,193,091

Foliowing the restatement identified above, the accounting standards roquire the Group to also present a restated 2017
statement of financial position to show the effect of the reclassification error. Bestway Group Limited did not legally exist at
30 June 2017, however the former ultimate parent company, Bestway (Holdings) Limited, did exist and the financial statements
for this entity were publicly available. Therefore, the Group presents this as the reported and restated statement of financial
position for the Group below to show the effect of the reclassification error as at 30 June 2017.

Staternent of financial position as at 30 June 2017 restated (due to prior year adjustments)

ivlovement
due to
Original  restatement Restated
£000 £000 £000
Non-current assels
Oroup Coodwill 206,294 - 206,294
Trading Group
Other intangible asssts 464,443 - 464,443
Property plant and equipment 653,118 - 653,118
Investment property 114,987 - 114,987
Banking Group
Other intangible assets 7.494 - 7,494
Property plant and equipment 311,760 - 311,760
Investment property 19,634 - 19,634
Reinsurance assets 12,877 - 12,877
Investment in equity accounted investees 31,600 - 31,600
Other financial assets classified held for sale 4,392,263 - 4,392,263
Lending's to financial institutions and advances §,991,887 - 1,991,887
8,206,357 - 8206357
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017 restated (due fo prior year adjnstmeis) (continued)

Current assets

Trading group
Inventories

Tax roceivable

Trade aud ofher receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Banking Group

Other financial assets classified as held for sale

Lending’s to financial institutions & advances
Tax receivable

Tsade and other receivables

Cash and cash squivalents

Tatal assets

Current liabilities

Trading Group

Trade and other payables

Tax payable

Bank overdraft

Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Provisions

Banking Group

Trade and other payables

Deposits and other accounts

Payable to investors of UBL. funds

Bill payable

Bank overdral

Other interest-bearing lonns and borrowings
Technical provisions

Movement due
Original  to restatement Restated
£000 £000 £000
298,024 - 298,020
8,048 - 8,048
214,202 - 214,202
108,973 - 108,973
3,315,760 - 3,315,760
2,752,614 - 2,752,614
96,501 - 96,501
307,489 - 307,489
1,354,340 - 1,354,340
8,455947 - 8,455,947
16,662,304 - 16,662,304
526,225 - 526,225
38,320 - 38,320
50,963 - 50,565
20,694 - 20,694
423,229 {96,959 326,270
9,162,686 32,802 9,195,488
13,016 . 13016
129,188 - 129,188
3,950 - 3,950
2,802,778 64,157 2,866,935
- 17,091 17,091
13,171,051 17,091 13,188,142

132
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50. Prior year adjustments (contivued)

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Statement of financial position ax at 36 June 2017 restated (due to prior year adjustments} (continied)

Non-current liabilitics

Trading group

Other intorest-bearing loans and borrowings
Employes benefits

Deferred tax liabilities

Preference shares

Banldng group

Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Deposits and accounts

Employes benefits

Deferred tax liabilities

Technical provisions

Other financial liabilitics

Total liabilities

Taotal net nssels

Equity

Share capital

Share premium

Revaluation reserve

Capital redemption reserve
Statutory reserve

Reserve pertaining to UBL funds
Transfation reserves

Retained earmnings

Equity aiiributable to owness of company

Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Movement due

Original  to restatement Restated
£'000 £000 £000
408416 - 408,416
12,053 - 12,053
151466 . 151,466
58,178 - 58,178
131,491 - 131,491
577074 - 571,074
6,555 - 6,555
58,024 - 58,024
17,091 (17.091) -
31,689 - 31,689
1,452,037 (17,091) 1,434,946
14,623,088 - 14,623,088
2,039,216 - 2,039,216
71 - 71

3,055 - 3,055
271,243 - 271,243
39 - 39
205,124 - 205,124
1,178 - 1,178
225,715 - 225,775
612,618 - 612,618
1,319,103 - 1,319,103
720,113 - 720,113
2,039,216 - 2,039,216
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50. Prior year adjustments (confinued)

Prior year cashflow restatement

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements
Far the year ended 30 June 20£9

Due to foreigh exchange catculation crrors noted during the vear wilh respect to the cashflow statement for the year ended 30
June 2018, the comparative figures have been reclassified. The individual lines on the cashflow statement materially impacted

are as follows,

Cash flows from
operating activities
{Decrease) £ ingrease
in provisions
Increase / (decreasc)
in pension provision

movements in working
capital

{lncrease) / decrease
in inventories
(Incroase) / decrease
in receivablos
Increase / (decrease)
in payables

Tax paid

Cash flows from
financing activities
Dividends paid to
non-controtling
intercst

Net borrowings (from)
{ to third parties

Effect of foreign
cxchange rate changes

Trading Banking Total
Group Group cashflow
2018 2018 2018
Reported

£000 £000 £000
9,576)  (42,118)  (51,694)
(2.442) 55488 53,046
(3,097 - (3,097

(36,006) 2,070,809 2,034,803

32,724 (2,821,678) (2,788,954)

(34,027)  (38,874) (72,901}

(L7,657)  (35938)  (53,595)

(102,785) (1,582,321) (1,685,106)

24952 (260,687) (235,735)

Trading  Banking Total
Group Group  cashflow
Movemen! due fo restatement
£000 £000 £000
6,829  (13,506)  (6.677)
2,209 (50960) (48,731)
(25,539) - (25,539)

(10,992) (2,113,708) (2,124,700)

29,021 2,739,806 2,768,827

(11,271) (63,893}  (75,164)
(3,299)  (7.640) (10,939
30,597 955,331 981,928

(25228) 47382 22,154

Trading Banking

Group Group
2018 2018
Restated

£000 £000
(M7 (55,624)
(213) 4,528
(28,636) -

(46,998) (42,399)

61,745 (81,872)
(45,298) (102,767}

(20,956) (43,578)

(72,188) (630,990}

(276) (213,305)

Total
cashflow
2018

£000

(58,371)

4,315

(28,636)
(89,897

(20,127
(148,065)

(64,534)

(703,178)

(213,581)

Furthenmore, interest paid of £21.9 million has been reclassified from “cashflow from operating activities” to “cashflow from
financing activities” and dividends paid by the Banking Group to Trading Group of £63 4 million , dividends paid to ownors
of the perent of £6 million, and dividends paid to non-controlling intorest of £64.3 million have been reclassified from
“cashflow from investing activities” to “cashflow from financing activitics” to reffect the correct classification of these items.
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Notes (confinued)

51. Critical accounfing estimates and judgements

In application of the Group's accounting policies, which are deseribed in vote 3, the Direstors are required to make the
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets sud liabilities that are not readily appareat from
other sources. These judgemerits, estimutes and assumptions aiso frmpact the results reported in the income statement and
statement of comprehensive income. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical cxperience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from thiese estimates,

‘The estimates and undestying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year or in the year of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future years.

Trading Group
Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are dealt with separately below), that
the Directors have made in the pracess of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Licences

Licences acquired on the acquisition of pharmacics are stated at cast less acoumulated ammortisation and impairment losses,
Amortisation is charged to administrative expenses in the income statoment on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets unless such lives arc indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are systematically tested
for impairment at cach balance shect date. Jutangible assets are amortised from the date they arc available for nse. The estimated
aseful lives are as follows:

Licences 20 years
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date that may
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
yenr, are discussed below,

Impairment of licences

in calculating the impairment provision for licences, the Group makes an estimate of the expected return for each cash
generating nnit in comparison to the liconces relating to that cash genesaling unit. The cstimates used in projecting the
discounsted cash flows for use in the expected retumm inctude the expected growth rate, the WACC discouat rate, and budgeted
EBITDA figures for the next financial year. Sensitivity analysis is performed surrounding the effect of changes in the growth
rate and WACC on the impairment model, The impairment provision for the year is disclosed in note 23.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the fair value of the cash-generating units less costs to
sell. The determination of & fair vafue nad of snitable selling costs require a level of cstimation. In sitations where this is
lower than the book value of the net assets of the cash generating unit, a value in use calcuiation will need to be performed.
The value in yse calculation reguires the entity to estimate the futare cash flows expected to arise [rom the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. Defails of the impairment loss caleulation are set out in
note 21. Given the role of a Group holding company is to hoid and manage its investments, the most appropriate method of
assessing for goodwill held at group levet is through fair value less cost to soll (FVLCTS).

Valuation of investment propertics

Some of the Group's investment properties are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value of an investment property, the Group uses market-observable data o the extent it is available. The Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.
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Notes (continued)

51. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Fair value of assets and liabilities from business combinations

In determining the fair vahie of the acquired trading asssts of Bargainr Booze Limited, Conviviality Retail Logistics Limited
and Wine Rack Limited in the year, the fuir value was deterinined by the Directors. The income approach was used to arrive
at the fair value of the intangible assets. The estimated net cash flows are forcoast over the expected remaining economic life
and discounted to present value using a discount rate commensurate with the level of risk associated with the expected cash
flows. In determining the fair value of the acquired intangible assets, the Group's Directors worked closely with the qualified
cxternal valuers to establish the approprinte valuation techniques and inputs in determining the fair value.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of [inancial position when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
because of a past event, that can be reliably measured, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pro-fax rate that reflects
risks spocific to the liabiity.

Category M provisioning

Most of the provision in the accounts relates to a provision for a reduction in government lunding. This comprises a provision
made for the NHS finding cut announced by the Department of Health and NHS England {see note 38). Specifically, the
Category M provision included within NHS income is made in rolation to NHS retained margin funding, This is based on an
intemally produced model looking at drug tariff reimbursement rates in the markel relative to available pharmaocy funding to
eslimate whether a fanding provision is required. The Company performs regular revicw and sensitivity analysis on the modcl.
Alsa included within NHS income is an element of discount on the basis of what is known as the “deduction scale™. This is an
assnmed amount of discount received to avoid pharmacy contractors having to calculate and declars discount received on each
item dispensed. Currently, the deduction scale is based in the monthly total of reimbursement prices with a minimmm of 5.6%
and a maximum of 11.5% deducted from the total monthly reimbursement.

Inventory provisioning

The Group's sales arc subject to chenging consumer demands. As a result, it is necessary to consider the recoverabilily of the
cost of inventory and the associated provisioning required. When calculating the inventory provision, management considers
the nature and condition of the inventory, as well as applying assumptions around anticipated safeability of stock.

Canfingent lighilities

As described in note 43 (Contingent liabilities) the Group has a number of contingent liabilities. Judgement is required in
assessing the likelihood of outflow, the potential quantum of any outflow and the associated disclosure requirements. The
Directors, with the aide of legal advisors, are confident of a favourable outcome on all these matters, accordingly no provision
has been made in respect of these maltiers in the consolidated financial statcments.

Post-employment benefit obligations

The present value of the post-einployment benefit obligations dopends an a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/{income) for pensions
inchude the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of post-eniployment benefit
obligations. The key assumptions and sensitivities arc for post-employment obligalions are disclosed in note 22 of the
consolidated financial statements.

Banking Group

Credit rivk measnwrement

The estimation of eredit exposure for risk management purposes is complex and requires the use of models, as the risk
associated with exposure varics with changes in market conditions, expeeted cash flows mnd the passage of time. The
assessment of crodit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to the likelikood of defaults occurring, of the
associated loss ratios and of default correlations between counterparlies. The Banking Group measurcs credit risk using
Probability of Diefault (PID), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGD). This is similar to the approach used
for the purposes of measuring Expected Credit Loss (ECLYundor IFRS 9. Refer to noto 44 for more details.
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Company Statement of Financial Pogition

As at 30 June 2019

Non-current anssets
Investmenis

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

‘T'otal assets

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Total liabilities

Net assets

Capital and veserves
Share capital

Merger reserve
Retained camings

Shareholders’ funds

Nole

54

55

56

The notes on pages 137 to 139 are an integral part of these financial stateinenls.

Bestway Group Limited

Registercd number 110033035
Annua{ report and financiaf statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
£000 £000
578,048 578,048
3 3
578,051 578,051
() &)}

(5} (€D}
578,046 578,046
10 10
508,740 508,740
69,296 69,296
578,046 578,046

These financial statements were approved by the board of Directors on 19 December 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

Lord Z M Choudrey CIBE, SI Pk, BA (Hons), FCA

Director

M Y Sheikh
Director
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Balance at 1 July 2017
Profit for the year and total comprehiensive income

Issue of ordinary shares
Acquisition of subsidiaries under common control
Dividends paid '

Balance af 30 Junc 2018

Profit for the year and total compreheusive income
Dividends paid

Balance at 30 June 2019

Bestway Group Limited
Registered nuinber 11003305

Annual report and financial slatements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Moerger Retained
Share capital reserve earning Total equity
£000 £000 £000 £000
- - 75,296 75,296
1{4] - - 10
- 508,740 - 508,740
- - (6,000) (6,000)
10 508,740 69,296 578,046
- - 4,000 4,000
- - (4,600) (4,060
10 508,740 69,296 578,046

The notes on pages 137 to 139 are an integral part of theso financial siatements.
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Company notes (forsing part of the financial statemnents)

52. Significant accounting policies
The scparate Onancigl statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework (“FRS 101"). The Company has adopted several new standards, amendments to standards and IFRIC that became
effective during the year and thesc had no material impact aed are detailed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measwrement and disclosure requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU ("Adopted IFR8s™) but makes amendments where necessary
in order to cotnply with Companies Act 2006 aud has set out belaw where advantage of the FRS 10! disclosure exemptions
has been taken.

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company is exempt from the requirement 1o present its own profit and loss
aCcotitl.

The basis of preparaiion is covered for all balances within note 3 of the finsncial statements,

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of the following
disclosures:

- A cash flow siatement and related notes;

- Comparative poriod reconciliations for share capital;

- Disclosutes in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiarics;

- Disclosure in respeot of the compensation of Key Management Personnel;
- Disclosures in respect of capital management; and

- The effects of new but not yot effective IFRSs.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the remeasurement of certain financial
instruments to fair value. The principsl accounting policies adopted are the same as those sel out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial stateinents,

Dividend income is recognised in the financial statements when the right to receive payment is eslablished.
The merger reserve relates to the difference between the consideralion paid and the book value of the assets and liabilities at
the time of acquisition of entities that are under the control of the shareholders that control the Company.

The Company financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, The Company made a profit before tax of
£4.,0 million and has nel assots of £578.0 million, This relates predominantly to an investment in Bestway (Holdings) Limited.
The Direclors consider that this will enable the Group to continue in operations! existence for the foreseeable future by meeting
its fiabilities as they fall due for paymeat,

Based on these considerations the Directors believe that it remains appropriate o prepare the financial statements ot a going
concern basis.
53. Profit for the year

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has ¢lested not to present its own profit and loss aceount
for the period. The Company reported a profit for the financial period ended 30 June 2019 of £4.0 million (2018: £753
million). The auditors’ remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 14 1o the consolidated financial statements.
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Company notes {confinued)

54, Investments

Shares in

group
undertakings Total
£000 £000
Cost and net booit value
At 30 Juno 2018 and 30 June 2019 578,048 578,048
Details of the Company’s directly ovwned subsidiary are given below;
2019 2018
Name UK Company Registered office Class of Ownership  Ownership
number shares held % %
2 Abbey Road, Park
Bestway (Holdings) Limited 01392861  Royal, London, UK, Ordinary 100 100
NWI10 71BW
The investments in subsidiaries are all stated at gost less provision for impairment.,
Sec note 26 for information relating to other indirectly owned rolated undertakings of the Company.
55. Trade and other payables
2019 2018
£0G0 £000
Amounts owed to group undertakings 5 5
5 5
Amounts owed to group undertakings are non-interest bearing, unsecured and payable on demand,
56. Share capital
2019 2018
£000 £000
Authorised:
1,000,000 ordinary shares of £0.01 each 10 10
Allotted, called up and fully paid
1,000,000 ordinary shares of £0.01 each 10 10

On 26 June 2019, Bestway Group Limited declared and paid a final, ordinary dividend of £4.00 per share in addition to the
£6.00 per share interim dividend declared and paid on 21 May 2018 for the year ended 30 June 2018. This totalled £10 million.

No dividend has been declared for the year estded 30 June 2019.
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Company notes (continued)

57. Related party transactions
Remuneration of key management personnel

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption outlined in FRS 101:8(j} and is therefore not required to disclose key
management personnel compensation, anatysed into five categories as preseribed by TAS 24 Related Party Diselosures.

Transactions with related parties

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption outlined in FRS 101:8(k) and is therefore not required lo disclose
transactions with wholly owned subsidiarics, as prescribed by IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

No other transactions were entered into with the Company's disclosable refated parties, as defined by [AS 24.

Directory’ renmneration

The costs relating to the Directors’ remuneration for the Company 2re mainly incucred by Bestway Wholesale Limited and
Bestway (Holdings) Limited tor the wider Group. The amount atiributable to services provided to the Company was £6.6
million (2018: £3.2 million). The aggregate of remuneration and amounts receivabie nnder long term incentive schemes of the

highest paid Direclor in the Group was £6.6 million.
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